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OR
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Large accelerated fileE] Accelerated filerd Non-accelerated fileE&l Smaller reporting compani
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the ACHESCD NO M

The aggregate market value of the voting and ndmg@ommon equity held by non-affiliates of thgistrant computed by reference to the price at wtte
common equity was sold at June 30, 2012 was $52862311. The number of shares of Ryder SystemQonmmon Stock ($0.50 par value per share)
outstanding at January 31, 2013 was 51,477,492.

Documents Incorporated by Reference into this Repor Part of Form 10-K into which Document is Incorpeict
Ryder System, Inc. 2013 Proxy Statement Part Il










PART |

ITEM 1
ITEM 1A
ITEM 1B
ITEM 2
ITEM 3
ITEM 4

PART Il

ITEM 5

ITEM 6
ITEM 7
ITEM 7A
ITEM 8
ITEM 9
ITEM 9A
ITEM 9B

PART Il

ITEM 10
ITEM 11
ITEM 12
ITEM 13
ITEM 14

PART IV

ITEM 15

RYDER SYSTEM, INC.
FORM 10-K ANNUAL REPORT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Business

Risk Factors

Unresolved Staff Comments
Properties

Legal Proceedings

Mine Safety Disclosures

Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related 8tmider Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

Selected Financial Data

Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@idition and Results of Operations
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarRisk

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants @ousting and Financial Disclosure
Controls and Procedures

Other Information

Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govaoea

Executive Compensation
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners dahagement and Related Stockholder Matters

Certain Relationships and Related TransactionsParedttor Independence
Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
Exhibit Index

SIGNATURES

Page No.

R IRIR [ 1w

[
(631

B 15 IS Is |
O o IO 1o

[S=Y
o
-~

[S=Y
o
-~

[
o
~

[EEN
o
\‘

[E=Y
o
~

[EEN
o
\‘

H
o
o5}

[EEN
o
(o]

[l
o lo

|I—\
'_\
o~




PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

OVERVIEW

Ryder System, Inc. (Ryder), a Florida corporatiomided in 1933, is a global leader in transpomtadiod supply chain management
solutions. We operate in two business segmentst Management Solutions (FMS), which providesdelivice leasing, contract maintenance,
contract-related maintenance and commercial reftalicks, tractors and trailers to customers ppiaity in the U.S., Canada and the U.K.; and
Supply Chain Solutions (SCS), which provides compnsive supply chain consulting including distribntand transportation services in North
America and Asia. The SCS segment also providesated services, which includes vehicles and dsiearpart of a dedicated transportation
solution in the U.S. Our customers range from simadinesses to large international enterprisess& bastomers operate in a wide variety of
industries, the most significant of which includgamotive, food service, electronics, transportgttonsumer packaged goods, grocery, lumber
and wood products, and home furnishings.

For financial information and other informationathg to each of our business segments, see Itétanagement’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of CGytiems,” and Item 8, “Financial Statements and S&mpntary Data,” of this report.

INDUSTRY AND OPERATIONS

Fleet Management Solutions

Value Proposition

Through our FMS business, we provide our customvélsone-stop simplicity by offering fleet solutisthat are designed to improve their
competitive position by allowing them to focus it core business and lower their costs. Our Fkd8uyrxt offering is comprised primarily of
contractual-based full service leasing and contregihtenance services. We also offer transactibeet solutions including maintenance
services, commercial truck rental and value-adtit Eupport services such as insurance, vehiohnggtration and fuel services. In addition,
we provide our customers with access to a largeteh of used trucks, tractors and trailers thioogr used vehicle sales program.

Market Trends

The U.S. fleet market is estimated to include agipnately 7.2 million vehicle§’. The Canadian private commercial fleet market is
estimated to be approximately 500,000 vehi®lesd the Canadian commercial lease and rental miarkstimated to include approximately
20,000 vehicle® . The U.K. commercial lease and rental markettisnesed to include approximately 200,000 vehiéesA significant portion
of the fleet market consists of vehicles privatelyred by companies that provide all or a portiotheftransportation services for themselves
rather than outsourcing those services to thirtiggsuch as Ryder.

Over the last several years, many key trends hegee keshaping the transportation industry, all loiclvwe believe increase the value of
our product offering. Because of increased demandfficiency and reliability, companies that owrdananage their own fleet of vehicles have
put greater emphasis on the quality of their prévemmaintenance and safety programs. The maintenand operation of commercial vehicles
has become more complicated and expensive requianmgpanies to spend a significant amount of tinteranney to keep up with new
technology, diagnostics, retooling and trainingréased regulation and active enforcement effgrfederal and state governments require n
stringent and costly operational processes andsimler Fluctuating energy prices make it difficiat businesses to predict and manage fleet
costs. Finally, the tightened credit market hastéithsome businesses’ access to capital.

Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2012 , our glad& Business accounted for 64% of our consolidaggdnue.

U.S. Our FMS customers in the U.S. range from smallri®ssies to large national enterprises operatingvid@ variety of industries. At
December 31, 2012 , we had 537 operating locatmxduding ancillary storage locations, in 49 statad Puerto Rico. A location typically
consists of a maintenance facility or “shop,” officfor sales and other personnel, and in many casesnmercial rental vehicle counter. Our
maintenance facilities typically include a servisgland for fueling, safety inspections and preliaminmaintenance checks as well as a shop for
preventive maintenance and repairs. We also opki#4 locations on-site at customer propertiescvprimarily provide vehicle maintenance.

(1) US Fleet as as of June 2012, Class 3-8, Soitcdolk
(2) Canada Private Fleet as of December 2012 , £8&8, Source: RL Polk
(3) Canada Outsourced Fleet Market as of Decemb&RZlass 3-8, Source: RL Polk
(4) UK Lease and Rental HGV Market, Projectiondecember 2012, Source: The Society of Motor N&oturers & Traders (SMMT) 2010




Canada. We have been operating in Canada for over 5Gy@amDecember 31, 2012 , we had 34 operatingilmtsithroughout 8
Canadian provinces. We also operate 11 mainterfanitigies on-site at customer properties in Canada

Europe. We began operating in the U.K. in 1971 and expdmat® Germany in 1987 by leveraging our operatiorthe U.S. and the U.|
At December 31, 2012 , we had 55 operating locatibroughout the U.K. and Germany. We also managsveork of 495 independent
maintenance facilities in the U.K. to serve ourtoogers when it is more effective than providing $sieevice in a Ryder location. In addition to
our typical FMS operations, we supply and managdpécies, equipment and personnel for military orgations in the U.K. and Germany.

FMS Product Offerings

Full Service Leasing Under a typical full service lease, we prowadicle maintenance, supplies and related equiprmemessary for
operation of the vehicles while our customers f&hirand supervise their own drivers and dispatcheaectise control over the vehicles. Our full
service lease includes all the maintenance sertliegsre part of our contract maintenance sewffeging. We target customers that would
benefit from outsourcing their fleet managementfiom or upgrading their fleet without having toditeate a significant amount of their own
capital or resources. We will tailor a leasing peog that best suits the customer’s needs aftersaesa a customer’s business needs and after
considering the size of the customer, residualarsk other factors. Once we have signed an agréemeacquire vehicles and components that
are custom engineered to the customer’s requirestaertt lease the vehicles to the customer for pedederally ranging from three to seven
years for trucks and tractors and up to ten yeargdilers. Because we purchase a large numbegto€les from a limited number
manufacturers, we are able to leverage our buyingepfor the benefit of our customers. In additigiven our continued focus on improving
efficiency and effectiveness of our maintenanceises, particularly in light of changing technologyd increased regulation, we can provide
customers with a cost effective alternative to rr@iming their own fleet of vehicles. We also ofter leasing customers additional fleet support
services described below.

Contract Maintenance Our contract maintenance customers utilizeestensive network of maintenance facilities aathed
technicians to maintain the vehicles they own aséefrom third parties. The contract maintenanogcgeoffering is designed to reduce vehicle
downtime through preventive maintenance based bitleetype and time or mileage intervals. The sendlso provides vehicle repairs incluc
parts and labor, 24-hour emergency roadside seavideeplacement vehicles for vehicles that argtearily out of service. Vehicles covered
under this offering are typically serviced at oumdfacilities. However, based on the size and cewipfl of a customer’s fleet, we may operate
an on-site maintenance facility at the customercaion.

Commercial Rental We target rental customers that have a nesdgplement their private fleet of vehicles on erskerm basis (one
day up to one year in length) either because cfosed increases in their business or discrete gisofhat require additional transportation
resources. Full service lease customers utilizeeoommercial rental fleet to handle their peak @ss®@al business needs. In addition to isolated
commercial rental transactions, we build natioe&tionships with large customers to become theifepred source of commercial vehicle
rentals. Our rental representatives assist in Setea vehicle that satisfies a customer’s needssapervise the rental process, which includes
execution of a rental agreement and a vehicle oigpe In addition to vehicle rental, we extendildy insurance coverage under our existing
policies to our rental customers as well as thesfiesnof our comprehensive fuel services program.

The following table provides information regardifig number of vehicles and customers by FMS prodlifieting at December 31, 2012 :

U.S. Foreign Total
Vehicles Customers Vehicles Customers Vehicles Customers
Full service leasing 96,90( 10,60( 25,50( 2,40( 122,401 13,0(
Contract maintenandg 33,10( 1,30( 4,70( 20cC 37,80( 1,5(
Commercial rentdP 27,80( 32,20( 10,20( 6,50( 38,00( 38,7(

(1) Contract maintenance customers include approxirg820full service lease custome
(2) Commercial rental customers include customers veimbed a vehicle for more than 3 days during the yed includes approximate8,800full service lease custome

Contract-Related Maintenance Our full service lease and contract mainteeanustomers periodically require additional maiatere
and repair services that are not included in themtracts. For example, additional maintenancerapdir services may arise when a customer
damages a leased vehicle. In addition, becauserahasting relationship with the customer, we mpayvide service on their owned vehicles |
charge the customer on an hourly basis for worfopmied. We may also contract with customers wheeHaxge private fleets to provide
maintenance on demand. Although the contract iedube basic terms and conditions of the maintenprmgram that is designed to meet the
customers' specific needs, all maintenance is pagd only when and as requested by the customariditg ondemand maintenance allows
to establish relationships with customers thathateaeady to commit to a longer term lease or reaiamce contract.




Fleet Support Services. We have developed a variety of fleet suppantises tailored to the needs of our large baseadé customers.
Customers may elect to include these servicesragfideir full service lease or contract maintece agreements. We offer the following fleet
support services:

Service Description
Fuel Full service diesel fuel and natural gas dispenatrgpmpetitive prices; fuel planning; fuel tax ogjng;
centralized billing; and fuel cards
Insurance Liability insurance coverage under our existinguiasce policies which includes monthly invoicinigxible

deductibles, claims administration and discounsetan driver performance and vehicle specification
physical damage waivers; gap insurance; and figdessessment

Safety Establishing safety standards; providing safetiyitng, driver certification, prescreening and raests; safety
audits; instituting procedures for transport ofdr@pus materials; coordinating drug and alcohairtgsand
loss prevention consulting

Administrative Vehicle use and other tax reporting; permitting hoehsing; and regulatory compliance (includingirsoof
service administration)

Environmental Management Storage tank monitoring; storm water managemenir@mmental training; and 1SO 14001 certification

Information Technology RydeSmart is a full-featured GPS fleet location, trackingdarehicle performance management system
designed to provide our customers improved fleetajions and cost controls. RyddeetCAREIs our web

based tool that provides customers with 24/7 adeeksy operational and maintenance management
information about their fleets.

Used Vehicles. We primarily sell our used vehicles at one af 89 retail sales centers throughout North Ame(it8 of which are co-
located at an FMS shop), at our branch locatioriBrough our website atww.Usedtrucks.Ryder.contypically, before we offer used vehicles
for sale, our technicians assure that R@ad Read§, which means that the vehicle has passed a coemsite, multi-point performance
inspection based on specifications formulated thihoour contract maintenance program. Our retagisseénters throughout North America al
us to leverage our expertise and in turn realigbdyi sales proceeds than in the wholesale markébugh we generally sell our used vehicles
for prices in excess of book value, the extent lhictvwe are able to realize a gain on the salesefl wehicles is dependent upon various factors
including the general state of the used vehicleketathe age and condition of the vehicle at threetof its disposal and depreciation rates with
respect to the vehicle.

FMS Business Strategy

Our FMS business mission is to be the leadingigeand maintenance service provider for light, medand heavy duty vehicles. Our
mission will be achieved if we successfully achigwe following goals and priorities:

«Drive fleet growth by (1) successfully implementisges initiatives designed to penetrate privatetfinarkets and expand into adjacent
markets; (2) offering innovative products, solu@nd support services that will create and sthemgtustomer relationships; and (3)
completing strategic and selective acquisitions;

*Deliver a consistent, industry-leading and coseaffe maintenance program to our customer thraogtinued process improvement
and re-design, productivity initiatives, and teclogy improvements; and

»Optimize asset utilization and management, pagitylvith respect to our rental fleet, used vehaperations and maintenance facility
infrastructure.

Competition

As an alternative to using our services, most cangsachoose to provide these services for themsehlhough some may choose to
obtain similar or alternative services from otherd-party vendors.

Our FMS business segment competes with comparie#iprg similar services on a national, regional &rtal level. Many regional and
local competitors provide services on a nationatlliéhrough their participation in various coopemfprograms. Competitive factors include
price, equipment, maintenance, service and geograpkierage. We compete with finance lessors aswlwith truck and trailer manufacturers,
and independent dealers, who provide full sengesé products, finance leases, extended warramtyamance, rental and other transportation
services. Value-added differentiation of the felhdce leasing, maintenance and commercial reatalce, as well as continued commitment to
offer innovative products and solutions such asnma&pas vehicles, has been, and will continueetoolir emphasis.




Supply Chain Solutions

Value Proposition

Through our SCS business, we offer a broad rangenof/ative logistics management services thatiaségned to optimize a customer’s
supply chain and address key customer businessegmnts. The organization is aligned by induseiticals (Automotive, Hi-Tech, Retalil,
Consumer Packaged Goods and Industrial) to enlableeams to focus on the specific needs of thatoooers. Our SCS product offerings are
organized into four categories: distribution mamaget, transportation management, dedicated seraimprofessional services. These offer
are supported by a variety of information technglagd engineering solutions which are an integaai pf our other SCS services. These
product offerings can be offered independentlysoam integrated solution to optimize supply chéiectiveness. A key aspect of our value
proposition is our operational execution whichnsraportant differentiator in the marketplace.

Market Trends

Global logistics is approximately an $8 trilli§tmarket, of which approximately $620 billié?is outsourced. Logistics spending in the
markets we are targeting in North America and Asjaates to approximately $3 trillion , of which $3llion is outsourced. Outsourced
logistics is a market with significant growth oppaority. As supply chains expand, product needsicoatto proliferate and more sophisticated
supply chain practices are required. In additigsrughtions such as Superstorm Sandy and the Wesstt @ort Strike have caused companies to
focus on risk management of their supply chaing Miore complicated the supply chain or the prodemtirements, the greater the need for
companies to utilize the expertise of supply cloviders.

Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2012 , our SC8dmssaccounted for 36% of our consolidated revenue.

U.S. At December 31, 2012 , we had 434 SCS custagmyunts in the U.S., most of which are large eniss that maintain large,
complex supply chains. These customers operateaniety of industries including automotive, higfch,
retail industries, consumer packaged goods, angstridl. We continue to diversify our customer bagexpanding into new industry verticals,
most recently retail and consumer packaged goodst bf our core SCS business operations are gdugedly located to maximize efficiencies
and reduce costs. At December 31, 2012 , managezhaase space totaled approximately 26 million sgjteet for the U.S. and Puerto Rico.
We also concentrate certain logistics expertidedations not associated with specific customessiFor example, our carrier procurement,
contract management, and freight bill audit andhpeyt services groups operate out of our carrierag@ment center. Additionally, our
transportation optimization and execution groupsrafe out of our logistics center, both of whickéhbocations in Novi, Michigan and Fort
Worth, Texas.

Canada. At December 31, 2012, we had 56 SCS customer atsand managed warehouse space totaling appretjniamillion
square feet. Given the proximity of this markebtw U.S. and Mexico operations, the Canadian ojpasare highly coordinated with their U.S.
and Mexico counterparts, managing cross-bordesp@mation and freight movements.

Mexico. We began operating in Mexico in the mid-1990sDatember 31, 2012 , we had 90 SCS customer accandtmanaged
warehouse space totaling approximately 4 milliguase feet. Our Mexico operations offer a full rarm§ SCS services and manage
approximately 11,300 border crossings each morttden Mexico and the U.S. and Canada, often higitgrated with our distribution and
transportation operations.

Asia. We began operating in Asia in 2000. Asia ke component of our retail strategy, where we fmuetwork of owned and agent
offices, with headquarters in Shanghai. At Decen®igr2012 , we had 43 SCS customer accounts andgedmwarehouse space totaling
approximately 280,000 square feet.

SCS Product Offerings

Distribution Management Our SCS business offers a wide range of seswvielating to a customer’s distribution operatifsam
designing a customer’s distribution network to ngang distribution facilities. Services within thadilities generally include managing the flow
of goods from the receiving function to the shigpfanction, coordinating warehousing and transpiomaor inbound and outbound material
flows, handling import and export for internatiosaipments, coordinating just-in-time replenishm&tomponent parts to manufacturing and
final assembly, and providing shipments to custodigribution centers or end-customer delivery miAdditional valueadded services such
light assembly of components into defined unitttifk), packaging and refurbishment are also predid-or the year ended December 31, 2012
distribution management solutions accounted for 8%ur SCS revenue.

(1) Armstrong & Associates Global logistics costth&d-party logistics revenue report, July 2012




Transportation Management Our SCS business offers services relatingl espects of a customer’s transportation network:. team of
transportation specialists provides shipment plaghiaind execution, which includes shipment optinvraioad scheduling and delivery
confirmation all through a series of technolog@atl web-based solutions. Our transportation coerstsltincluding our freight brokerage
department, focus on carrier procurement of all @soaf transportation with an emphasis on truck-dasesportation, rate negotiation, and
freight bill audit and payment services. In additiour SCS business provides customers as welrdsSMS business with capacity management
services that are designed to meet backhaul opptiesiand minimize excess miles. For the year émkxrember 31, 2012 , we purchased
and/or executed over $4.4 billion in freight moeasour customers behalf. For the year ended DeaeBih@012 , transportation management
solutions accounted for 9% of our SCS revenue.

Dedicated ServicesDedicated services are generally offered on a stdone basis or as part of an integrated supplin@wution to our
customers. The dedicated services offerings conthmequipment, maintenance and administrativeceesof a full service lease with drivers
and additional services. This combination providesistomer with a dedicated transportation solutianis designed to increase their
competitive position, improve risk management artdgrate their transportation needs with their alvasupply chain. Additional services
include routing and scheduling, fleet sizing, safetgulatory compliance, risk management, techiyobnd communication systems support
including on-board computers, and other technigppsrt. These additional services allow us to gteviigh service levels and efficient routing.
They also address the labor issues associatednwitfitaining a private fleet of vehicles, such aseatrturnover, government regulation,
including hours of service regulations, DOT auditsl workers' compensation. Our dedicated serviesian offers a high degree of
specialization to meet the needs of customers suitthisticated service requirements such as tightete windows, high-value or time-sensitive
freight, closed-loop distribution, multi-stop shipnts, specialized equipment or integrated tranapiort needs. Although a significant portion of
our dedicated services operations are locatedsabmer facilities, our dedicated business utilaed benefits from our extensive network of
FMS facilities. For the year ended December 31228pproximately 57% of our SCS revenue was relateldicated services.

Professional Services Our SCS business offers a variety of knowlelligsed services that support every aspect of aroes's supply
chain. Our SCS professionals are available to etala customer’s existing supply chain to ideritifficiencies, as well as opportunities for
integration and improvement. Once the assessmentigplete, we work with the customer to develop@py chain strategy that will create the
most value for the customer and their target die@nce a customer has adopted a supply chaiegraiur SCS logistics team, supported by
functional experts, and representatives from ofarination technology, real estate and finance gsauprk together to design a strategically
focused supply chain solution. The solution mayude both a network design that sets forth the ranribcation and function of key
components of the network and a transportatiortisolthat optimizes the mode or modes of transgortaand route selection. In addition to
providing the distribution and transportation exggernecessary to implement the supply chain smlutur SCS representatives can coordinate
and manage all aspects of the customer’s suppin ghavider network to assure consistency, efficieand flexibility. For the year ended
December 31, 2012 , knowledge-based professiondtse accounted for 4% of our SCS revenue.

SCS Business Strategy

Our SCS business strategy is to offer our custoiéfesentiated functional execution, and proacsedutions from deep expertise in key
industry verticals. The strategy revolves arouraftilowing interrelated goals and priorities:

*Providing customers with a differentiated qualifyservice and best execution through reliable gdiile supply chain solutior
*Developing capabilities that can be applied anlizat in all industry vertical

Creating a culture of innovation that fosters nex high value solutions for our customesspply chain neec

*Focusing on continuous improvement and standaidizadnc

» Successfully implement targeted sales and marketiagegie:

Competition

In the SCS business segment, we compete with @ fargber of companies providing similar servicasheof which has a different set of
core competencies. We compete with a handful gelamulti-service companies across all of our sereifferings and industries. We also
compete against other companies only on a speagfidgce offering (for example, in transportationnagement, distribution management or
dedicated services) or in a specific industry. \Atefdifferent competitors in each country or regidrere they may have a greater operational
presence. Competitive factors include price, setvitcarket knowledge, expertise in logistics-reldesthnology, and overall performance (e.g.
timeliness, accuracy, and flexibility).




ACQUISITIONS

In addition to our continued focus on organic groveicquisitions play an important role in enhana@nggrowth strategy. In assessing
potential acquisition targets in our FMS businexggent, we look for companies that would createeséthrough operating synergies, leveraging
our existing facility infrastructure, improving ogeographic coverage, diversifying our customeelzasl improving our competitive position in
target markets. In our SCS business segment, wis fae adding capabilities and product offeringgediifying our customer base within varis
industries and improving our competitive position.

We completed five FMS acquisitions from 2010 to20under which we acquired the company’s fleetb@mntractual customers. The
FMS acquisitions operate under Ryder’'s name angment our existing market coverage and servieaork. On August 1, 2012, we
acquired all of the common stock of Euroway LtdJ.K.-based, full service leasing, rental and neiance company which included Euroway's
fleet of approximately 560 full service lease védscas well as 800 contract maintenance vehicleslu@e 8, 2011, we acquired all of the
common stock of Hill Hire plc (Hill Hire), a U.K.ased full service leasing, rental and maintenanogpany which included Hill Hire’s fleet of
approximately 8,000 full service lease and 5,7660tal vehicles, and approximately 400 contractuatamers.

In SCS, we acquired Total Logistic Control, a leadprovider of comprehensive supply chain solutiimnfood, beverage, and consumer
packaged goods manufacturers with significant supipains in the U.S.

CYCLICALITY

Ryder's business is impacted by economic and madketitions. In a strong economic cycle, thereeisegally more demand for our truck
leasing/rental services and supply chain servioes weak or volatile economy, including the recectnomic downturn, demand for our
services decreases and is inconsistent and coaBlgenore unpredictable. Because of these fact@diave continued to focus on increasing
diversity of our customer base and growing contr@atevenue, which can mitigate the immediate imhp&an economic downturn. However,
notwithstanding the level of customer/industry dsity or the amount of our contractual revenuejrdpa protracted or severe economic
downturn, customers are often unwilling to commiatfull-service lease or long-term supply chaintcact, demand for our commercial rental
product and used vehicles declines. Because corrahegotal and used vehicle sales are transactitdma} are more cyclical in nature, and
results can vary significantly in both the shoriddong-term. We have a disciplined and centraleggproach to asset management that allows us
to manage the size, mix and location of our refteat and used vehicle inventories. These strageglewed us to mitigate some of the impact of
the recent deterioration in economic and marketlitimms.

ADMINISTRATION

Our financial administrative functions for the Uaid Canada, including credit, billing and colleos are consolidated into our Shared
Services Center operations, a centralized proggssinter located in Alpharetta, Georgia. Our Sh&edices Center also manages contracted
third parties providing administrative finance aupport services outside of the U.S. in order tluce ongoing operating expenses and
maximize our technology resources. This centrabmatesults in more efficient and consistent cdizied processing of selected administrative
operations. Certain administrative functions ase glerformed at the Shared Services Center focustomers. The Shared Services Center’s
main objectives are to mitigate the impact of tamsactional busines, enhance customer serviceghnorocess standardization, create an
organizational structure that will improve markeixfbility and allow future reengineering effortstbe more easily attained at lower
implementation costs.

REGULATION

Our business is subject to regulation by variodefal, state and foreign governmental entities. Départment of Transportation and
various federal and state agencies exercise brmadrp over certain aspects of our business, géneg@lerning such activities as authorization
to engage in motor carrier operations, safety arahtial reporting. We are also subject to a vardtrequirements of national, state, provincial
and local governments, including the U.S. EnvirontakProtection Agency and the Occupational Sadety Health Administration, that regul
safety, the management of hazardous materialsy @igtgharges and air emissions, solid waste disposhthe release and cleanup of regulated
substances. We may also be subject to licensingtiad requirements imposed by the U.S. Departmieidbmeland Security and U.S. Custo
Service as a result of increased focus on homedaadrity and our Customs-Trade Partnership Agdiesbrism certification. We may also
become subject to new or more restrictive regutatimposed by these agencies, or other authorétiasng to carbon controls and reporting,
engine exhaust emissions, drivers’ hours of sergeeurity and ergonomics.

ENVIRONMENTAL

We have always been committed to sound environrhprdatices that reduce risk and build value foand our customers. We have a
history of adopting “green” designs and processesise they are efficient, cost effective tranggior solutions that improve our bottom line
and bring value to our customers. We adopted ostrfiorldwide Environmental Policy mission in 199d have updated it periodically as
regulatory and customer needs have changed. Oupemental policy
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reflects our commitment to supporting the goalsusitainable development, environmental protectimhpollution prevention in our business.
We have adopted pro-active environmental stratebatshave advanced business growth and contirigdprrove our performance in ways that
reduce emission outputs and environmental impaat.e@vironmental team works with operating emplsytedevelop and administer progra

in support of our environmental policy and to hefisure that environmental considerations are iatedrinto all business processes and
decisions.

In establishing appropriate environmental objectigrd targets for our wide range of business &etvaround the world, we focus on (i)
the needs of our customers; (ii) the communitiestiich we provide services; and (iii) relevant laavel regulations. We regularly review and
update our environmental management proceduresnforchation regarding our environmental activitissoutinely disseminated throughout
Ryder. In 2012, we substantially expanded our emwvirental sustainability reporting with the publioatof our 2011 Corporate Sustainability
Report that includes expanded and enhanced diselgsas well as new metrics related to the ourenmiental performance for the years 2009
through 2011. The Report details our sustainalbdinless practices and environmental strategiesgoowe energy use, fuel costs and reduce
overall carbon emissions. In addition, we haveimtarily responded to the Carbon Disclosure Prd@EtP) since 2008, disclosing direct and
indirect emissions resulting from our operationsttBof these reports are publicly available onabepany website at www.ryder.com by
clicking on About Us and then selecting Sustairigbil

SAFETY

Our safety culture is founded upon a core commitrteethe safety, health and well-being of our egplss, customers, and the
community, a commitment that has made us an ingllesider in safety throughout our history.

Safety is an integral part of our business stratEgpause preventing injuries and collisions impsos@ployee quality of life, eliminates
service disruptions to our customers, increaseés@fty and improves customer satisfaction. Asra ealue, our focus on safety is a daily
regimen, reinforced by many safety programs andirmoous operational improvement and supported tayemted and dedicated safety
organization.

Training is a critical component of our safety panrg. Monthly safety training delivered by locatigeifety committees cover specific and
relevant safety topics and managers receive asafietly leadership training. Quarterly and remettigahing is also delivered online to each
driver through our highly interactive Ryder Pro-TAE comprehensive lesson platform. Regular safehabi®ral observations are conducted by
managers throughout the organization everyday emedial training and coaching takes place on-tlo¢-$jge also deploy state-of-the-art safety
technologies in Ryder vehicles and our safety pdicequire that all managers, supervisors anda@repk incorporate safe processes in all
aspects of our business. Monthly safety scoreamelracked and reviewed by management for progpessd key safety objectives. Our
proprietary web-based safety tracking system, Ryt@er delivers proactive safety programs tailooeevery location and helps measure safety
activity effectiveness across the organization.

EMPLOYEES

At December 31, 2012 , we had approximately 27fd0@ime employees worldwide, of which 26,100 weraployed in North America,
1,300 in Europe and 300 in Asia. We have approxipét7,000 hourly employees in the U.S., approxatya8,000 of which are organized by
labor unions. Those employees organized by labimnsrare principally represented by the Internai@rotherhood of Teamsters, the
International Association of Machinists and AeraspsVorkers, and the United Auto Workers, and tivaiges and benefits are governed by 87
labor agreements that are renegotiated periodicatiyne of the businesses in which we currently gadave experienced a material work
stoppage, slowdown or strike. We consider thatrelationship with our employees is good.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Name Age Position
Gregory T. Swienton 63 Chairman of the Board
Robert E. Sanchez 47 President and Chief Executive Officer
Art A. Garcia 51 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
Dennis C. Cooke 48 President, Global Fleet Management Solutions
Robert D. Fatovic 47 Executive Vice President, Chief Legal Officer amaf@rate Secretary
Cristina A. Gallo-Aquino 39 Vice President, Controller and Chief AccountingiCef
Gregory F. Greene 53 Executive Vice President and Chief Administrativiéicar
John H. Williford 56 President, Global Supply Chain Solutions

Gregory T. Swienton has been Chairman since Mag.2Rfeviously Mr. Swienton served as Chief Exeau@ifficer from November 20(
to December 2012. He also served as PresidentJoom 1999 to June 2005. Before joining Ryder, MiieBton was Senior Vice President of
Growth Initiatives of Burlington Northern Santa Eerporation (BNSF) and before that Mr. Swienton B&SF's Senior Vice President, Coal
and Agricultural Commodities Business Unit.

Robert E. Sanchez was promoted to Chief Executifieedin February 2012. Previously, Mr. Sanche/ed as Chief Operating Officer
from February 2012 to December 2012. He also pusiyoserved as President, Global Fleet ManagenwutiGns from September 2010 to
February 2012 and as Executive Vice President dmef €Einancial Officer from October 2007 to SeptemB010. He also previously served as
Executive Vice President of Operations, U.S. Fldahagement Solutions from October 2005 to OctoBé72xnd as Senior Vice President and
Chief Information Officer from January 2003 to Gmo 2005. Mr. Sanchez joined Ryder in 1993 andhledss various other positions.

Art A. Garcia has served as Executive Vice Predidad Chief Financial Officer since September 2@@viously, Mr. Garcia served as
Senior Vice President and Controller since Oct@®85 and as Vice President and Controller sinceuae 2002. Mr. Garcia joined Ryder in
December 1997 and has held various other positiithén Corporate Accounting.

Dennis C. Cooke has served as President, Global Mlanagement Solutions since February 2012. RuslipMr. Cooke served as Sen
Vice President and Chief of Operations, U.S. anda@a Fleet Management Solutions since July 201dr. erjoining Ryder, Mr. Cooke held
various positions with General Electric (GE) indhglVice President and General Manager of GE Heaitfis Global MRI business and Chief
Executive Officer of GE’s Security’s Homeland Puiten business.

Robert D. Fatovic has served as Executive ViceiRas Chief Legal Officer and Corporate Secretnge May 2004. He previously
served as Senior Vice President, U.S. Supply CBaierations, Hifech and Consumer Industries from December 2002ap2004. Mr. Fatovi
joined Ryde's Law department in 1994 as Assistant Division 3@l and has held various other positions withinlthw department including
Vice President and Deputy General Counsel.

Cristina A. Gallo-Aquino has served as Vice Prasid€ontroller and Chief Accounting Officer sincepfember 2010. Previously,
Ms. Gallo-Aquino served as Assistant Controllenfrlovember 2009 to September 2010, where she wspsnsible for Ryder’'s Corporate
Accounting, Benefits Accounting and Payroll Accangtdepartments. Ms. Gallo-Aquino joined Ryder @92 and has held various positions
within Corporate Accounting.

Gregory F. Greene has served as Chief Adminise&difficer since September 2010, as Executive ViesiBent since December 2006
as Chief Human Resources Officer since Februarg.2Rfeviously, Mr. Greene served as Senior VicsiBeat, Strategic Planning and
Development from April 2003 to February 2006. Mre€éne joined Ryder in August 1993 and has sina\eious positions within Human
Resources.

John H. Williford has served as President, Glohgl@y Chain Solutions since June 2008. Prior toifj Ryder, Mr. Williford founded
and served as President and Chief Executive Offit&olden Gate Logistics LLC from 2006 to June 0drom 2002 to 2005, he served as
President and Chief Executive Officer of Menlo VWwide, Inc., the supply chain business of CNF, From 2005 to 2006, Mr. Williford was
engaged as an advisor to Menlo Worldwide subseduoehe sale of Menlo Forwarding to United Parcaiv&e.

FURTHER INFORMATION

For further discussion concerning our businesstteeeaformation included in Items 7 and 8 of ttéport. Industry and market data used
throughout Item 1 was obtained through a compitatibsurveys and studies conducted by industryces,iconsultants and analysts.

We make available free of charge through the loreRelations page on our website at www.ryder.comfmnual Report on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current report&orm 8-K and all amendments to those reports as asoeasonably practicable after such
material is electronically filed with or furnishéal the Securities and Exchange
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Commission. The public may read and copy any natewe have filed with the SEC at the SEC's Puditerence Room at 100 F Street, NE,
Washington, DC 20549. Information on the operatibthe Public Reference Room may be obtained Hingahe SEC at 1-800-SEQ330. The
SEC maintains an Internet site that contains quonts, proxy and information statements, and olieloSEC filings. The address of the SEC's
web site is www.sec.gov.

In addition, our Corporate Governance Guidelinesdiples of Business Conduct (including our Fira@nde of Conduct), and Board
committee charters are posted on the CorporaterGawee page of our website at www.ryder.com.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
The following contains all known material risks tleauld affect our business.

Our business and operating results could be advenyeaffected by uncertain or unfavorable economic ad industry conditions.

Ryder's operating results are affected by cyckcanomic and market conditions in the U.S. andajlgbin a weak or volatile economy,
demand for our contractual services decreases agminconsistent and less predictable as cussoaneroften unwilling to commit to full-
service leases or long-term supply chain contréatsordingly, any sustained weakness in demandppotacted economic downturn can
negatively impact our business. Although custonmeettainty can serve to increase demand for onsaetional services, including commercial
rental and used vehicles sales, which do not irestmg-term commitments, these product lines aneigdly more cyclical due to their
transactional nature, and results can vary in tiatshort- and long-term.

2012 was a period of economic softness and unogrtale experienced unexpected weakness in comaheecital demand, particularly
the first half of the year. Although demand for coercial rental has appeared to stabilize, givervthatility in the market, rental demand may
again decline unexpectedly, and possibly signitigam 2013.

As the year progressed, we saw signs of a genavabenic slowdown and reports of negative impactthertransportation industry.
Despite facing a challenging economic environmeut,full service contractual lease business impiare2012. Although we experienced
growth in full service lease, our customers séithain cautious about entering into long-term leddasertainty and lack of customer confidence
around macroeconomic and transportation industngitions may continue to impact our future growtbgpects.

Challenging economic and market conditions may edsalt in:
«difficulty forecasting, budgeting and planning dodimited visibility into the spending plans ofrcent or prospective custome
eincreased competition for fewer projects and safgmrtunities
epressure that may adversely affect revenue and gnasgin
*higher overhead costs as a percentage of rex
eincreased risk of charges relating to asset impaits) including goodwill and other intangible as;
«customer financial difficulty and increased riskunfcollectible accounts receivat
eadditional fleet downsizing which could adversehpiact profitability
eincreased risk of declines in the residual valdesuo vehicles; an
*sudden changes in fuel prices and fuel shortageshwnay adversely impact total vehicle miles dnilay our customer
In addition, volatility in the global credit anchfincial markets may lead to:
eunanticipated interest rate and currency exchaaigefluctuation:
eincreased risk of default by counterparties undgivdtive instruments and hedging agreements
«diminished liquidity and credit availability resuy in higher shorterm borrowing costs and more stringent borrowergs

Because of the uncertain economic environment, ax eontinue to be impacted by the residual effetthe unfavorable macroeconomic
and industry conditions that have persisted ovetaht few years. If these conditions continueuothier weaken, our business and results of
operations could be materially adversely affected.

We bear the residual risk on the value of our vehies.

We generally bear the residual risk on the valueufvehicles. Therefore, if the market for usebigles declines, or our vehicles are not
properly maintained, we may obtain lower sales @eds upon the sale of used vehicles. We sell ad wshicles through various channels,
including retail sales centers, at our branch looat through our website atwvw.UsedTrucks.Ryder.cgras well as through the wholesale
market. Pricing and demand for used vehicles vamesng selling channels, particularly between éteilrand wholesale markets, as we
generally obtain lower proceeds on vehicles sold




wholesale. If we are unable to meet our targetset ffounts through our projected mix of retail usreholesale sales, we may be required tc
more vehicles than planned by wholesale, whichiwifact our sales proceeds.

Changes in residual values also impact the oveoatipetitiveness of our full service lease proding, las estimated sales proceeds are a
significant component of the overall price of teade. Additionally, technology changes and sudanges in supply and demand together with
other market factors beyond our control vary fromaryto year and from vehicle to vehicle, makingjfficult to accurately predict residual valt
used in calculating our depreciation expense. Algiowe have developed disciplines related to theagement and maintenance of our vehicles
that are designed to prevent these losses, thatedssurance that these practices will sufficyerattiuce the residual risk. For a detailed
discussion on our accounting policies and assumgtielating to depreciation and residual valuesag# see the section titled “Critical
Accounting Estimates - Depreciation and Residudli®&uarantees” in Management's Discussion andy&isabf Financial Condition and
Results of Operations.

Our profitability could be adversely impacted by ou inability to maintain appropriate commercial rent al utilization rates through our
asset management initiatives.

We typically do not purchase vehicles for our &dtvice lease product line until we have an execabatract with a customer. However,
in our commercial rental product line, we purchaskicles and optimize the size and mix of the consiakrental fleet based upon our
expectations of overall market demand. As a readtbear the risk for ensuring that we have th@@reehicles in the right condition and
location to effectively capitalize on market demamdrder to drive the highest levels of utilizatiand revenue per unit. We employ a sales 1
and operations team on a full-time basis to mamaageoptimize this product line; however, their eéfanay not be sufficient to overcome a
significant change in market demand in the rentairess.

Volatility in assumptions and asset values relatetb our pension plans may reduce our profitability and adversely impact current funding
levels.

We historically sponsored a number of defined biep&fns for employees in the U.S., U.K. and offoeeign locations. In recent years,
we made amendments to defined benefit plans whide fthe retirement benefits for non-grandfathersdl certain non-union employees. Our
major defined benefit plans are funded, with tasstets invested in a diversified portfolio. Thehoesntributions made to our defined benefit
plans are required to comply with minimum fundieguirements imposed by employee benefit and tag.|latve projected benefit obligation
and assets of our global defined benefit plans 8eoember 31, 2012 were $2.2 billion and $1.6duill, respectively. The difference between
plan obligations and assets, or the funded stdttleglans, is a significant factor in determinjpgnsion expense and the ongoing funding
requirements of those plans. Macroeconomic fac&wsyell as changes in investment returns and uligcates used to calculate pension exg
and related assets and liabilities can be volatik may have an unfavorable impact on our costduantling requirements. Although we have
actively sought to control increases in these castsfunding requirements through investment pediéind plan contributions, there can be no
assurance that we will succeed, and continuedpressure could reduce the profitability of our bess and negatively impact our cash flows.

We also patrticipate in eleven U.S. multi-employengion (MEP) plans that provide defined benefitsrtgployees covered by collective
bargaining agreements. In the event that we withidram participation in one of these plans, thepligable law could require us to make an
additional lump-sum contribution to the plan. Outhdrawal liability for any MEP plan would depend the extent of the plan's funding of
vested benefits. Economic conditions have causeB pl&ns to be significantly underfunded. If theafigial condition of the MEP plans were to
continue to deteriorate, participating employensldde subject to additional assessments.

We operate in a highly regulated industry, and costof compliance with, or liability for violation of, existing or future regulations could
significantly increase our costs of doing business.

Our business is subject to regulation by variodeffal, state and foreign governmental agenciesélhgencies could institute new laws,
rules or regulations or issue interpretation changeexisting regulations at any time. We have atsn an increase in proactive enforcement of
existing regulations by some entities. Compliandb wew laws, rules or regulations could substégtimpair labor and equipment productivity
and increase our costs. Conversely, our failuetoply with any applicable laws, rules or regulatido which we are subject, whether actual or
alleged, could expose us to fines, penalties cergial litigation liabilities, including costs, sietments, and judgments. We are also subject to
reputational risk and other detrimental businessequences associated with noncompliance, suaghgsyees, customers, agents, suppliers or
other persons using our supply chain or assetsrtorit illegal acts, including the use of companyeds for terrorist activities, or a breach of
data privacy laws, the ongoing development of wiicthe U.S. and other jurisdictions may requiraraifes to our data security policies and
procedures to comply with new standards.

10




DOT and Other Regulatory AuthoritieBhe U.S. Department of Transportation and varidatesand federal agencies exercise broad
powers over our motor carrier operations, safetg,the generation, handling, storage, treatment&pbsal of waste materials. We may also
become subject to new or more restrictive regutatimposed by the Department of TransportationQtbeupational Safety and Health
Administration, the Department of Homeland Secuaitg U.S. Customs Service, the Environmental Pliotedgency or other authorities,
relating to the hours of service that our driveesymprovide in any one-time period, homeland seguc#rbon emissions and reporting and other
matters.

Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration CSA Bram.In 2010, the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Admirmistn (FMCSA) began
implementation of the Compliance, Safety, Accouititglprogram (CSA), a compliance and enforcemeittdtive partnering with State
agencies designed to monitor and improve commeretaicle motor safety. The CSA program includesfey Measurement System (SMS)
that uses roadside inspections and violations tsome motor carriers and drivers and publishessaetated to these inspections and violation
that compare the motor carriers and drivers agamsts. The FMCSA established thresholds for ehsbwen different measurement areas that
identify potential safety risks and result in diretervention or enforcement action. Ryder's mli#id scores are below the thresholds, but if
performance changed, we could risk intervention ithay create risk to the businesses operating gtytho

Labor.We maintain operations and employees in numeratsssthroughout the U.S., which are governed bgréddnd state labor and
employment laws and regulations relating to comatimis, benefits, healthcare and various workplasees, all of which are applicable to our
employees, and in some cases, independent comg:aState labor and employment rules vary fromedtastate and in some states, require us tc
meet much stricter standards than required in afates. Although we are generally protected froavipus action taken by the sellers of these
businesses, any existing regulatory deficienciegdcionpact the value of the business purchasea, A¥ge are or may become subject to various
class-action lawsuits related to wage and houatitmhs and improper pay in certain states. Unféhlerar unanticipated outcomes in any of the
lawsuits could subject us to increased costs apddtrour profitability. Also we are or may becorbject to various class-action lawsuits
related to wage and hour violations and impropgripaertain states.

International.We currently operate in Canada, Europe, MexicoAsid, where we are subject to compliance with |é@ats and regulato
requirements of foreign jurisdictions, including#b tax laws, and compliance with the Federal QurRractices Act. Local laws and regulatory
requirements may vary significantly from countryctauntry. Customary levels of compliance with loegjulations and the tolerance for
noncompliance by regulatory authorities may alsy wradifferent countries and geographical locasioand impact our ability to successfully
implement our compliance and business initiativesartain jurisdictions. Also, adherence to rigartacal laws and regulatory requirements
limit our ability to expand into certain internatia markets and result in residual liability fog#é claims and tax disputes arising out of
previously discontinued operations.

EnvironmentalRegulations governing exhaust emissions that haee bnacted over the last few years could adveirsplgct our
business. The Environmental Protection Agency (EB#)ed regulations that required progressive téghgin exhaust emissions from certain
diesel engines from 2007 through 2010. Emissicasdstrds require reductions in the sulfur contentiesel fuel since June 2006. Also, the first
phase of progressively stringent emissions stasdaidting to emissions after-treatment devicesintasduced on newly-manufactured engines
and vehicles utilizing engines built after Janukr007. The second phase, which required an addltaftertreatment system, became effec
after January 1, 2010. We face additional technotitgainges under EPA regulations that will go irffect in 2014 and 2017, which will require
modifications to existing vehicle chassis and eagiombinations. The 2014 and 2017 regulationsregjlire reductions in carbon dioxide,
which can only be reduced by improving fuel econpamd which requires compliance with different esiias standards for both engines and
chassis, based on vocation. OEMs may be requiredstall additional engine componentry, additioaafodynamics on chassis, and low-rolling
resistance tires to comply with the upcoming retiortes
which may result in a shorter useful tread life ameased operating costs for us. Although custemmay see reduced fuel consumption under
the new standards, this could be offset by incietéisel costs on a per gallon basis. Each of thegeirements could result in higher prices for
vehicles, diesel engines, fuel vehicle maintenawbégh are passed on to our customers, as welgagihmaintenance costs and uncertainty
reliability of the new engines, all of which coulaljer time, increase our costs and adversely aff@cbusiness and results of operations. The
new technology may also impact the residual vati¢sese vehicles when sold in the future. Futegatation of other environmental matters,
including potential limits on carbon emissions undénate-change legislation, could also impactlousiness and profitability if enacted.

We and the vehicle and equipment manufacturers inw FMS business rely on a small number of suppliets

We buy vehicles and related equipment from a radtismall number of original equipment manufactsif@®@EMS) in our FMS business
purchase our vehicles and vehicle parts. Furtlengsof our vehicle manufacturers rely on a smaikentration of suppliers for certain vehicle
parts, components and equipment. A discrete emempirticular OEM's or supplier's industry or kbma, or adverse regional economic
conditions impacting an OEM or supplier's abiliyprovide vehicles or a particular component caddersely impact our FMS business and
profitability. In addition, our business and
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reputation could also be negatively impacted if pasts, components or equipment from one of ouplgens suffer from broad-based quality
control issues or become the subject of a prodigetlrand we are unable to obtain replacement frarts another supplier in a timely manner.

We derive a significant portion of our SCS revenuéom a relatively small number of customers.

During 2012, sales to our top ten SCS customergsepting all of the industry groups we servicepaated for 43% of our SCS total
revenue and 41% of our SCS operating revenue (veviess subcontracted transportation). Additionalpproximately 30% of our global SCS
revenue is from the automotive industry and isadiyjgmpacted by automotive vehicle production. Toes of any of these customers or a
significant reduction in the services provided ty af these customers could impact our operatiodsaaversely affect our SCS financial resi
In addition, our largest SCS customers can exevhda@rd pricing pressure and often require modiicet to our standard commercial terms.
While we believe our ongoing cost reduction inities have helped mitigate the effect of price réidacpressures from our SCS customers, 1
is no assurance that we will be able to maintaimgrove profitability in those accounts. In 20%& further diversified our customer base with
the acquisition of TLC, which is concentrated ia tonsumer packaged goods industry. While we caatia focus our efforts on diversifying
our customer base we may not be successful in dairig the short-term.

We are also subject to credit risk associated thithconcentration of our accounts receivable from3CS customers. If one or more of
these customers were to become bankrupt, insobrestherwise were unable to pay for the servicesiged by us, we may incur significant
write-offs of accounts receivable or incur leasagset impairment charges that could adverselgtadier operating results and financial
condition.

In addition, many of our customers operate in cgtlor seasonal industries, or operate in indusstimeluding the food and beverage
industry, that may be impacted by unanticipatedtheragrowing conditions (such as drought, insectdisease), natural disasters and other
conditions over which we have no control. A downtur our customers' business cycles or unantidgipavents impacting their businesses could
cause a reduction in freight volume shipped byelmsstomers or a reduction in their need for ous Sé€rvices.

We operate in a highly competitive industry and ourbusiness may suffer if we are unable to adequatefddress potential downward
pricing pressures and other competitive factors.

Numerous competitive factors could impair our &pild maintain our current profitability. These fais include the following:
eour inability to obtain expected customer retent@rels or sales growth targe

eadvances in technology require increased invessriertemain competitive, and our customers mayaatilling to accept higher prices
to cover the cost of these investments, and owtaéipn with our customers may suffer if outaggstem failures or delays in timely
access to data occur in legacy information techgyokystems that support key business processes;

*we compete with many other transportation and tamgiservice providers, some of which have greeapital resources than we
scustomers may choose to provide the services waderdor themselve

*some of our competitors periodically reduce theicgs to gain business, and some of our smallepetitors may have lower cost
structures than we do, which may limit our abitiblymaintain or increase prices; and

*because cost of capital is a significant competifactor, any increase in either our debt or equosst of capital as a result of reduction
our debt rating or stock price volatility could lea& significant impact on our competitive position.

Our profitability could be negatively impacted if the key assumptions and pricing structure prove to & invalid.

Substantially all of our lease and maintenanceices\and our SCS services are provided under ataélearrangements with our
customers. The pricing structure for our lease@ndract maintenance business is based on cessumgptions regarding capital costs,
maintenance expense over the life of the contrasigdual values, productivity and and the mix g&fl and variable costs, many of which are
derived from historical data and trends. Under nebsiur SCS contracts, all or a portion of our jpigcis based on certain assumptions regarding
the scope of services, production volumes, operatiefficiencies, the mix of fixed versus variabtests, productivity and other factors.

If we are incorrect in our assumptions, or as alted subsequent changes in our customers' busimessds or operations or market forces
that are outside of our control, these assumptiooge to be invalid, we could have lower margirentanticipated. Although certain of our SCS
contracts provide for renegotiation upon a mateti@nge, there is no assurance that we will beesséal in obtaining the necessary price
adjustments.
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We establish self-insurance reserves based on histal loss development factors, which could lead tadjustments in the future based on
actual development experience.

We retain a portion of the accident risk under gkehiiability and workers' compensation insuranoegpams. Our self-insurance accruals
are based on actuarially estimated, undiscountetof@laims, which includes claims incurred but reported. While we believe that our
estimation processes are well designed, every atimprocess is inherently subject to limitatioRksictuations in the frequency or severity of
accidents make it difficult to precisely predicethitimate cost of claims. The actual cost of ckagan be different than the historical selected
loss development factors because of safety perfice)gpayment patterns and settlement patternsa 8etailed discussion on our accounting
policies and assumptions relating to our self-iasae reserves, please see the section titled ¢alrificcounting Estimates - Self-Insurance
Accruals” in Management's Discussion and AnalygBionancial Condition and Results of Operations.

We may face difficulties in attracting and retaining drivers and technicians and may face issues withur union employees.

We hire drivers primarily for our SCS business segtrand the DCC product line. There is signifiaaorhpetition for qualified drivers in
the transportation industry. Additionally, intertiems and enforcement under the CSA program maglstire industry's pool of drivers as those
drivers with unfavorable scores could leave theigty. As a result of driver shortages, we coulddspiired to increase driver compensation, let
trucks sit idle, utilize lower quality drivers cade difficulty meeting customer demands, all ofekhdould adversely affect our growth and
profitability.

Similarly, we hire technicians in our FMS businesgment to perform vehicle maintenance servicesuotease, contract maintenance
rental fleets. Recently there has been a decraake pverall supply of skilled maintenance tectams, particularly new technicians with
qualifications from technical programs and schowtsich could make it more difficult to attract arefain skilled technicians. We have 3,000
employees that are organized by labor unions wivagges and benefits are governed by 87 labor agrésrtiat are renegotiated periodically.
Some of the businesses in which we currently enpage experienced a material work stoppage, slowmdovstrike. Our business and
operations could be impacted in the event of lalrkes or work stoppages involving our employeggmnoized by labor unions in our FMS or
SCS business segments.

Changes in lease accounting or other regulations mampact our customers' leasing decisions.

Demand for our full service lease product lineasdd in part on customers' decisions to leaserrtitae buy vehicles. A number of factors
can impact whether customers decide to lease ovéhigles, including accounting considerations,ttagatment, interest rates and operational
flexibility. In 2010, the Financial Accounting Stdards Board issued a proposed update to accowsitingards that would involve a new
approach to lease accounting that differs fromesurpractice. Most notably, the new approach welitdinate off-balance sheet treatment of
leases and require lessees to record leased asgétsir balance sheets. If the proposed accoustarglard becomes effective in its current fi
it could be perceived to make leasing a less ditteoption for some of our full service lease ousérs.

Other changes in accounting rules, estimates, gtgams and accruals and changes in current finhrialaor regulatory requirements to
which we are subject could also negatively impacthusiness.
Our international operations subject us to operatimal and financial risks.

We provide services outside of the U.S., which acisjour business to various risks, including chang tariffs, trade restrictions, trade
agreements and taxes; difficulties in managingverseeing foreign operations and agents; foreigrenay fluctuations and limitations on the
repatriation of funds due to foreign currency colstrdifferent liability standards; and intellectpaoperty laws of countries that do not protect
our rights in intellectual property to the sameeexias the laws of the U.S. The occurrence or cpesees of any of these factors may restrict
our ability to operate in the affected region andiecrease the profitability of our operationshattregion. Also, if we do not correctly anticipate
changes in international economic and politicaldittons, we may not alter our business practicesmne to avoid adverse effects.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Our properties consist primarily of vehicle mairaaoe and repair facilities, warehouses and otlaestate and improvements.

We maintain 612 FMS properties in the U.S., PuRitm and Canada; we own 392 of these and leageitigining 220. Our FMS
properties are primarily comprised of maintenarsalifies generally including a repair shop, rem@linter, fuel service island administrative
offices, and used vehicle retail sales centers.

Additionally, we manage 175 on-site maintenancéifies, located at customer locations.

We also maintain 128 locations in the U.S. and @armia connection with our domestic SCS businessoat all of our SCS locations are
leased and generally include a warehouse and astnaitive offices.

We maintain 105 international locations (locationsside of the U.S. and Canada) for our internalibnsinesses. These locations are in
the U.K., Luxembourg, Germany, Mexico, China armag&pore. The majority of these locations are leaseldmay be a repair shop, warehouse
or administrative office.

Additionally, we maintain 8 U.S. locations primgriised for Central Support Services. These faaslitire generally administrative offices,
of which we own one and lease the remaining seven.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
We are involved in various claims, lawsuits and mistrative actions arising in the normal cours@of businesses. Some involve claims
for substantial amounts of money and/or claimfaoritive damages. While any proceeding or litigati@as an element of uncertainty,
management believes that the disposition of sudtensain the aggregate, will not have a matengdact on our consolidated financial condit
or liquidity.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Ryder Common Stock Prices

Stock Price Dividends per
High Low Common Share

2012

First quarter $57.62 51.41 0.29
Second quarter 54.2¢ 33.9¢ 0.29
Third quarter 43.3¢ 32.7¢ 0.31
Fourth quarter 51.01 38.6¢ 0.31
2011

First quarter $53.62 45.9: 0.27
Second quarter 57.0¢ 49.3: 0.27
Third quarter 60.3¢ 37.51] 0.29
Fourth quarter 54.3¢ 34.2¢ 0.29

Our common shares are listed on the New York Skoathange under the trading symbol “R.” At Janudry2013 , there were 8,608
common stockholders of record and our stock pritéhe New York Stock Exchange was $56.78 .
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the performance ofcamnmon stock with the performance of the StandaRbor’'s 500 Composite Stock
Index and the Dow Jones Transportation 20 Index fiore year period by measuring the changes imeomstock prices from December 31,
2007 to December 31, 2012 .

135 -
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60
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
+Ryder System, Inc. $100.00 83.91 91.87 120.55 124.42 120.04
=S&P 500 Index $100.00 63.01 79.69 91.71 93.62 108.59
+Dow Jones Index $100.00 78.59 93.22 118.20 118.18 127.10

The stock performance graph assumes for compatistithe value of the Company’s Common Stock arehoh index was $100 on
December 31, 2007 and that all dividends were esited. Past performance is not necessarily anaitodiof future results.
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Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table provides information with regpé& purchases we made of our common stock dtineghree months ended
December 31, 2012 :

Total Number of Maximum Number
Shares Purchased as of Shares That May
Total Number Average Price Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased
of Shares Paid per Announced Under the Anti-Dilutive
Purchased® Share Program Program @
October 1 through October 31, 2012 3,93¢ $44.4C — 1,456,07
November 1 through November 30, 2012 5,691 45.4C — 1,456,07
December 1 through December 31, 2012 4,164 42.5: — 1,456,07

Total 13,79« $44.2¢ —

(1) During the three months endDecember 31, 2012 , we purchased an aggregate,@943hares of our common stock in employee-relaéedactions. Employee-related
transactions may include: (i) shares of commonlstislivered as payment for the exercise price tibop exercised or to satisfy the option holdeax withholding liability
associated with our share-based compensation progrand (ii) open-market purchases by the trustd®yder’'s deferred compensation plans relating t@stments by
employees in our stock, one of the investmentmmptwailable under the plans.

(2) In December 2011, our Board of Directors authorizeshare repurchase program intended to mitigageditutive impact of shares issued under our vaiemployee stoc
stock option and employee stock purchase plansetthé December 2011 program, management is aathdtio repurchase shares of common stock in an iatnmad to
exceed the number of shares issued to employees tedCompany various employee stock, stock option and emplstpet purchase plans from December 1, 2011 thr
December 13, 2013. The December 2011 program legigsegate share repurchases to no more 12 million shares of Ryder common stock. Share @mses of common
stock are made periodically in open-market transact and are subject to market conditions, legguieements and other factors. Management estakliginearranged
written plans for the Company under Rule 10b5-thefSecurities Exchange Act of 1934 as part oDteeember 2011 program, which allow for share repases during
Ryde’s quarterly blackout periods as set forth in th@ding plan. For the three months ended DecembeRB12 , we did not repurchase any shares undsrgtogram.
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Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table includes information as of Deteer 31, 2012 about certain plans which providegHerissuance of common stock in

connection with the exercise of stock options atheioshare-based awards.

Number of Securities to be

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Future Issuance Under Equ

issued upon Exercise of  Weighed-Average Exercise Compensation Plans
Outstanding Options, Price of Outstanding Options, Excluding Securities

Warrants and Rights

Warrants and Rights Reflected in Column (a)

Plans

@ (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrstd
Broad based employee stock plans 3,804,932 @ $46.43 ® 3,450,340
Employee stock purchase plan — — 655,759
Non-employee directors' stock plans 169,721 @ 37.24 ® 39,802
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechdtglers — — —
Total 3,974,653 $46.36 4,145,901

(1) Includes 681,333 time-vested and performancethaestricted stock awards

(2) Includes 144,721 restricted stock units
(3) Weighted-average exercise price of outstandjotipns, excludes restricted stock awards and ietstl stock units
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
The following selected consolidated financial imf@tion should be read in conjunction with Iltems@ 8 of this report.

Years ended December 31
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

(Dollars and shares in thousands, except per stmoents)
Operating Data:

Revenue $ 6,256,96' 6,050,53 5,136,43! 4,887,25. 5,999,04
Earnings from continuing operations $  200,89¢ 171,36¢ 124,60t 90,117 257,57¢
Comparable earnings from continuing operati@hs $ 207,44! 180,63( 116,98t 94,63( 267,14
Net earning$2) $ 209,97¢ 169,77 118,17( 61,94¢ 199,88:
Per Share Data:
Earnings from continuing operations -Diluted $ 3.91 3.31 2.37 1.6Z 4.51
Comparable earnings from continuing operationsutbd(1) $ 4.04 3.4¢ 2.2z 1.7¢C 4.6¢
Net earnings -Dilute(®?) $ 4.0¢ 3.2¢ 2.2¢ 1.11 3.5C
Cash dividends $ 1.2C 1.1z 1.04 0.9¢ 0.9z
Book value®3) $ 28.57 25.71 27.4s 26.71 2417
Financial Data:
Total assets $ 8,318,97 7,617,83! 6,652,37. 6,259,83 6,689,50!
Average assel9) $ 8,123,50i 7,251,85. 6,366,64 6,507,43. 6,924,34.
Return on average assets (%) 2.€ 2.3 1.¢ 1.C 2.8
Long-term debt $ 3,452,82 3,107,77 2,326,87: 2,265,07. 2,478,53
Total debt $ 3,820,79 3,382,14! 2,747,00: 2,497,69. 2,862,79
Shareholders’ equit{p) $ 1,467,448 1,318,15: 1,404,31. 1,426,99! 1,345,16
Debt to equity (%)3) 26C 257 19¢ 17k 21z
Average shareholders’ equi§). (4) $ 1,406,60! 1,428,04: 1,401,68 1,395,62' 1,778,48
Return on average shareholders’ equity (%) (4) 14.¢ 11.¢€ 8.4 4.4 11.2
Adjusted return on average capital (%) (5) 5.€ 5.7 4.¢ 4.1 7.3
Net cash provided by operating activities of cauitiig
operations $ 1,134,12. 1,041,95i 1,028,03. 984,95t 1,248,16
Free cash flow6) $ (384,24() (256,77)) 257,57: 614,09( 340,66!
Capital expenditures paid $ 2,133,223 1,698,58! 1,070,09. 651,95: 1,230,40.
Other Data:
Average common shares — Diluted 50,74( 50,87¢ 51,88¢ 55,09« 56,53¢
Number of vehicles — Owned and leased 172,50( 169,90( 148,70( 152,40( 163,40(
Average number of vehicles — Owned and leased 173,70( 160,90( 150,70( 159,50( 161,50(
Number of employees 27,70( 27,50( 25,90( 22,90( 28,00(

(1) Nor-GAAP financial Measure. Refer to the sectionditi®verview” and “Non-GAAP Financial Measuresh ltem 7 of this report for a reconciliation of mparable earning
from continuing operations to net earning from ¢oning operations

(2) Netearnings ir2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008 included eamntasses) from discontinued operations of $ Yionil] or $0.18 per diluted common share, $(2) wrillj or
$(0.03) per diluted common share, $(6) million $¢@.12) per diluted common share, $(28) milli@n $(0.51) per diluted common share, and $(58)iamil| or $(1.01) per
diluted common share, respectively.

(3) Shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2012 , 210 , 2009 and 2008 reflected after-tax equityrgha of $645 million , $595 million , $423 millip$412 million , and
$480 million , respectively, related to our pensé@md postretirement plans.

(4) Amounts were computed using &point average based on quarterly informati

(5) Our adjusted return on capital (ROC), a non-GAARaficial measure, represents the rate of return ggeed by the capital deployed in our business. WeROC as an
internal measure of how effectively we use thetabjpivested (borrowed or owned) in our operatioRefer to the section titled “Non-GAAP Financial &eres” in Item 7 of
this report for a reconciliation of return on aveya shareholders’ equity to adjusted return on ageraapital.

(6) Refer to the section title‘Financial Resources and Liquidityih Item 7 of this report for a reconciliation of tneash provided by operating activities to freefcésw.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following Management's Discussion and Analydi§inancial Condition and Results of Operation®@A) should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statetseand related notes contained in Item 8 of #gi®rt on Form 10-K. The following MD&A
describes the principal factors affecting resultsperations, financial resources, liquidity, catual cash obligations, and critical accounting
estimates. The information presented in the MD&#4oisthe years ended December 31, 2012 , 2011 @hd @nless otherwise noted.

OVERVIEW

Ryder System, Inc. (Ryder) is a global leaderamgportation and supply chain management solut@usbusiness operates in highly
competitive markets. Our customers select us baseaimerous factors including service quality, @riechnology, and service offerings. As an
alternative to using our services, customers mapsh to provide these services for themselves agrahoose to obtain similar or alternative
services from other third-party vendors. Our cusgphase includes enterprises operating in a vaofetydustries including automotive, food
service, electronics, transportation, consumer agett goods, grocery, lumber and wood productshamne furnishing.

We operate in two business segments: Fleet Managedodutions (FMS), which provides full servicedesy, contract maintenance,
contract-related maintenance and commercial reftalicks, tractors and trailers to customers ppiaity in the U.S., Canada and the U.K.; and
Supply Chain Solutions (SCS), which provides compnsive supply chain consulting including distribntand transportation services in North
America and Asia. The SCS segment also providesaked contract carriage (DCC) services, whichudek vehicles and drivers as part of a
dedicated transportation solution in the U.S. Piaad2012, DCC was reported as a separate busiege®est. In 2012, SCS and DCC were
combined as a result of aligning our internal réipgrwith how we operate our business. While thiarge did not impact our consolidated
results, segment data for prior periods have beeast to be consistent with the current year ptaten.

The FMS business segment is our largest segmer8. flevenue and assets in 2012 were $3.98 billior$@rb billion , respectively,
representing 64% of our consolidated revenue aftl &consolidated assets. SCS revenue in 2012 a8 $illion , representing 36% of our
consolidated revenue.

In 2012, we delivered revenue and earnings growth in baliness segments despite an uncertain economiateli Consolidated reven
grew 3% and earnings from continuing operationsvgt@% . In our contractual business, the largestypet line, full service lease, showed
organic fleet growth and our SCS business segnhemted solid revenue growth. Used vehicle salesimoad to perform exceptionally well,
showing improvement not only in volumes, but comdiag better pricing as well. We also achieved dtppesspread between our return on
capital and cost of capital, and our return on tyquiproved by 300 basis points to 14.9% .

Total revenue was $6.26 billion , up 3% from $6oiibon in 2011 . Operating revenue (total revetess FMS fuel and subcontracted
transportation) was $5.07 billion in 2012 , up 5@perating revenue increased primarily due to doygrowth in both the FMS and SCS
business segments.

Earnings before income taxes (EBT) from continwopgrations increased 8% in 2012 to $303 milliohe improvement in EBT was
primarily due to organic growth in the FMS and S&&g§ments and the Hill Hire acquisition completedune 2011. Acquisitions accounted for
5% of year-over-year EBT growth. However, thesedases were partially offset by lower commerciatakperformance and higher pension
costs. EBT also included restructuring and othemét of $17 million . Earnings from continuing oginas increased 17% to $201 million in
2012 and earnings per diluted common share (EB8) éontinuing operations increased 18% to $3.9jheted common share reflecting a
lower income tax rate on higher EBT.

EBT, earnings and EPS from continuing operationkigred certain items we do not consider indicatizeur ongoing operations and have
been excluded from our comparable earnings meaBhesfollowing discussion provides a summary of2B&2 and 2011 items which are
discussed in more detail throughout our MD&A anthin the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - (Co ntinued)

Continuing Operations

Earnings Before Diluted Earnings
Income Taxes (EBT) Earnings per Share (EPS)
(Dollars in thousands except per share amounts)
2012
Earnings/EPS from Continuing Operations $303,117 $200,89¢ $3.91
Restructuring and other charges 8,07( 5,26: 0.11
Superstorm Sandy vehicle-related los$8es 8,23( 5,117 0.1C
Acquisition-related transaction co$ts 36¢€ 271 —
Charge related to tax law change in the U.K — 85¢€ 0.0z
Tax benefit associated with resolution of priorrye item — (4,967 (0.10
Comparable? $319,78¢ $207,44¢ $4.04
2011
Earnings/EPS from Continuing Operations $279,38 $171,36¢ $3.31
Restructuring and other charges 3,65¢ 2,48¢ 0.0t
Acquisition-related transaction costs 2,13¢ 1,991 0.04
Charge related to tax law change in Michigan — 5,35( 0.1C
Tax benefit from acquisition-related transactiostso — (56¢) (0.01)
Comparablé? $285,17¢ $180,63( $3.49

(1) Refer to Note 26, “Other Items Impacting Comihility,” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial &aments.
(2) Non-GAAP financial measure. We believe comparabrnings from continuing operations and compéeaarnings per diluted common share from contiguwperations measures provide useful
information to investors because they exclude Sagmit items that are unrelated to our ongoing Inesis operations.

Excluding the items listed above, comparable egsfrom continuing operations increased 15% to $80ifon in 2012 and increased
54% to $181 million in 2011 . Comparable EPS framtinuing operations increased 16% to $4.04 in 204®257% to $3.49 per diluted
common share, respectively.

Net earnings (including discontinued operationsjéased 24% in 2012 to $210 million or $4.09 pkrted common share.

Free cash flow from continuing operations was rieg&t384 million in 2012 compared to negative $2ilfion in 2011 . The decline was
driven by higher vehicle spending. We made pensamiributions of approximately $81 million and ieesed our annual dividend by 11% to
$1.24 per share of common stock.

Capital expenditures increased 23% to $2.16 biiliv2012 and reflects planned investments to fudéhtractual full service lease sales
made to customers that are renewing and growirigfteets with Ryder. Our debt balance increase¥ 18 $3.82 billion at December 31, 2012
due to higher vehicle capital spending levels. @bt to equity ratio also increased to 260% from%25n 2011 Our total obligations (includin
off-balance sheet debt) to equity ratio also inseelsto 270% from 261% in 2011 .

2013 Outlook

Although customers' confidence levels and theilinghess to sign long-term contracts are still @#d by soft and uncertain economic
conditions, we are confident that we can profitadsigw contractual revenue in both our business seggrin 2013. In addition, we believe that
our ongoing focus on new capabilities and innovatidl continue to enhance our value propositioa®as both business segments in ways that
appeal to companies that have not outsourced beédwerall, we expect the forward momentum of owibess will enable us to deliver organic
growth and strong earnings, while continuing sggaténvestments and overcoming headwinds includligher insurance, medical and
compensation costs.

In FMS, we expect continued growth in our full deeviease and contractual maintenance productingferGiven continued strong lease
fleet replacement activity, our fleet is becomiryver, and therefore, less costly to maintain. Alfforental demand is expected to be modestly
lower, we should see improved utilization leveld anicing on a smaller fleet. In used vehicle salesexpect higher volumes with continued
strong pricing, although modestly lower than 20h2addition, we expect depreciation benefits aggedi with strong used vehicle pricing
realized the past few years. In SCS, our growtmfnew business and improved retention levels ieebgpl to more than offset modest
anticipated volume declines in the high-tech antsomer packaged goods sectors. This growth anesléting overhead leverage is forecast to
lead to continued margin expansion.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - (Co ntinued)

Total revenue for the full-year 2013 is forecasbéo$6.5 billion , an increase of 4% compared ®0h2 . Operating revenue for the full-
year2013 is forecast to increase 4% to $5.3 billion parad with 2012 . In FMS, contractual leasing amdhtenance revenue is expected to
increase 4% . Commercial rental revenue is fordcadécrease by 2% due to lower demand on a snfiekgr Total SCS revenue is forecast to
increase by 5% and SCS operating revenue is aatidto increase by 6% , reflecting new sales iactind higher retention.

ACQUISITIONS

We completed the following FMS acquisitions froml@Go 2012 , under which we acquired a compangatfhnd contractual customers.
The acquisitions operate under Rydartame and complement our existing market coveandeservice network. The results of these acqois
have been included in our consolidated resultedine dates of acquisition. See Note 3, “Acquisgjdfor further discussion.

Contractual

Company Acquired Date Vehicles Customers Market
Euroway Ltd. August 1, 2012 1,360 60 U.K.
Hill Hire plc June 8, 2011 13,700 400 U.K.
B.I.T. Leasing April 1, 2011 490 130 California
The Scully Companies January 28, 2011 2,100 200 Western U.S.
Carmenita Leasing, Inc. January 10, 2011 190 60 California

On December 31, 2010, we acquired all of the comstock of Total Logistic Control (TLC), a leadingopider of comprehensive supply
chain solutions to food, beverage, and consumedgma goods manufacturers in the U.S. TLC providissomers a broad suite of end-to-end
services, including distribution management, canitpackaging services and solutions engineering déquisition enhances our SCS
capabilities and growth prospects in the areasokaging and warehousing, including temperaturerotied facilities.

FULL YEAR CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Change
2012 2011 2010 2012/2011 2011/2010
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Total revenue $ 6,256,96 6,050,53. 5,136,43 3% 18%
Operating revenu® 5,066,32. 4,814,55 4,158,223 5 16
Pre-tax earnings from continuing operations  $ 303,11 279,38 186,30! 8 50
Earnings from continuing operations 200,89¢ 171,36¢ 124,60t 17 38
Net earnings 209,97¢ 169,77 118,17 24 44
Earnings per common share — Diluted

Continuing operations $ 3.91 3.31 2.37 18% 40%

Net earnings 4.0¢ 3.2¢ 2.2t 25% 46%

(1) We use operating revenue, a non-GAAP financial omeaso evaluate the operating performance of ausibesses and as a measure of sales activity. EMSérvices
revenue, which is directly impacted by fluctuationsarket fuel prices, is excluded from the opeatevenue computation as fuel is largely a pésetigh to our customers
for which we realize minimal changes in profitatyilduring periods of steady market fuel prices. ldoer, profitability may be positively or negativétypacted by rapi
changes in market fuel prices during a short pedtime as customer pricing for fuel servicesstablished based on market fuel costs. Subconttaraesportation is
deducted from total revenue to arrive at operatiegenue as subcontracted transportation is typjcalpass-through to our customers. We realize nah@hanges in
profitability as a result of fluctuations in subdeercted transportation. Refer to the section tit‘Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for a reconciliatioof total revenue to
operating revenue.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - (Co ntinued)

Revenue and cost of revenue by source

Total revenue increased 3% in 2012 to $6.26 biltind increased 18% in 2011 to $6.05 billion . Ofiegarevenue (revenue excluding
FMS fuel and all subcontracted transportation)éased 5% in 2012 to $5.07 billion and increased 162011 to $4.81 billion . The following
table summarizes the components of the changeémoe on a percentage basis versus the prior year:

2012 2011
Total Operating Total Operating

Organic including price and volume 2% 3% 3% 5%
Acquisitions 1 2 9 10
FMS fuel — — 4 —
Subcontracted transportation — — 1 —
Foreign exchange — — 1 1
Total increase 3% 5% 18% 16%

See “Operating Results by Business Segment” farthadr discussion of the revenue impact from orggndwth and acquisitions.

Lease and Rental

Change
2012 2011 2010 2012/2011 2011/2010
(Dollars in thousands)
Lease and rental revenues $ 2,695,371 2,553,87 2,309,811 6% 11%
Cost of lease and rental 1,890,65! 1,746,05 1,604,25. 8% 9%
Gross margin 804,71 807,82( 705,56: —% 14%

Gross margin % 30% 32% 31%

Lease and rental revenues represent full servaseland commercial rental product offerings withun FMS business segment. Revenues
increased 6% in 2012 to $2.70 billion and increaskE in 2011 to $2.55 billion . In 2012 , the irecse was primarily driven by higher prices on
lease and commercial rental vehicles, organicskiivice lease fleet growth and the impact of tHeHHie acquisition partially offset by lower
commercial rental demand. Improved full serviceséepricing on new and replacement vehicles wagdiby higher costs on new engine
technology. In 2011 , the increase was primarilyedr by acquisitions and improved global rental eathand pricing. Pricing on commercial
rental power vehicles increased 4% in 2012 and 02011 .

Cost of lease and rental represents the direcs celsited to lease and rental revenues. Thesearestomprised of depreciation of revenue
earning equipment, maintenance costs (primarilgirgarts and labor), and other fixed costs suditasses, insurance and operating taxes.
of lease and rental excludes interest costs framthkefinancing. Cost of lease and rental increa&$édn 2012 to $1.89 billion and increased 9%
in 2011 to $1.75 billion . In 2012 , the cost irese was due to the growth in the lease fleet dnekstenent of the lease and rental fleets. The
increase in 2011 was due to an increase in revandid2% higher maintenance costs on an older fesete

Gross margin declined slightly to $805 million agrdss margin as a percentage of revenue decrea88@uin 2012 . These decreases
were due to lower commercial rental performancenftower fleet utilization partially offset by thenpact of the Hill Hire acquisition and
improved full service lease performance. Gross mangreased 14% to $808 million in 2011 as a tesu&n increase in rental pricing partially
offset by higher maintenance costs on an oldeeléast.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - (Co ntinued)

Services
Change
2012 2011 2010 2012/2011 2011/2010
(Dollars in thousands)
Services revenue $ 2,707,01. 2,609,17. 2,109,74: 4% 24%
Cost of services 2,274,11 2,186,35: 1,763,01 4% 24%
Gross margin 432,89! 422,82. 346,73( 2% 22%
Gross margin % 16% 16% 16%

Services revenue represents all the revenues assbgvith our SCS business segment as well asambmiraintenance, contract-related
maintenance and fleet support services associdatedur FMS business segment. Services revenueased 4% in 2012 to $2.71 billion and
increased 24% in 2011 to $2.61 billion . In 2012e, revenue increase was primarily driven by ireedavolumes and new business in our SCS
automotive sector and higher fuel costs passeddghrto our SCS segment customers. In 2011 , tlentevincrease was primarily driven by
acquisitions in our SCS business segment.

Cost of services represent the direct costs retatsdrvices revenue and is primarily comprisesglabdiries and employeelated costs, SC
subcontracted transportation (purchased transportitom third parties) and maintenance costs. @bservices increased 4% in 2012 to $2.27
billion and increased 24% in 2011 to $2.19 billidn 2012 and 2011 , the cost increase was due ilecaease in revenue. The increase in 2012
also reflects higher medical benefit costs as agb8 million of vehicle-related losses from Sufmera Sandy. Subcontracted transportation
costs, which are passed through to our customecsedsed $12 million in 2012 and increased $87amilh 2011 .

Services gross margin increased 2% to $433 miilid?012 and increased 22% to $423 million in 208&rvices gross margin as a
percentage of revenue remained at 16% in 2012 @htl 2

Fuel
Change
2012 2011 2010 2012/2011 2011/2010
(Dollars in thousands)
Fuel services revenue $ 854,57t 887,48: 716,87 (D% 24%
Cost of fuel services 838,67: 873,46t 699,10° (D% 25%
Gross margin 15,90¢ 14,01° 17,76¢ 13% (21)%
Gross margin % 2% 2% 2%

Fuel services revenue decreased 4% in 2012 to®dbé&n and increased 24% in 2011 to $887 millidn 2012, the revenue decrease
due to fewer gallons sold partially offset by higheel prices passed through to customers. In 2Elincrease in revenue was due to highel
prices passed through to customers.

Cost of fuel services includes the direct costsaaged with providing our customers with fuel. $hecosts include fuel, salaries and
employee-related costs of fuel island attendardsdepreciation of our fueling facilities and equigmm Cost of fuel decreased 4% in 2012 to
$839 million and increased 25% in 2011 to $873iamill In 2012 , the cost decrease was due to fgalsns sold partially offset by an increase
in fuel prices. In 2011, the increase was due arease in fuel prices.

Fuel services gross margin increased 13% to $1&mih 2012 and decreased 21% to $14 million in20Fuel is largely a pass-through
to customers for which we realize minimal changesargin during periods of steady market fuel iddowever, fuel services margin is
impacted by sudden increases or decreases in niaekgtrices during a short period of time as coppricing for fuel is established based on
market fuel costs.

Change
2012 2011 2010 2012/2011 2011/2010
(In thousands)
Other operating expenses $ 135,90 129,18( 134,22. 5% (D%

Other operating expenses includes costs relatedrtowned and leased facilities within the FMS bass segment such as depreciation,
rent, insurance, utilities and taxes. These fédliare utilized to provide maintenance to ourdesaantal,
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - (Co ntinued)

contract maintenance and fleet support servicesmess. Other operating expenses also includedsis @associated with used vehicle sales
as writedowns of used vehicles to fair market valoe facilities costs. Other operating expensagased in 2012 due to higher writedowns on
vehicles held for sale of $10 million . Other opigmg expenses decreased in 2011 due to lower weritad on vehicles held for sale of $14
million .

Change
2012 2011 2010 2012/2011 2011/2010
(Dollars in thousands)
Selling, general and administrative expenses (SG&A) $ 766,70 771,24 655,37! (1)% 18%
Percentage of total revenue 12% 13% 13%
Percentage of operating revenue 15% 16% 16%

SG&A expenses decreased 1% to $767 million in 20iRincreased 18% to $771 million in 2011 . SG&Aenses as a percent of total
revenue decreased to 12% in 2012 and remained/@airi3011 . SG&A expenses in 2012 reflect loweemo/e-based compensation of $31
million partially offset by higher pension experss® commissions from new sales activity as wellragicrease in salaries and employelatec
costs from organic growth and acquisitions. SG&Aenses increased in 2011 due primarily to an iser@aincentive-based compensation of
$37 million . SG&A expenses were also impactediggiicant investments in information technologydasales initiatives. Pension expense,
which primarily impacts SG&A expenses, increase8 filllion in 2012 and decreased $7 million in 20The increase in pension expense in
2012 primarily reflects lower than expected pensisset returns in 2011 and lower assumed retur2@1a .

Change
2012 2011 2010 2012/2011 2011/2010
(In thousands)
Gains on vehicle sales, net $ 89,10¢ 62,87¢ 28,72i 42% 11%

Gains on vehicle sales, net increased 42% to $8@min 2012 due to higher sales volume and imprbpricing. Increased sales volume
in 2012 (up 31% ) includes higher wholesaling atstito maintain inventories at appropriate lev&sspite increased wholesaling activity,
average pricing on vehicles sold grew 8% in 20G2ins on vehicle sales, net increased 119% to $idmin 2011 due to a 30% increase in
average pricing on vehicles sold.

Change
2012 2011 2010 2012/2011 2011/2010
(Dollars in thousands)
Interest expense $140,557 133,16 129,99. 6% 2%
Effective interest rate 3.&% 4.2% 5.2%

Interest expense increased 6% to $141 million t224nd increased 2% to $133 million in 2011 . Tierdase in 2012 and in 2011 reflects
higher average outstanding debt partially offsealbgwer effective interest rate. The increaseverage outstanding debt is due to high levels of
capital spending and funding for acquisitions. Tdweer effective interest rate reflects the replaeatof higher interest rate debt with debt
issuances at lower rates as well as an increasedmntage of variable rate debt. A hypothetical b88is point change in short-term market
interest rates would change annual pre-tax earfing 0 million .

2012 2011 2010

(In thousands)
Miscellaneous income, net $ 11,727 9,09: 7,11¢

Miscellaneous income, net consists of investmertdrime on securities held to fund certain benefihglénterest income, gains and losses
from sales of property, foreign currency transaciains, and non-operating items. Miscellaneousng net improved $3 million in 2012
primarily due to gains on insurance related-redesesnd higher income on investment securitiescéflisneous income, net improved $2
million in 2011 primarily due to gains from salefacilities and insurance-related recoveries,ipbytoffset by lower income on our investment
securities.
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2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)

Restructuring and other charges, net $ 8,07( 3,65¢ —

Refer to Note 5, “Restructuring and Other Chargesthe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemfamta discussion of these charges.

Change
2012 2011 2010 2012/2011 2011/2010
(Dollars in thousands)
Provision for income taxes $ 102,21 108,01¢ 61,69 (5)% 75%

Effective tax rate from continuing operations 33.1% 38.1% 33.1%

Our provision for income taxes and effective incdmerates are impacted by such items as enactdawechanges, settlement of tax
audits and the reversal of reserves for unceréaipositions due to the expiration of statutesroitation. In the aggregate, these items increased
the effective rate by 2.6% in 2011 and reduceceffective rate by 5.7% in 2010 . In 2012, we haexabenefit of $5 million relating to the
favorable resolution of a tax item from prior pelsowhich reduced the effective rate by 1.6% oftpreearnings from continuing operations in
2012 . Excluding these items, our effective tar iat2012 and 2011 benefited from a higher propoatie amount of earnings in lower tax rate
jurisdictions.

On December 17, 2010, the U.S. enacted the TarfREInemployment Insurance Reauthorization andCrelation Act and on September
27, 2010, the U.S. enacted the Small Business 8obfA2010. On January 2, 2013, the U.S. enactedtherican Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012
(collectively, the “Acts”). These Acts expanded axtiended bonus depreciation to qualified propgldged in service during 2010 through
2013. These changes will significantly reduce ow8.Uederal tax payments through 2014.

2012 2011 2010

(In thousands)

Earnings (Loss) from discontinued operations, fi¢do $ 9,08( (1,59) (6,439

Refer to Note 4, “Discontinued Operations,” in thetes to Consolidated Financial Statements foseudision of results from discontinued
operations.
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FULL YEAR OPERATING RESULTS BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

Change
2012 2011 2010 2012/2011 2011/2010
(In thousands)
Revenue:
Fleet Management Solutions 4,405,32! 4,218,33! 3,712,15: 4% 14%
Supply Chain Solutions 2,280,58 2,206,03! 1,734,83. 3 27
Eliminations (428,94, (373,839 (310,55)) (15) (20)
Total 6,256,96 6,050,53 5,136,43! 3% 18%
Operating Revenue:
Fleet Management Solutions 3,321,151 3,135,85 2,846,53. 6 % 1C%
Supply Chain Solutions 1,944,51 1,857,54. 1,473,50! 5 26
Eliminations (199,34¢) (178,849 (161,807) (11) (11)
Total 5,066,32; 4,814,55 4,158,23! 5% 16 %
EBT:
Fleet Management Solutions 307,62¢ 265,69: 194,90¢ 1€ % 36 %
Supply Chain Solutions 115,19: 104,89¢ 81,68 10 28
Eliminations (29,265 (24,219 (29,27Y (21) (26)
393,55t 346,37 257,31 14 35
Unallocated Central Support Services (42,349 (42,549 (41,310 — 3
Non-operating pension costs (31,429 (18,657 (26,55)) (68) 3C
Restructuring and other charges, net and other
items® (16,66¢) (5,789 (3,157 NM NM
Earnings from continuing operations before
income taxes 303,11° 279,38’ 186,30! 8% 50 %

(1) See Note 5, “Restructuring and Other Charges” aradeé\26, “Other Items Impacting Comparability,” iné Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements fdisaussion of
items excluded from our segment measure of prdftiab

As part of management’s evaluation of segment diperaerformance, we define the primary measurerokaotr segment financial
performance as “Earnings Before Tax” (EBT) from thaning operations, which includes an allocatiorCehtral Support Services (CSS) and
excludes non-operating pension costs, restructaniother charges, net and other items we doelieve are representative of the ongoing
operations of the segment.

In 2012, the EBT measurement was adjusted to ee¢halnon-operating components of pension and ptisretirement benefit costs in
order to more accurately reflect the operatinggrerince of the business segments. The non-operaiingonents include the amortization of
actuarial loss, interest cost and expected retnplan assets. All prior period segment resultehzeen recast to present results on a comparabl
basis. This change had no impact on our consotidatults. The objective of the EBT measuremettt govide clarity on the profitability of
each business segment and, ultimately, to holcelship of each business segment and each opeseatijngent within each business segment
accountable for their allocated share of CSS c@S$§ represents those costs incurred to suppditisitiess segments, including human
resources, finance, corporate services and puffidicss information technology, health and safédgal and corporate communications. Segment
results are not necessarily indicative of the tesafl operations that would have occurred had sagment been an independent, stand-alone
entity during the periods presented. Certain cagtssonsidered to be overhead not attributableysagment and remain unallocated in CSS.
Included within the unallocated overhead remainiithin CSS are the costs for investor relationgliouaffairs and certain executive
compensation. See Note 29, “Segment ReportinglidrNotes to Consolidated Financial Statementa fiescription of how the remainder of
CSS costs are allocated to the business segments.

Our FMS segment leases revenue earning equipmergrauaides fuel, maintenance and other ancillaryises to our SCS segment. Inter-
segment revenue and EBT are accounted for atsambdar to those executed with third parties. EBT
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related to inter-segment equipment and servicésdlib customers (equipment contribution) are idetliin both FMS and SCS and then
eliminated (presented as “Eliminations”).

The following table provides a reconciliation adrits excluded from our segment EBT measure to ¢hesification within our
Consolidated Statements of Earnings:

Consolidated

Description Statements of Earnings Line Item 2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Severance and employee-related c®sts Restructuring and other charges $ (7,20 (3,162) —
Contract termination cosf3 Restructuring and other charges (86%) (499 —
Restructuring and other charges, net (8,070 (3,655 —
Superstorm Sandy vehicle-related los8es Cost of services (8,230 — —
Non-operating pension costs SG&A (31,429 (18,657 (26,55))
Gain on sale of property Miscellaneous income — — 94¢
Acquisition transaction cosf® SG&A (36¢) (2,139 (4,097)

$ (48,09)  (24,44)  (29,70)

(1) See Note 5, “Restructuring and Other Charges,the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememtséditional information
(2) See Note 26, “Other Items Impacting Comparability'the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememtsifiditional information

The following table reconciles FMS segment reveiougvenue from external customers:

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Full service lease revenue $ 2,102,21, 1,996,27. 1,934,34
Commercial rental revenue 772,79¢ 722,55 525,08:
Full service lease and commercial rental revenue 2,875,01 2,718,83I 2,459,42!
Intercompany revenue (179,63 (164,95) (149,61)
Full service lease and commercial rental revenoim fexternal customers  $ 2,695,37 2,553,87 2,309,811
FMS services revenue $ 446,13¢ 417,02° 387,10:
Intercompany revenue (29,719 (13,89) (12,189
FMS services revenue from external customers $ 426,42 403,13t 374,91.
FMS fuel services revenue $ 1,084,17 1,082,47. 865,62:
Intercompany revenue (229,59 (194,99() (148,75()
Fuel services revenue from external customers $ 854,571 887,48: 716,87:
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Fleet Management Solutions

Change
2012 2011 2010 2012/2011 2011/2010
(Dollars in thousands)
Full service lease 2,102,21. 1,996,27. 1,934,34 5% 3%
Contract maintenance 187,22¢ 182,28. 179,74! 3 1
Contractual revenue 2,289,44. 2,178,55! 2,114,09: 5 3
Contract-related maintenance 186,95! 165,62: 139,91( 13 18
Commercial rental 772,79¢ 722,55 525,08 7 38
Other 71,95t 69,12¢ 67,44¢ 4 2
Operating revenu® 3,321,151 3,135,85 2,846,53 6 10
Fuel services revenue 1,084,17! 1,082,47. 865,62: — 25
Total revenue 4,405,32! 4,218,333l 3,712,15: 4% 14%
Segment EBT 307,62¢ 265,69: 194,90¢ 16% 36%
Segment EBT as a % of total revenue 7.0% 6.3% 5.3% 70 bps 100 bps
Segment EBT as a % of operating revefiue 9.3% 8.5% 6.8% 80 bps 170 bps

(1) We use operating revenue and EBT as a percentesfitipg revenue, non-GAAP financial measures, tuate the operating performance of our FMS busresgment and
as a measure of sales activity. Fuel services newewhich is directly impacted by fluctuations iarket fuel prices, is excluded from our operatiegenue computation as fi
is largely a pass-through to customers for whichreadize minimal changes in profitability duringrpeds of steady market fuel prices. However, patfility may be positively
or negatively impacted by rapid changes in market prices during a short period of time as custopreing for fuel services is established basecharket fuel costs.

Total revenue increased 4% in 2012 to $4.41 biltind increased 14% in 2011 to $4.22 billion . Ofegarevenue (revenue excluding
fuel) increased 6% in 2012 to $3.32 billion and@ased 10% in 2011 to $3.14 billion . The followtagle summarizes the components of the
change in revenue on a percentage basis verspsithgear:

2012 2011
Total Operating Total Operating
Organic including price and volume 2% 4% 4% 4%
Acquisitions 2 2 4 5
FMS fuel — — 5 —
Foreign exchange — — 1 1
Total increase 4% 6% 14% 10%

2012 versus 2011

Full service lease revenue increased 5% in 201€ctefg higher prices on replacement vehicles agdric fleet growth as well as the
impact of the Hill Hire acquisition. The higher girig on new and replacement vehicles was drivehidiyer costs on new engine technology.
We expect favorable full service lease comparisort®ntinue next year primarily due to organic gtewCommercial rental revenue increased
7% in 2012 reflecting acquisitions and higher pric{up 4% in 2012) partially offset by lower markletmand. We expect unfavorable
commercial rental revenue comparisons next yeaedipy lower demand on a smaller fleet. Fuel ses/ievenue was $1.1 billion in 2012 ,
unchanged from the prior year, as higher fuel grig&ssed through to customers were offset by fgaltons sold.
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FMS EBT increased 16% in 2012 to $308 million priilyadue to lower compensation-related expensegarc growth of the lease fleet
and the impact of the Hill Hire acquisition. Yeateo year comparisons also benefited from improwsstiwehicle sales results. The increase in
EBT was partially offset by lower commercial rentasults. Acquisitions increased FMS EBT by 5% edUgehicle sales results improved
primarily due to stronger volumes on 8% higheripgdg partially offset by increased carrying costsadarger inventory. Although pricing
increased, commercial rental performance decreaeds a result of lower utilization on a 10% largeerage fleet (including trailers). FMS
EBT in 2012 includes a benefit of $18 million resg from residual value changes on revenue earmiuipment.

2011 versus 2010

Full service lease revenue increased 3% reflettiagmpact of acquisitions. Commercial rental rexeemcreased 38% in 2011 reflecting
improving global market demand and higher pricimg 1{0% in 2011). Fuel services revenue increas&aia®011 due to higher fuel prices
passed through to customers.

FMS EBT increased 36% in 2011 to $266 million priilyadue to significantly better commercial renperformance, improved used
vehicle sales results, and the impact of acquisstid he increase in EBT was partially offset byheigcompensation-related expenses as well as
higher maintenance costs on an older fleet. Comaieental performance improved 66% as a resul@ieased market demand and higher
pricing on a 23% larger average fleet. The incréasiee average fleet reflects organic growth dfol&nd an acquisition-related impact of 10%.
Used vehicle sales results improved by $49 milpamarily due to higher pricing. The improvemeniur commercial rental and used vehicle
sales activities allowed us to better leveragefi@ed costs. Acquisitions increased FMS EBT by 15%.

The following table provides rental statistics am global fleet:

Change
2012 2011 2010 2012/2011 2011/2010
(Dollar in thousands)
Non-lease customer rental revenue $ 442 ,52( 434,04: 332,07 2% 31%
Lease customer rental reveritie $ 330,27! 288,51« 193,00t 14% 49%
Average commercial rental power fleet size —in
service® ® 30,20( 28,50( 23,80( 6% 20%
Commercial rental utilization — power fleet 74.5% 77.6% 76.1% (270) bps 150 bps

(1) Lease customer rental revenue is revenue fronakeehicles provided to our existing full serviease customers, generally during peak periodseir tperations
(2) Number of units rounded to nearest hundred andutaled using average coun
(3) Fleet size excluding trailer
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Our global fleet of owned and leased revenue egmiuipment and contract maintenance vehiclesnsrarized as follows (number of
units rounded to the nearest hundred):

Change
2012 2011 2010 2012/ 2011 2011/2010
End of period vehicle count
By type:
Trucks® 68,80( 68,40( 63,00( 1% 9%
Tractors® 58,80( 55,70( 49,60( 6 12
Trailers®- @ 42,70( 43,30( 33,00( @ 31
Other 2,20( 2,50( 3,10¢ (12) (19)
Total 172,50( 169,90( 148,70( 2% 14%
By ownership:
Owned 168,00( 166,50( 145,00( 1% 15%
Leased 4,50( 3,40( 3,70( 32 (8)
Total 172,50( 169,90( 148,70( 2% 14%
By product line:
Full service leas® 122,40( 121,00( 111,10( 1% 9%
Commercial rentdf 38,00( 39,60( 29,70( 4) 33
Service vehicles and other 2,90( 3,00( 2,70( 3) 11
Active units 163,30( 163,60( 143,50( — 14
Held for sale 9,20( 6,30( 5,20( 46 21
Total 172,50( 169,90( 148,70( 2 14
Customer vehicles under contract maintenance 37,80( 35,30( 33,40( 7 6
Total vehicles under service 210,30( 205,20( 182,10( 2% 13%
Average vehicle count
By product line:
Full service lease 121,90( 116,20( 112,50( 5% 3%
Commercial rental 40,10( 36,60( 29,80( 10 23
Service vehicles and other 2,90( 2,90( 2,60( — 12
Active units 164,90( 155,70( 144,90( 6 7
Held for sale 8,80( 5,20( 5,80( 69 (20)
Total 173,70( 160,90( 150,70( 8 7
Customer vehicles under contract maintenance 36,50( 34,10( 33,70( 7% 1%

(1) Generally comprised of Class 1 through Class 6 tygdgcles with a Gross Vehicle Weight (GVW) up8&®@0 pounds

(2) Generally comprised of over the road on highwaytmes and are primarily comprised of Classes 7 8rgipe vehicles with a GVW of over 26,000 pou

(3) Generally comprised of dry, flatbed and refrigehtgpe trailers

(4) Includes 8,500 trailers (5,300 full service leasel 8,200 commercial rental) and 9,500 trailers @Z%ull service lease and 3,400 commercial reraalpf December 31, 20:
and 2011, respectively, acquired as part of thé Hite acquisition.

Note: Average vehicle counts were computed using 24-poieage based on monthly information.
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The totals in the previous table include the follmgvnon-revenue earning equipment for the glolesdtf(number of units rounded to the
nearest hundred):

Change
Number of Units 2012 2011 2010 2012/2011 2011/2010
Not yet earning revenue (NYE) 2,20( 2,60( 80C (15)% 225%
No longer earning revenue (NLE):
Units held for sale 9,20( 6,30( 5,20( 46 21
Other NLE units 2,80( 2,60( 2,00 8 30
Total 14,20( 11,50( 8,00( 23% 44%

NYE units represent new vehicles on hand that aiegbprepared for deployment to a lease customet@the rental fleet. Preparations
include activities such as adding lift gates, padetals, cargo area and refrigeration equipmemt2612 , the number of NYE units decreased
compared with prior year reflecting lower rentgllezement activity. NLE units represent all vehsédheld for sale and vehicles for which no
revenue has been earned in the previous 30 dagsrdingly, these vehicles may be temporarily outervice, being prepared for sale or
awaiting redeployment. For 2012 , the number of NinlEs grew because of increased levels of legdaagement activity and rental fleet
downsizing due to reduced demand. We expect NLE tmiremain at similar levels in 2013 .

Supply Chain Solutions

Change
2012 2011 2010 2012/2011 2011/2010
(Dollars in thousands)
Operating revenue:
Automotive $ 563,49: 469,24! 448,67( 20% 5%
High-tech 317,48( 333,60: 308,81 (5) 8
Retail and CPG 711,18¢ 711,03 394,74¢ — 80
Industrial and other 352,35t 343,65 321,27t 3 7
Total operating revenug 1,944,51i 1,857,54. 1,473,50! 5 26
Subcontracted transportation 336,06¢ 348,49 261,32! 4 33
Total revenue $ 2,280,58 2,206,03 1,734,83. 3% 27%
Segment EBT $ 115,19 104,89t 81,68 10% 28%
Segment EBT as a % of total revenue 5.1% 4.8% 4.7% 30 bps 10 bps
Segment EBT as a % of operating revefiue 5.9% 5.6% 5.5% 30 bps 10 bps
Memo:
Dedicated services total revenue $ 1,295,09: 1,192,96 1,031,13 9% 16%
Dedicated services operating revefi@ $ 1,137,37 1,027,19. 912,68« 11% 13%
Average fleet 11,50( 11,10 10,50( 4% 6%
Fuel costs® $ 258,88 223,66« 162,73« 16% 37%

(1) We use operating revenue and EBT as a percentestipg revenue, noAAP financial measures, to evaluate the opergtedormance of our SCS business segment a
a measure of sales activity and profitability. I8Stransportation management arrangements, we iagsaa principal or as an agent in purchasing spartation on behalf
of our customer. We record revenue on a gross hesén acting as principal and we record revenuearet basis when acting as an agent. As a resuilil tevenue may
fluctuate depending on our role in subcontractehsiportation arrangements yet our profitability raéims unchanged as we typically realize minimal pabflity from
subcontracting transportation. We deduct subcorigddransportation expense from SCS total reveowgrtve at SCS operating revenue, and from deditaervices total
revenue to arrive at dedicated services operatiegenue.

(2) Operating revenue excludes dedicated subcontracaedportation as follows: $158 million, $166 noifi and $118 million for 2012, 2011 and 2010, resipely.

(3) Fuel costs are largely a pe-through to customers and therefore have a diregtich on revenue

Total revenue increased 3% in 2012 to $2.28 biliind increased 27% in 2011 to $2.21 billion . Ofyegarevenue (revenue excluding
subcontracted transportation) increased 5% in 2034.94 billion and increased 26% in 2011 to $h#in .
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The following table summarizes the components efdiiange in revenue on a percentage basis veespsith year:

2012 2011
Total Operating Total Operating
Organic including price and volume 1% 3% 2% 2%
Fuel cost pass-throughs 2 2 2 3
Acquisition — — 19 20
Subcontracted transportation — — 3 —
Foreign exchange — — 1 1
Total increase 3% 5% 27% 26%

We expect favorable revenue comparisons to contiedéyear primarily due to actual and planned seles activity.

2012 versus 2011

SCS EBT increased 10% in 2012 to $115.2 million ustronger earnings in the automotive sectorlewdr compensation-related
expenses partially offset by higher medical bergefitts and lower results in the consumer packagedsgand high tech sectors.

2011 versus 2010

SCS EBT increased 28% in 2011 to $104.9 milliohe TLC acquisition increased SCS EBT by 16% du2@gl. SCS EBT also
benefited from higher freight volumes across allistries, new business, and favorable insurancel@i@mwent. These benefits were partially

offset by increased compensation-related expenses.

Central Support Services

Change
2012 2011 2010 2012/ 2011 2011/ 2010
(In thousands)

Human resources 19,25¢ 19,41¢ 15,50¢ D)% 25%
Finance 51,26: 49,77 50,87 3 (2
Corporate services and public affairs 14,13: 12,96¢ 13,97¢ 9 ©)
Information technology 60,09 61,59: 56,87: (2) 8
Health and safety 7,88 7,54( 7,12¢ 5 6
Other 41,36¢ 51,37¢ 38,22¢ (19) 34

Total CSS 194,00:. 202,66( 182,57¢ 4) 11
Allocation of CSS to business segments (151,659 (160,11) (141,269 (5) 13

Unallocated CSS $ 42,34¢ 42,54¢ 41,31( — % 3%

2012 versus 2011

Total CSS costs decreased 4% in 2012 to $194 mitliee to lower compensation-related expenses. drz#d CSS costs decreased
slightly in 2012 to $42 million due to lower compation related expenses offset by higher highdiepsional fees and medical benefits.

2011 versus 2010

Total CSS costs increased 11% in 2011 to $203anifbrimarily due to increased compensation costsrmation technology investments
and professional services from strategic initiaivgnallocated CSS costs increased 3% in 20113av$#ion due to higher compensation costs.
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FOURTH QUARTER CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Three months ended
December 31, Change

2012 2011 2012/ 2011

(Dollars in thousands, except
per share amounts)

Total revenue $ 1,583,53 1,541,09. 3%
Operating revenue 1,287,57 1,236,99. 4
Pre-tax earnings from continuing operations (EBT) $ 81,84( 73,11: 12
Earnings from continuing operations 54,94! 47,66« 15
Net earnings 53,84« 48,09¢ 12

Earnings per common share — Diluted

Continuing operations $ 1.07 0.92 16%
Net earnings $ 1.0t 0.9t 13%
Revenue

Total revenue increased 3% in the fourth quart&0dR2 to $1.58 billion . Operating revenue (reveexeuding FMS fuel and alll
subcontracted transportation) increased 4% indbeH quarter of 2012 to $1.29 billion . The followy table summarizes the components of the
change in revenue on a percentage basis verspsidhgear:

Three months ended
December 31, 2012

Total Operating
Organic including price and volume 3% 3%
Acquisitions — 1
Total increase 3% 4%

EBT increased 12% in the fourth quarter of 201882 million . The increase in EBT was primarilywdm by strong performance in both
the FMS and SCS business segments. See “Fourthe@@grerating Results by Business Segment” foh&urtiscussion of operating results.
EBT also included a charge of $8 million associatitti certain vehicle-related losses from Superst8andy. Excluding these charges,
comparable EBT increased 18% in the fourth quaft@012 to $90 million.

Earnings and Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) fronContinuing Operations

Earnings from continuing operations increased 16%55 million and EPS from continuing operations@ased 16% to $1.0 the fourtt
quarter of 2012 . Earnings and EPS from continoiperations in the fourth quarter of 2012 includ&dL$million, or $0.10 per diluted common
share, of Superstorm Sandy vehicle-related log&sasings and EPS from continuing operations irfdlieth quarter of 201included $2 million
or $0.05 per diluted common share, of acquisitelated restructuring and other charges. Excludiegd items, comparable earnings and EPS
from continuing operations increased 20% to $60ioniland 21% to $1.17 per diluted common shargeetively.

We believe that comparable EBT, comparable earrfiogs continuing operations and comparable EPS ftontinuing operations
measures provide useful information to investorsabse they exclude significant items that are atedlto our ongoing business operations.
Note 26,"Other Items Impacting Comparability,” for inforni@n regarding items excluded from the 2012 results.

Net Earnings and EPS

Net earnings increased 12% in the fourth quart@04R to $54 million or $1.05 per diluted commoargh Net earnings in the fourth
quarter were impacted by losses from discontingegtaions of $1 million in 2012 versus earning$@# million in 2011. The losses from
discontinued operations in 2012 were due to addegs# and insurance reserve developments. Théngarfrom discontinued operations in
2011 were due to $1 million of favorable insurareserve developments.
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FOURTH QUARTER OPERATING RESULTS BY BUSINESS SEGMEN

Three months ended December 31, Change
2012 2011 2012/2011
(In thousands)
Revenue:
Fleet Management Solutions $ 1,117,67 1,074,65 4%
Supply Chain Solutions 575,25 565,29 2
Eliminations (109,39) (98,85¢) (11)
Total $ 1,583,53i 1,541,09 3%
Operating Revenue:
Fleet Management Solutions $ 849,45 813,31 4%
Supply Chain Solutions 489,11: 471,80: 4
Eliminations (50,999 (48,12¢) (6)
Total $ 1,287,57. 1,236,99. 4%
EBT:
Fleet Management Solutions $ 86,04« 73,79: 17%
Supply Chain Solutions 31,01( 25,52( 22
Eliminations (8,639 (7,115 (21)
108,41 92,19¢ 18
Unallocated Central Support Services (20,500 (11,124 6
Non-operating pension costs (7,859 (4,667 (68)
Restructuring and other charges, net and othesitem (8,219 (3,299 NM
Earnings from continuing operations before income$ $ 81,84( 73,11. 12%

Fleet Management Solutions

Total revenue increased 4% to $1.12 billion inftheth quarter of 2012 . Operating revenue (revesxgduding fuel) increased 4% in the
fourth quarter of 2012 to $849 milliarThe following table summarizes the componenthefchange in revenue on a percentage basis e
prior year.

Three months ended December 31, 2012

Total Operating
Organic including price and volume 2% 3%
Acquisitions 1 1
FMS fuel 1 —
Total increase 4% 4%

Fuel services revenue increased 3% in the fourdntguof 2012 due to higher prices passed throoglustomers. Full service lease
revenue increased 6% in the fourth quarter of 20&2to higher prices on replacement vehicles agdnic fleet growth. Commercial rental
revenue decreased 1% in the fourth quarter of 28flécting lower market demand partially offsethigher pricing.

FMS EBT increased 17% in the fourth quarter of 2@1886 million primarily due to lower lease maimice costs on a newer fleet,
organic growth in the lease fleet, and lower conspéinn-related expenses. The increase in EBT waislpaoffset by lower commercial rental
performance as a result of lower market demand 3% amaller average fleet.
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Supply Chain Solutions

Total revenue increased 2% in the fourth quart@0dR2 to $575 million . Operating revenue (reveexeuding subcontracted
transportation) increased 4% in the fourth quarte2012 to $489 million . The following table sumrizas the components of the change in
revenue on a percentage basis versus the priar year

Three months ended December 31, 2012

Total Operating
Organic including price and volume 1% 3%
Fuel cost pass-throughs 1 1
Subcontracted transportation D —
Foreign exchange 1 —
Total increase 2% 4%

SCS EBT increased 22% in the fourth quarter of 201831 million reflecting higher volumes and neusimess in both the automotive
sector and dedicated services partially offsetighdr medical costs.

Central Support Services

Total CSS costs decreased 6% in the fourth quairt2012 to $49 million primarily due to lower commzation-related expenses and
professional fees. Unallocated CSS costs decréidd the fourth quarter of 2012 to $11 millionrpéirily due to lower compensation-related
expenses.
FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

Cash Flows

The following is a summary of our cash flows fropeacating, financing and investing activities froontinuing operations:

2012 2011 2010

(In thousands)
Net cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities $ 1,134,12. 1,041,95 1,028,03.
Financing activities 333,80! 504,20: 78,16¢
Investing activities (1,504,27) (1,657,17) (982,469
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 1,34« 3,21¢ 1,72
Net change in cash and cash equivalents $ (35,000 (107,799 125,45¢

Cash provided by operating activities from contiguoperations increased to $1.13 billion in 2012 pared with $1.04 billion in 2011
because of higher cash-based earnings. Cash pddwjdinancing activities decreased to $334 millier2012 from $504 million in 2011 due to
lower borrowing needs to fund acquisitions and tadgpending. Cash used in investing activitiesetsed to $1.50 billion in 2012 compared
with $1.66 billion in 2011 primarily due to lowec@guisition-related spending partially offset by nég vehicle capital spending.

Cash provided by operating activities from contirguoperations increased to $1.04 billion in 20Lthpared with $1.03 billion in 2010
because of higher cash-based earnings partialbetfly an increase in working capital needs. Casviged by financing activities increased to
$504 million in 2011 from $78 million in 2010 due higher borrowing needs to fund acquisitions agital spending. Cash used in investing
activities increased to $1.66 billion in 2011 comguhwith $982 million in 2010 primarily due to higthvehicle capital spending and acquisition-
related payments in 2011 .

Our principal sources of operating liquidity areledrom operations and proceeds from the salevefrge earning equipment. We refer to
the sum of operating cash flows, proceeds fronséhes of revenue earning equipment and operatoeply and equipment, collections on
direct finance leases, sale and leaseback of reveaning equipment and other cash inflows asl“tatsh generated.” We refer to the net
amount of cash generated from operating and imgesittivities (excluding changes in restricted casth acquisitions) as “free cash flow.”
Although total cash generated and free cash fl@nan-GAAP financial measures, we consider thebetonportant measures of comparative
operating performance. We also believe total casteated to be an important measure of total cdkiwnis generated from our ongoing busir
activities. We believe free cash flow provides steoes with an important perspective on the caskiabla for debt service, acquisitions
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and for shareholders after making capital investmemmuired to support ongoing business operat©ns calculation of free cash flow may be
different from the calculation used by other comeamnd therefore comparability may be limited.

The following table shows the sources of our fraghcflow computation:

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,134,12. 1,041,95 1,028,03.
Sales of revenue earning equipment 405,441 290,33t 220,84
Sales of operating property and equipment 7,35( 9,90t 13,84
Collections on direct finance leases 71,89 62,22¢ 61,76’
Sale and leaseback of revenue earning equipment 130,18 37,39¢ —
Other, net — — 3,17¢
Total cash generated 1,748,99! 1,441,81 1,327,66
Purchases of property and revenue earning equipment (2,133,23) (1,698,58) (2,070,09)
Free cash flow $ (384,24 (256,777 257,57

Free cash flow decreased to negative $384 millia20il2 compared with negative $257 million in 2@tinarily due to higher vehicle
capital spending partially offset by higher proce&dm sale (and lease-back) of revenue earningemgunt. Free cash flow decreased to
negative $257 million in 2011 compared with posith258 million in 2010 primarily due to higher velki capital spending partially offset by
higher proceeds from sale of revenue earning ecgripnwe expect free cash flow in 2013 to improvaegative $130 to $190 milliaeflecting
continued higher capital spending but below 20%2Ik

Capital expenditures are generally used to purctegnue earning equipment (trucks, tractors aikbis) within our FMS segment.
These expenditures primarily support the full ssetease product line as well as the commercigat@noduct line. The level of capital required
to support the full service lease product lineesdirectly with the customer contract signingsrépiacement vehicles and growth. These
contracts are long-term agreements that resultadigtable cash flows typically over a three toeseyear term for trucks and tractors and ten
years for trailers. The commercial rental produe Utilizes capital for the purchase of vehicleseplenish and expand the fleet available
shorter-term use by contractual or occasional costs. Operating property and equipment expendipniegrily relate to FMS and SCS
spending on items such as vehicle maintenancetiesihind equipment, computer and telecommunicat@uipment, investments in
technologies, and warehouse facilities and equipmen

The following is a summary of capital expenditures:

2012 2011 2010

(In thousands)
Revenue earning equipment:

Full service lease $ 1,548,31 1,067,02! 646,67
Commercial rental 542,30: 622,18: 378,67t
2,090,61' 1,689,201 1,025,34

Operating property and equipment 70,14 70,67 62,30:
Total capital expenditurés 2,160,76. 1,759,87 1,087,65.
Changes in accounts payable related to purchasesafue earning equipme (27,529 (61,290 (17,559
Cash paid for purchases of property and revenugregequipment $ 2,133,23 1,698,58! 1,070,09;

(1) Capital expenditures exclude non-cash additionsppiroximately $20 million in 2012 and $37 millian2011 in assets held under capital leases reguftiom the Euroway
acquisition in 2012 and a sale-leaseback transaciin2011. Non-cash additions also exclude appratify $1 million , $2 million and $2 million in 221 2011 and 2010 ,
respectively, in assets held under capital leasssliting from the extension of existing operateasks and other additions.

Capital expenditures (accrual basis) increased 2382.16 billion in 2012 reflecting investmentsftifill contractual sales made to
customers renewing and growing their full servieaske fleets with us. Capital expenditures (acdrasis) increased 62% to $1.76 billion in
2011 . We expect capital expenditures to decren$é.8 to $1.9 billion in 2013, reflecting signdiatly lower commercial rental spending
partially offset by continued investments in thade fleet. We expect to fund 2013 capital experehitwith both internally generated funds and
additional debt financing.
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Working Capital

2012 2011

(In thousands)
Current assets $ 1,040,23 $ 1,088,17.
Current liabilities 1,272,66! 1,173,82
Working capital $ (232,42) $ (85,65()

Our net working capital (current assets less ctifiehilities) was negative $232 million at DecemBé&, 2012 compared with negati$86
million at December 31, 2011 . The decrease ivoeking capital was primarily due to increased eatrdebt balances and reduced cash
balances. Excluding debt, other working capital ponents decreased $53 million primarily due to loeash balances. We have a global
revolving credit facility which is used primarilg finance working capital and provide support for tssuance of of unsecured commercial papel
in the U.S. and Canada. See "Financing and OthadiRrg Transactions" for further discussion on thecuacy of our funding sources to meet
our operating, investing and financing needs.

Financing and Other Funding Transactions

We utilize external capital primarily to supportrkimg capital needs and growth in our asset-basedugt lines. The variety of financing
alternatives typically available to fund our cabiteeds include commercial paper, long-term andiumederm public and private debt, asset-
backed securities, bank term loans, leasing arraagts and bank credit facilities. Our principal m&s of financing are issuances of comme
paper and medium-term notes.

Our ability to access unsecured debt in the capitakets is linked to both our short-term and léeign debt ratings. These ratings are
intended to provide guidance to fixed income ineestn determining the credit risk associated \piinticular Ryder securities based on current
information obtained by the rating agencies fronouom other sources. Lower ratings generallyltaa higher borrowing costs as well as
reduced access to unsecured capital markets. Agtada of our short-term debt ratings to a lowervieuld impair our ability to issue
commercial paper. As a result, we would have tp oel alternative funding sources. A downgrade ofdabt ratings would not affect our ability
to borrow amounts under our revolving credit fagitlescribed below, given ongoing compliance wlith terms and conditions of the credit
facility.

Our debt ratings and ratings outlook at DecembefB12 were as follows:

Short-term Long-term
Rating Outlook Rating Outlook
Moody’s Investors Service P2 Stable Baal Stable
Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services A2 Stable BBB Stable®
Fitch Ratings F2 Stable A- Stable

(1) On August 10, 2012, Standard & Poor's RatingyiBes lowered its rating on our long-term debtrfr@®BB+ to BBB, with a stable outlook.

We believe that our operating cash flows, toget¥itr our access to commercial paper markets aret atvailable debt financing, will be
adequate to meet our operating, investing and ¢ingmeeds in the foreseeable future. Howevergthan be no assurance that unanticipated
volatility and disruption in commercial paper maske/ould not impair our ability to access thesekats on terms commercially acceptable t
or at all. If we cease to have access to commepejaér and other sources of unsecured borrowingsyauld meet our liquidity needs by
drawing upon contractually committed lending agreets as described below and/or by seeking othelirigrsources.

At December 31, 2012 , we had the following amoantslable to fund operations under the followiagilities:

(In millions)
Global revolving credit facility $538
Trade receivables program 17t

We have a $900 million global revolving credit fdgiwith a syndicate of twelve lending instituti®mvhich matures in June 2016 and is
used primarily to finance working capital and pde/support for the issuance of unsecured commeragar in the U.S. and Canada. In order to
maintain availability of funding, we must maintaimatio of debt to consolidated net worth, of s or equal to 300% . Net worth, as defined
in the credit facility and amended in April 2018presents shareholders' equity excluding any adatecuother comprehensive income or loss
associated with our pension and other postretirepians. The ratio at December 31, 2012 was 180% .

We also have a $175 million trade receivables msetand sale program, pursuant to which we ultisnaél certain ownership interests
in certain of our domestic trade accounts recee/ébb receivables conduit or committed purchasers.
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October 2012, we renewed the trade receivabledipsecand sale program. The program contains poogisestricting its availability in the
event of a material adverse change to our busoastions or the collectibility of the collaterdd receivables. If no event occurs which ca
early termination, the 364 -day program will expire October 25, 2013.

On February 6, 2013, Ryder filed an automatic stegjistration statement on Form S-3 with the SHe& fegistration is for an
indeterminate number of securities and is effediivehree years. Under this universal shelf regigin statement, we have the capacity to offer
and sell from time to time various types of setesitincluding common stock, preferred stock arat decurities, subject to market demand and
ratings status.

Refer to Note 16, “Debt,” in the Notes to Consdi&thFinancial Statements for a discussion arouadlbbal revolving credit facility as
well as the issuance of medium-term notes andrahirities.

The following table shows the movements in our dethance:

2012 2011
(In thousands)

Debt balance at January 1 $ 3,382,14! 2,747,00:

Cash-related changes in debt:
Net change in commercial paper borrowings (64,75 46,74¢
Proceeds from issuance of medium-term notes 698,63! 699,24
Proceeds from issuance of other debt instruments 47,14: 267,15t
Retirement of medium-term notes and debentures (214,000 (375,000
Other debt repaid, including capital lease oblmyadi (69,93) (44,42)
397,08¢ 593,72:

Non-cash changes in debt:

Fair market value of debt and capital leases asdumecquisition 20,30¢ —
Fair market value adjustment on notes subject dgjing (5,119 6,41¢
Addition of capital lease obligations 74C 39,27¢
Changes in foreign currency exchange rates and onthrecash items 25,63: (4,274
Total changes in debt 438,65: 635,14:
Debt balance at December 31 $ 3,820,791 3,382,14!

In accordance with our funding philosophy, we afieto match the aggregate average remaining réagride of our debt with the
aggregate average remaining re-pricing life ofamsets. We utilize both fixed-rate and variable-titbt to achieve this match and generally
target a mix of 25%-45% variable-rate debt as agrgage of total debt outstanding. The variable-pattion of our total obligations (including
notional value of swap agreements) was 33% anda@@&cember 31, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

Ryder’s leverage ratios and a reconciliation obatance sheet debt to total obligations were dsvist

% %
2012 of Equity 2011 of Equity
(Dollars in thousands)
On-balance sheet debt $ 3,820,791 260% $ 3,382,14! 257%
Off-balance sheet debt — PV of minimum lease paysand guaranteed
residual values under operating leases for vehi¢les 147,98 63,96(
Total obligations $ 3,968,78 270% $ 3,446,100 261%

(1) Present value (PV) does not reflect payments wednamirequired to make if we terminated the reldesbses prior to the scheduled expiration da

On-balance sheet debt to equity consists of balgieet debt divided by total equity. Total obligas to equity represents balance sheet
debt plus the present value of minimum lease paysrerd guaranteed residual values under operatasgs for vehicles, discounted based on
our incremental borrowing rate at lease inceptidindivided by total equity. Although total obligans is a non-GAAP financial measure, we
believe that total obligations is useful as it pd@s a more complete analysis of our existing fomrobligations and helps better assess our
overall leverage position. The increase in ourfage ratios in 2012 was due to increased invessiemnehicles as well as a pension equity
charge.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Sale and leaseback transactioRefer to Note 15, “Leases,” in the Notes to Comksdéd Financial Statements for a
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discussion of our sale-leaseback transactions.

GuaranteesRefer to Note 19, “Guaranteedy’'the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementa fdiscussion of our agreements invol

guarantees.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments
As part of our ongoing operations, we enter intarggements that obligate us to make future paymertsr contracts such as debt

agreements, lease agreements and unconditiondigagrobligations. The following table summarizeseogected future contractual cash
obligations and commitments at December 31, 2012 :

2013 2014-2015 2016-2017 Thereafter Total
(In thousands)

Debt $ 359,82! 1,067,23 1,821,35 513,64! 3,762,05:
Capital lease obligations 6,841 12,62 11,85« 10,70( 42,01¢
Total debt, including capital leasedl) 366,66: 1,079,85! 1,833,20! 524,34! 3,804,07
Interest on debt(2) 127,19( 210,21! 100,47t 88,06¢ 525,95(
Operating lease<3) 106,68t 150,81¢ 55,62¢ 58,76t 371,89!
Purchase obligationd4) 320,03t 20,12¢ 10,54¢ 34¢€ 351,05
Total contractual cash obligations 553,91« 381,16( 166,64 147,18( 1,248,90;
Insurance obligations (primarily self-insurance) 133,45¢ 103,67¢ 40,10¢ 34,92¢ 312,17¢
Other long-term liabilities (5). (6). (7) 2,43¢ 3,35 2,81¢ 50,33" 58,94:
Total $ 1,056,47 1,568,05: 2,042,717 756,78t 5,424,08

)
@
®

4

®)
(6)

@)

Net of unamortized discount and excludes the faiket value adjustment on notes subject to hed

Total debt matures at various dates through figeslr 2025 and bears interest principally at fixedes. Interest on variable-rate debt is calculabeded on the applicable
rate at December 31, 2012 . Amounts are based istirexdebt obligations, including capital leasesd do not consider potential refinancing of expiridebt obligations.
Represents future lease payments associated witbleg, equipment and properties under operatirgés. Amounts are based upon the general assuntpéibthe lease
asset will remain on lease for the length of tirpecified by the respective lease agreements. Motéfs been given to renewals, cancellations,icgent rentals or future
rate changes.

The majority of our purchase obligations are payyasi-go transactions made in the ordinary coursbuginess. Purchase obligations include agreentenpsirchase goods
or services that are legally binding and that speeil significant terms, including: fixed or minimm quantities to be purchased; fixed minimum oralde price provisions;
and the approximate timing of the transaction. Tst significant item included in the above tabie purchase obligations related to vehicles. Pusgharders made in the
ordinary course of business that are cancelableexgluded from the above table. Any amounts fochvive are liable under purchase orders for good®ieed are reflected
in our Consolidated Balance Sheets as “Account@apby/ and “Accrued expenses and other current ligigis” and are excluded from the above table.

Represents other lo-term liability amounts reflected in our ConsoliddtBalance Sheets that have known payment str@dmsnost significant items included were asset
retirement obligations and deferred compensatioligakions.

The amounts exclude our estimated pension conimitsit For 2013 , our pension contributions, inchugliour minimum funding requirements as set fortiEBYSA and
international regulatory bodies, are expected tdb6é million . Our minimum funding requirementeaf013 are dependent on several factors. Howewverestimate that the
undiscounted required global contributions over tiext five years are approximately $533 millioneftax) (assuming expected long-term rate of reteaiized and other
assumptions remain unchanged). We also have pagrdeatunder our other postretirement benefit (OPEBNSs. These plans are not required to be fundeatiivance, but
are pay-as-you-go. See Note 24,“Employee Benedit$}1 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Stagets for further discussion.

The amounts exclude $58 million of liabilities asated with uncertain tax positions as we are ueablreasonably estimate the ultimate amount oingnof settlement. See
Note 14 “Income Taxes,” in the Notes to Consolidated FinahStatements for further discussion.
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Pension Information

In recent years, we made amendments to definedibestgement plans which froze the retirement &figs for non-grandfathered and
certain non-union employees in the U.S., Canadatantinited Kingdom. As a result of these amendmemin-grandfathered plan participants
ceased accruing benefits under the plan as oepective amendment effective date and began negein enhanced benefit under a defined
contribution plan. All retirement benefits earnedod the amendment effective date were fully prestbiand will be paid in accordance with the
plan and legal requirements. There was no matemjzdct to our financial condition and operatingutessfrom the plan amendments.

Due to the underfunded status of our defined bepkfns, we had an accumulated net pension edfitsge (after-tax) of $645 million and
$595 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011 , respey. The higher equity charge in 2012 refletts impact of a lower discount rate. The
total asset return for our U.S. qualified pensiangour primary plan) was 12.8% in 2012 .

The funded status of our pension plans is depengent many factors, including returns on investeskts and the level of certain market
interest rates. We review pension assumptions adgwdnd we may from time to time make voluntarpteibutions to our pension plans, which
exceed the amounts required by statute. During 2@dt2l pension contributions, including our imational plans, were $81 million compared
with $65 million in 2011 . We estimate 2013 reqdipension contributions will be $66 million . Afteonsidering the 2012 contributions and
asset performance, the projected present valustiofi@ed global pension contributions that woulddaguired over the next 5 years totals
approximately $496 million (pre-tax). Changes itemast rates and the market value of the secuhigiEsby the plans could materially change,
positively or negatively, the funded status of pfens and affect the level of pension expense equired contributions in future years. The
ultimate amount of contributions is also dependgan the requirements of applicable laws and réignis. See Note 24, “Employee Benefit
Plans,” in the Notes to Consolidated Financialeétegnts for additional information.

Pension expense totaled $49 million in 2012 comptr&34 million in 2011 . The increase in penséapense primarily reflects lower
than expected pension asset returns in 2011 aret l@ssumed returns in 2012 . We expect 2013 peegjmnse to decrease approximately $8
million primarily because of a higher than expeaetlal return on plan assets in 2012. Our ZiE&ion expense estimates are subject to ¢
based upon the completion of the actuarial anafgsiall pension plans. See the section titled ti€al Accounting Estimates — Pension Plans”
for further discussion on pension accounting egtsia

We participate in eleven U.S. multi-employer peng@IEP) plans that provide defined benefits to eyeés covered by collective
bargaining agreements. At December 31, 2012 , appately 1,000 employees (approximately 4¢4otal employees) participated in these N
plans. The annual net pension cost of the MEP ptaegual to the annual contribution determineddoordance with the provisions of
negotiated labor contracts. Our current annuali&d plan contributions total approximately $7 noitli. Pursuant to current U.S. pension laws,
if any MEP plans fail to meet certain minimum fumglithresholds, we could be required to make additiMEP plan contributions, until the
respective labor agreement expires, of up to 10%upEnt contractual requirements. Several faaowd cause MEP plans not to meet these
minimum funding thresholds, including unfavorabigestment performance, changes in participant despbics, and increased benefits to
participants. The plan administrators and trustéése MEP plans provide us with the annual fundingice as required by law. This notice sets
forth the funded status of the plan as of the begmof the prior year but does not provide any pany-specific information.

Employers participating in MEP plans can elect ithdraw from the plans, contingent upon labor urgonsent, and be subject to a
withdrawal obligation based on, among other factitrs MEP plarg unfunded vested benefits. U.S. pension regukafioovide that an employ
can fund its withdrawal obligation in a lump sumowser a time period of up to 20 years based onigue\contribution rates. Based on the most
recently available plan information, obtained irL2Q we estimate our pre-tax contingent MEP plathdvawal obligation to be approximately
$35 million . We have no current intention of takiany action that would subject us to the payméntaterial withdrawal obligations; however,
under applicable law, in very limited circumstandeg plan trustee can impose these obligationssoSee Note 24, “Employee Benefit Plans,”
in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemesrtadditional information.

Share Repurchase Programs and Cash Dividends

Refer to Note 20, “Share Repurchase Prograimgfie Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemesrts fdiscussion on our share repurct
programs. We plan to temporarily pause our antitdié share repurchase program in order to aptglyi manage our leverage and to allow us
to maintain near-term balance sheet flexibility.

Cash dividend payments to shareholders of comnumk stere $61 million in 2012 , $58 million in 201&nd $54 million in 2010During
2012 , we increased our annual dividend to $1.24lpare of common stock.
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Market Risk

In the normal course of business, we are exposéddmations in interest rates, foreign currengghenge rates and fuel prices. We
manage these exposures in several ways, incluidingrtain circumstances, the use of a varietyeoivdtive financial instruments when deemed
prudent. We do not enter into leveraged derivdiivencial transactions or use derivative finanaiatruments for trading purposes.

Exposure to market risk for changes in interegtsraiists for our debt obligations. Our interest risk management program objectives
are to limit the impact of interest rate changegamings and cash flows and to lower overall hwimg costs. We manage our exposure to
interest rate risk primarily through the proportwiifixed-rate and variable-rate debt we hold ia thtal debt portfolio. From time to time, we
also use interest rate swap and cap agreement@taga our fixed-rate and variable-rate exposurd@bdtter match the repricing of debt
instruments to that of our portfolio of assets. Nete 18, “Derivatives,” in the Notes to Consolifinancial Statements for further discussion
on interest rate swap agreements.

At December 31, 2012 , we had $2.47 billion of fixate debt outstanding (excluding capital leasét) a weighted-average interest rate
of 4.4% and a fair value of $2.68 billion . A hyhetical 10% decrease or increase in the Decembh&032 market interest rates would impact
the fair value of our fixed-rate debt by approxietai$22 million at December 31, 2012 . Change$énrelative sensitivity of the fair value of
our financial instrument portfolio for these thetral changes in the level of interest rates am@aily driven by changes in our debt maturities,
interest rate profile and amount.

At December 31, 2012 , we had $1.29 billion of @ake-rate debt, including the impact of intereg sawaps, which effectively changed
$550 million of fixed-rate debt instruments to LIB&ased floating-rate debt. Changes in the fauevalf the interest rate swaps were offset by
changes in the fair value of the debt instrumentsreo net gain or loss was recognized in earnifigs.fair value of our interest rate swap
agreements at December 31, 2012 was recordedassantotaling $17 million . The fair value of amariable-rate debt at December 31, 2012
was $1.31 billion . A hypothetical 10% increasenarket interest rates would have impacted 2012gcearnings from continuing operations
approximately $2 million .

We also are subject to interest rate risk with @espo our pension and postretirement benefit akibgs, as changes in interest rates will
effectively increase or decrease our liabilitiesoggated with these benefit plans, which also tesnlchanges to the amount of pension and
postretirement benefit expense recognized eachderi

Exposure to market risk for changes in foreign enicy exchange rates relates primarily to our foreigerations’ buying, selling and
financing in currencies other than local curreneied to the carrying value of net investments neiffn subsidiaries. The majority of our
transactions are denominated in U.S. dollars. Timeipal foreign currency exchange rate risks tacltwe are exposed include the Canadian
dollar, British pound sterling and Mexican peso. kv@nage our exposure to foreign currency exchaetgerisk related to our foreign operations’
buying, selling and financing in currencies otheart local currencies by naturally offsetting assets liabilities not denominated in local
currencies to the extent possible. A hypotheticéfioum 10% strengthening in the value of the dotiative to all the currencies in which our
transactions are denominated would result in aedeer to pre-tax earnings from continuing operatifrapproximately $7 million . We also use
foreign currency option contracts and forward agreets from time to time to hedge foreign curremapsactional exposure. We generally do
not hedge the translation exposure related to etinmestment in foreign subsidiaries, since weegally have no near-term intent to repatriate
funds from such subsidiaries.

Exposure to market risk for fluctuations in fueices relates to a small portion of our service @mts for which the cost of fuel is integral
to service delivery and the service contract da¢$ave a mechanism to adjust for increases indiets. At December 31, 2012 , we also had
various fuel purchase arrangements in place torertglivery of fuel at market rates in the evenfuel shortages. We are exposed to fluctua
in fuel prices in these arrangements since nottleecfrrangements fix the price of fuel to be puselda Increases and decreases in the price of
fuel are generally passed on to our customers lfidchwwe realize minimal changes in profitabilityrohg periods of steady market fuel prices.
However, profitability may be positively or negaly impacted by sudden increases or decreasesrketriael prices during a short period of
time as customer pricing for fuel services is dghbd based on market fuel costs. We believe xpesire to fuel price fluctuations would not
materially impact our results of operations, cdsetv$ or financial position.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Refer to Note 25, “Environmental Matters,” in thetls to Consolidated Financial Statements for eudison surrounding environmental
matters.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith U.S. GAAP requires us to make estimatesasslimptions. Our significant
accounting policies are described in the Notesdns@lidated Financial Statements. Certain of tipedieies require the application of subjective
or complex judgments, often as a result of the needake estimates about the effect of mattersateinherently uncertain. These estimates
assumptions are based on historical experiencagelsan the business environment and other fattiatsve believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Different estimates that could Hmen applied in the current period or changesdratitounting estimates that are reasonably
likely can result in a material impact on our fio& condition and operating results in the curi@m future periods. We review the
development, selection and disclosure of thesieaiccounting estimates with Ryder’s Audit Contegton an annual basis.

The following discussion, which should be readanjanction with the descriptions in the Notes t;m€alidated Financial Statements, is
furnished for additional insight into certain acoting estimates that we consider to be critical.

Depreciation and Residual Value Guaranté&® periodically review and adjust the residual ealand useful lives of revenue earning
equipment of our FMS business segment as desdribiédte 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Padis — Revenue Earning Equipment,
Operating Property and Equipment, and Depreciatio’ “Summary of Significant Accounting PoliciesResidual Value Guarantees and
Deferred Gains,” in the Notes to Consolidated ForStatements. Reductions in residual values the price at which we ultimately expect to
dispose of revenue earning equipment) or usefeslivill result in an increase in depreciation exygeover the life of the equipment. Based on
the mix of revenue earning equipment at DecembgP@12 , a 10% decrease in expected vehicle rdsrdliges would increase depreciation
expense in 2013 by approximately $120 million . ¥\éew residual values and useful lives of revesaming equipment on an annual basis or
more often if deemed necessary for specific grafimair revenue earning equipment. Reviews are pegd based on vehicle class, generally
subcategories of trucks, tractors and trailers bigit and usage. Our annual review is establishtdasong-term view considering historical
market price changes, current and expected futar&ehprice trends, expected life of vehicles ideldi in the fleet and extent of alternative uses
for leased vehicles (e.qg., rental fleet, and SQ8iegtions). As a result, future depreciation exqeerates are subject to change based upon
changes in these factors. While we believe that#ng/ing values and estimated sales proceedg¥enue earning equipment are appropriate,
there can be no assurance that deterioration imoggiz conditions or adverse changes to expectatibhigure sales proceeds will not occur,
resulting in lower gains or losses on sales.

At the end of each year, we complete our annudtweuf the residual values and useful lives of rexeearning equipment. Based on the
results of our analysis in 2012 , we will adjust tesidual values and useful lives of certain easd our revenue earning equipment effective
January 1, 2013 . The change will increase earnmg813 by approximately $28 million compared wail2 . Factors that could cause actual
results to materially differ from the estimatedulesinclude significant changes in the used eqeiprmarket brought on by unforeseen changes
in technology innovations and any resulting changéele useful lives of used equipment. Based erréisults of the 2011 review, we adjusted
the residual values and useful lives of certaissga of revenue earning equipment effective Jariy&912 . The residual value changes
increased pre-tax earnings for 2012 by approximéi&8 million compared with 2011 . Based on theilteof our 201Gnalysis, we adjusted t
residual values of certain classes of our reveaneirg equipment effective January 1, 2011 . Thelual value changes decreased pre-tax
earnings for 2011 by approximately $5 million comguhwith 2010 .

Depreciation expense was $940 million , $872 millkmd $834 million in 2012 , 2011 and 2QX@spectively. Depreciation expense rel
primarily to FMS revenue earning equipment. Defton expense increased 8% in 2012 driven by higherage net vehicle investments and
higher writedowns of $10 million on vehicles hetdt §ale. The increase was partially offset by $18an from changes in residual values.
Depreciation expense increased 5% in 2011 driveddymillion from acquisitions, foreign exchangewvements of $7 million and higher
average net vehicle investments. The increase amislpy offset by $15 million of lower write-downs vehicles held for sale and $10 million
from both changes in residual values and accetbddpreciation.

We also lease vehicles under operating lease agreenCertain of these agreements contain limitedantees for a portion of the resic
values of the equipment. Results of the reviewsrilesd above for owned equipment are also apptiestjtiipment under operating lease. The
amount of residual value guarantees expected paiokis recognized as rent expense over the expesteaining term of the lease. At
December 31, 2012 , total liabilities for residualue guarantees of $2 million were included in €Aged expenses and other current
liabilities” (for those payable in less than onagend in “Other non-current liabilities.” Baseul the existing mix of vehicles under operating
lease agreements at December 31, 2012 , a 10%adedreexpected vehicle residual values would aseent expense in 2013 by
approximately $1 million .

Pension PlansWe apply actuarial methods to determine the anmeigperiodic pension expense and pension plarditiabion an annual
basis, or on an interim basis if there is an evemairing remeasurement. Each December, we revitwakbexperience compared with the more
significant assumptions used and make adjustmergrtassumptions, if warranted. In determiningamual estimate of periodic pension cost,
we are required to make an evaluation of critiaatdrs such as discount rate, expected long-teterofaeturn, expected increase in
compensation levels, retirement rate and mortality.
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Discount rates are based upon a duration analfsigpected benefit payments and the equivaleniaeeyield for high quality corporate fixed
income investments as of our December 31 annuadunement date. In order to provide a more accestimate of the discount rate relevant to
our plan, we use models that match projected bsrgdiyments of our primary U.S. plan to couponsraaturities from a hypothetical portfolio
of high quality corporate bonds. Long-term rateetfirn assumptions are based on actuarial reviewiofsset allocation strategy and long-term
expected asset returns. Investment managementiadfees paid using plan assets are factoredtietdetermination of asset return
assumptions.

In 2012 , we adjusted our long-term expected ratetarn assumption for our primary U.S. plan dawi?.05% from 7.45% based on the
factors reviewed. The composition of our pensisetswas 64% equity securities and 36% debt sesuaihd other investments. As part of our
strategy to manage future pension costs and ndetustatus volatility, we regularly assess our jpernisivestment strategy. We evaluate our mix
of investments between equity and fixed income stesi and may adjust the composition of our pamsissets when appropriate. In the fourth
quarter of 2012 , we modified our U.S. pension gtreent policy and strategy to reduce the effectatofe volatility on the fair value of our
pension assets relative to our pension liabiléigs result of an asset-liability study. Undernbes strategy, we will increase our allocation to
high quality, longer-term fixed income securitieslaeduce our allocation of equity investmentshasfinded status of the plan improves.

Accounting guidance applicable to pension plansdme require immediate recognition of the effefta deviation between these
assumptions and actual experience or the revidian estimate. This approach allows the favorabteunfavorable effects that fall within an
acceptable range to be netted and recorded witkéodmulated other comprehensive loss.” We had dgractuarial loss of $1.01 billion at the
end of 2012 compared with a loss of $927 milliothatend of 2011 . The increase in the net actuasa in 2012 resulted primarily from a
lower discount rate. To the extent the amount tfatal gains and losses exceed 10% of the lafgdedoenefit obligation or plan assets, such
amount is amortized over the average remaininghfgectancy of active participants or the remaitifiegexpectancy of inactive participants if
all or almost all of a plan’s participants are & The amount of the actuarial loss subjectorization in 2013 and future years will be $787
million . We expect to recognize approximately $8@ion of the net actuarial loss as a componergeafsion expense in 2013 . The effect on
years beyoni2013 will depend substantially upon the actual eéepee of our plans.

Disclosure of the significant assumptions usedriiviag at the 2012 net pension expense is predéntilote 24, “Employee Benefit
Plans,” in the Notes to Consolidated Financialestegnts. A sensitivity analysis of 2012 net pensipense to changes in key underlying
assumptions for our primary plan, the U.S. pengian, is presented below.

Effect on
Impact on 2012 Ne! December 31, 2012
Assumed Rate Change Pension Expens: Projected Benefit Obligation
Expected long-term rate of return on assets 7.05% +/-0.25 —/+ $3.0 million
Discount rate increase 4.9(% +0.25 —$0.4 million — $43 million
Discount rate decrease 4.9(% -0.25 + $ 0.2 million + $43 million
Actual return on assets 7.05% +/-0.25 —/+ $0.3 million

Self-Insurance Accrual§elf-insurance accruals were $279 million and $28Bon as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 , respelsti The
majority of our self-insurance relates to vehiddility and workers’ compensation. We use a vgradtstatistical and actuarial methods that are
widely used and accepted in the insurance indtistegtimate amounts for claims that have been tegdnut not paid and claims incurred but
reported. In applying these methods and assedsigrésults, we consider such factors as frequandyseverity of claims, claim development
and payment patterns and changes in the natungr &fusiness, among other factors. Such factoraraakyzed for each of our business segm
Our estimates may be impacted by such factorscasdees in the market price for medical servicegradictability of the size of jury awards
and limitations inherent in the estimation proc&ging 2012 , 2011 , and 201@ve recorded a benefit (charge) within earningsmfrontinuing
operations of $1 million , $4 million , and $(3)lhan , respectively, from development in estimagpetbr years’ self-insured loss reserves. Based
on self-insurance accruals at December 31, 20824 adverse change in actuarial claim loss estBnateild increase operating expens20i3
by approximately $12 million .

Goodwill ImpairmentWe assess goodwill for impairment, as describedate 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” in the Nate€onsolidated Financial Statements, on an artvasis or more often if deemed necessary.
At December 31, 2012 , goodwill totaled $384 miilioTo determine whether goodwill impairment indiaca exist, we are required to assess the
fair value of the reporting unit and compare ithte carrying value. A reporting unit is a componefin operating segment for which discrete
financial information is available and managemegutarly reviews its operating performance. In eathg goodwill for impairment, we have
the option to first assess qualitative factorsdtetmine whether further impairment testing is seaey.
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If a quantitative test is performed, our valuatidrair value for each reporting unit is determiresed on an average of discounted future
cash flow models that use ten years of projectst iaws and various terminal values based on pilakj book value or growth assumptions.
We considered the current trading multiples for pamable publicly-traded companies and the histbpdaing multiples for comparable merger
and acquisition transactions that have occurrediirindustry. Rates used to discount cash flowslapendent upon interest rates and the cost of
capital at a point in time. Our discount ratesaetffla weighted average cost of capital based oimdustry and capital structure adjusted for
equity risk premiums and size risk premiums basetharket capitalization. Estimates of future cdstv$ are dependent on our knowledge and
experience about past and current events and aisampbout conditions we expect to exist, inclgdiong-term growth rates, capital
requirements and useful lives. Our estimates df 8asis are also based on historical and futureatpey performance, economic conditions
actions we expect to take. In addition to thesefacour SCS reporting units are dependent orrakkey customers or industry sectors. The
loss of a key customer may have a significant ihfzone of our SCS reporting units, causing usstess whether or not the event resulted in a
goodwill impairment loss. While we believe our gsiies of future cash flows are reasonable, therdeano assurance that deterioration in
economic conditions, customer relationships or esvehanges to expectations of future performarié@ot occur, resulting in a goodwill
impairment loss.

Our annual impairment test performed as of AprRA12 did not result in any impairment of goodwille performed a qualitative test for
one of our reporting units. Due to acquisitions aaktility in the economic environment, we believiewas appropriate to have recent fair
values for the remaining two reporting units witiogwill. The total goodwill for these two reportingits was $369 million and the excess of
fair value over carrying value ranged from appraadiety $421 million to approximately $595 milliotn. order to evaluate the sensitivity of the
fair value calculations on the goodwill impairméest, we applied a hypothetical 5% decrease téafhgalues of each reporting unit. This
hypothetical 5% decrease would result in excesv&ile over carrying value ranging from approxieia$182 million to approximately $552
million for each of our reporting units.

Revenue RecognitioWe recognize revenue when persuasive evidence afrangement exists, the services have been rehtere
customers or delivery has occurred, the pricirfikesd or determinable, and collectibility is reagbly assured. In the normal course of business,
we may act as or use an agent in executing trdosaatith our customers. In these arrangementguwatiate whether we should report revenue
based on the gross amount billed to the customen ¢gine net amount received from the customer pfigments to third parties.

Determining whether revenue should be reported@ssgr net is based on an assessment of whetheneveeting as the principal or the
agent in the transaction and involves judgmentdasethe terms of the arrangement. To the exterdre@cting as the principal in the
transaction, revenue is reported on a gross bEsithe extent we are acting as an agent in thedwion, revenue is reported on a net basis. In
the majority of our arrangements, we are acting psincipal and therefore report revenue on a drass. However, our SCS business segment
engages in some transactions where we act as agehthus record revenue on a net basis. The inopaet earnings is the same whether we
record revenue on a gross or net basis. From titime, the terms and conditions of our transpintatnanagement arrangements may change,
which could require a change in revenue recognitiom a gross basis to a net basis or vice veraan®-GAAP measure of operating revenue
would not be impacted from this change in revempeiting.

Income Taxeur overall tax position is complex and requireefid analysis by management to estimate the egfdeetlization of
income tax assets and liabilities.

Tax regulations require items to be included intthereturn at different times than the items afeected in the financial statements. As a
result, the effective tax rate reflected in thafinial statements is different than that repontetthé tax return. Some of these differences are
permanent, such as expenses that are not dedumiltes tax return, and some are timing differensesh as depreciation expense. Timing
differences create deferred tax assets and liakiliDeferred tax assets generally represent iteatsan be used as a tax deduction or credit in
the tax return in future years for which we haveadly recorded the tax benefit in the financialesteents. Deferred tax assets amounted to $643
million and $626 million at December 31, 2012 afd 2, respectively. We record a valuation allowaecaleferred tax assets to reduce such
assets to amounts expected to be realized. At DeseBi, 2012 and 2011 , the deferred tax valuatilonvance, principally attributed to foreign
tax loss carryforwards in the SCS business segmeist$38 million and $41 million , respectively.datermining the required level of valuation
allowance, we consider whether it is more likelgrtimot that all or some portion of deferred taetswill not be realized. This assessment is
based on management’s expectations as to whetlfieiesut taxable income of an appropriate charawtdirbe realized within tax carryback and
carryforward periods. Our assessment involves astisnand assumptions about matters that are irilyeseicertain, and unanticipated events or
circumstances could cause actual results to difben these estimates. Should we change our estiofide amount of deferred tax assets the
would be able to realize, an adjustment to theatan allowance would result in an increase or el@se to the provision for income taxes in the
period such a change in estimate was made.

We are subject to tax audits in numerous jurisoiigiin the U.S. and around the world. Tax auditthbyr very nature are often complex
and can require several years to complete. Indnmal course of business, we are subject to clggken
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from the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and othemuthorities regarding amounts of taxes due.dhballenges may alter the timing or
amount of taxable income or deductions, or thecation of income among tax jurisdictions. As pdrber calculation of the provision for
income taxes on earnings, we determine whethdvahefits of our tax positions are at least moreljikhan not of being sustained upon audit
based on the technical merits of the tax posifi@n.tax positions that are more likely than nobeing sustained upon audit, we accrue the
largest amount of the benefit that is more likélgrt not of being sustained in our consolidatednfifed statements. Such accruals require
management to make estimates and judgments witkeet the ultimate outcome of a tax audit. Acteallts could vary materially from these
estimates. We adjust these reserves, includingnapgct on the related interest and penaltiesgint lof changing facts and circumstances, such
as progress of a tax audit.

A number of years may elapse before a particulatemBor which we have established a reserve igedidnd finally resolved. The
number of years with open tax audits varies depgndn the tax jurisdiction. The tax benefit thas baen previously reserved because of a
failure to meet the “more likely than not” recogmit threshold would be recognized in our incomeetagense in the first interim period when
the uncertainty is resolved under any one of tlleviidng conditions: (1) the tax position is “moiikdly than not” to be sustained, (2) the tax
position, amount, and/or timing is ultimately sattthrough negotiation or litigation, or (3) thatste of limitations for the tax position has
expired. Settlement of any particular issue wowdally require the use of cash. See Note 14, “Ircdaxes,” in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for further discussion ofdtatus of tax audits and uncertain tax positions.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

See Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Bies — Recent Accounting Pronouncements,” in thiedlto Consolidated Financial
Statements for a discussion of recent accountiogqumcements.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes informatextracted from consolidated financial informatkan not required by generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) to be presekt the financial statements. Certain of thisinfation are considered “non-GAAP
financial measures” as defined by SEC rules. Sigadlif, we refer to adjusted return on averagetefppperating revenue, FMS operating
revenue, FMS EBT as a % of operating revenue, §egating revenue, SCS EBT as a % of operating teyatedicated services operating
revenue, total cash generated, free cash flow,dbtmations, total obligations to equity, comgaleaearnings from continuing operations and
comparable earnings per diluted common share fiamtiraiing operations. As required by SEC rulespwide a reconciliation of each non-
GAAP financial measure to the most comparable GAwdasure and an explanation why management belieaepresentation of the non-
GAAP financial measure provides useful informatiornvestors. NorGAAP financial measures should be considered iiitiaddo, but not as
substitute for or superior to, other measuresraifcial performance prepared in accordance with BAA

The following table provides a numerical recontidtia of earnings from continuing operations befio@me taxes to comparable earnings
from continuing operations before income taxesteryears ended December 31, 2010 , 2009 and 20i88 was not provided within the
MD&A discussion:

2010 2009 2008
(In thousands)
Earnings from continuing operations before income&s$ $ 186,30! 143,76 409,28t
Net restructuring charges — 6,40¢ 21,48(
International asset (gain on sale)/impairment (946) 6,67¢ 1,617
Acquisition transaction costs 4,09 — —
Comparable earnings from continuing operationsfegftcome taxes $ 189,45t 156,85 432,38!
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The following table provides a numerical recontitia of net cash provided by operating activitie$ree cash flow for the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008 which was not providddmthe MD&A discussion:

2009 2008
(In thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 984,95t 1,248,16!
Sales of revenue earning equipment 211,00: 257,67¢
Sales of operating property and equipment 4,63¢ 3,72i
Collections on direct finance leases 65,24: 61,09¢
Other, net 20¢ 39t
Total cash generated 1,266,04. 1,571,06!
Purchases of property and revenue earning equipment (651,95)) (1,230,40)
Free cash flow $ 614,09( 340,66!

The following table provides a numerical recontidia of earnings from continuing operations anchzeys per diluted common share fr
continuing operations to comparable earnings frontinuing operations and comparable earnings petedicommon share from continuing
operations for the years ended December 31, 20@09 and 2008 which was not provided within the MDdiscussion:

2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
Earnings from continuing operations $ 124,60! 90,117 257,57¢
Net restructuring charges — 4,17¢ 17,49
Tax law changes and/or benefits from reserve ralers (20,777) (6,339 (9,54%)
International (gain on sale)/impairment (946) 6,67¢ 1,617
Acquisition transaction costs 4,097 — —
Comparable earnings from continuing operations $ 116,98t 94,63( 267,14«
Earnings per diluted common share from continuipgrations $ 2.31 1.6Z 4.51
Net restructuring charges — 0.07 0.31
Tax law changes/or benefits from reserve reversals (0.2)) (0.1)) (0.19)
International (gain on sale)/impairment (0.02) 0.12 0.0
Acquisition transaction costs 0.0¢ — —
Comparable earnings per diluted common share famirwing operations $ 2.22 1.7C 4.6¢

The following table provides a numerical recontiitia of total revenue to operating revenue forytears ended December 31, 2012 , 2011
and 2010 which was not provided within the MD&Adission:

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Total revenue $ 6,256,96 6,050,53 5,136,43
FMS fuel services and SCS subcontracted transportetvenue (1,420,24) (1,430,96) (1,126,94))
Fuel eliminations 229,59 194,99( 148,75(
Operating revenue $ 5,066,32. 4,814,55 4,158,23!
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The following table provides a numerical recontitia of total revenue to operating revenue forttiree months endddecember 31, 20:
and 2011 which was not provided within the MD&Aalission:

Three months ended
December 31,

2012 2011
(In thousands)
Total revenue $ 1,583,53i 1,541,09
FMS fuel services and SCS subcontracted transportegvenue (354,367) (354,83f)
Fuel eliminations 58,39¢ 50,73¢
Operating revenue $ 1,287,57. 1,236,99

The following table provides a numerical recontidia of net earnings to adjusted net earnings &edage total debt to adjusted average
total capital for the years ended December 31, 2@0A1 , 2010, 2009 and 2008 which was not pexvidithin the MD&A discussion:

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands)

Net earning$A] $ 209,97¢ 169,77 118,17( 61,94¢ 199,88:
R%?tructurlng and other charges, net and othesitem 16.66¢ 5,74¢ 6,228 29 941 70.44:
Income taxes 90,91: 108,42! 60,61( 53,73’ 150,07!

Adjusted net earnings before income taxes 317,55¢ 283,95( 185,00! 145,62! 420,40
Adjusted interest expen&e 143,35! 135,12 132,77¢ 149,96¢ 164,97
Adjusted income taxe® (166,63!) (156,58)) (123,429 (121,759 (230,450

Adjusted net earnind8] $ 294,27 262,49t 194,35: 173,83! 354,92.
Average total debt $ 3,707,09 3,078,511 2,512,00! 2,691,56! 2,881,93
Average off-balance sheet debt 126,06 77,60¢ 114,21 141,62¢ 170,69:

Average obligations 3,833,16 3,156,12. 2,626,21 2,833,19! 3,052,62!
Average shareholders’ equii§] 1,406,601 1,428,04: 1,401,68. 1,395,62! 1,778,48
Average adjustments to shareholders’ eqtiity (2,939 4,16¢ 2,05¢ 15,64 9,60¢

Average adjusted shareholders’ equity 1,403,67. 1,432,21. 1,403,74 1,411,27. 1,788,09

Average adjusted capitfbd] $ 5,236,83 4,588,33 4,029,95 4,244,47. 4,840,72.

Return on average shareholders’ eq[A{C] 14.9% 11.9% 8.4% 4.4% 11.2%

Adjusted return on average capita]/[D] 5.€% 2.1% 4.8% 4.1% 7.2%

(1) For2012, 2011 and 2010, see Note 4, “Discontinuegtaiions,” Note 5, “Restructuring and Other Chargesd Note 26, “Other Items Impacting Comparabilityn the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme 2009 includes $23 million of restructuring and atbbarges, of which $17 million related to our distinued operations, and a
$7 million impairment charge related to an interioatal asset; 2008 includes $68 million of restruoig and other charges, of which $47 million reldt® our discontinued
operations, and $2 million of impairment chargesamninternational operating facility.

(2) Includes interest on ebalance sheet vehicle obligatiol

(3) Calculated by excluding taxes related to restruictyiand other charges (recoveries), net and ottems, impacts of tax law changes or reserve rel®esa interest expens

(4) Represents sharehold’ equity adjusted for cumulative effect of accounthgnges and tax benefits in the respective per
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Forward-looking statements (within the meaninghef Federal Private Securities Litigation Reform 8c1995) are statements that relate
to expectations, beliefs, projections, future pland strategies, anticipated events or trends coimgematters that are not historical facts. These
statements are often preceded by or include thdsvielieve,” “expect,” “intend,” “estimate,” “ardipate,” “will,” “may,” “could,” “should” or
similar expressions. This Annual Report contaime/érd-looking statements including, but not limited statements regarding:

* our expectations as to anticipated revenue andregys trends specifically, earnings per shatea| tevenue, operating revenue, used
vehicle sales and volume results, contract reveriukservice lease and contract maintenance dropricing trends in used vehicle
sales and commercial rental and new SCS busimepspved SCS retention levels, and higher SCS vadume

« our ability to successfully achieve the operadicgoals that are the basis of our business gtesteincluding driving fleet growth,
delivering a consistent, industry-leading and @ffective maintenance program, optimizing assdization and management, providing
differentiated quality of service and best exeautiteveloping broad-based capabilities, creatiogl@re of innovation, focusing on
continuous improvement and standardization andessfally implementing sales and marketing strategie

« impact of losses from conditional obligations arisfrom guarantee

» number of NLE vehicles in inventory and the size@of commercial rental fle

« estimates of free cash flow and capital expenditioe 2013

« the adequacy of our accounting estimates arfves for pension expense, compensatiated expense, depreciation and residual
guarantees, rent expense under operation leaffessseance reserves, goodwill impairment, accougthanges and income taxes;

 our ability to meet our operating, investing dimdncing needs in the foreseeable future thranggrnally generated funds and outside
funding sources;

» our expected level of use of outside fundingrses, anticipated future payments under debt, l@adeurchase agreements, and risk of
losses resulting from counterparty default undelgiy and derivative agreements;

« the anticipated impact of fuel price fluctuatiomsaur operations, cash flows and financial posj

* our expectations as to future pension expendeantributions, the impact of pension legislatiagwell as the continued effect of the
freeze of our pension plans on our benefit fundeguirements;

» our expectations relating to withdrawal lialyiland funding levels of mulg&mployer plan:

« the status of our unrecognized tax benefits reltede U.S. federal, state and foreign tax passt

» our expectations regarding the completion and alimoutcome of certain tax auc

« the ultimate disposition of legal proceedings astihgated environmental liabilitie

* our expectations relating to compliance with negutatory requirement

* our expectations regarding the effect of the adopdf recent accounting pronouncements;

 expected recovery of costs and losses resultimy 8aperstorm Sanc

These statements, as well as other forward-loogiaggements contained in this Annual Report, aredas our current plans and
expectations and are subject to risks, uncertaiatiel assumptions. We caution readers that cémaiortant factors could cause actual results
and events to differ significantly from those exgzed in any forward-looking statements. For a etalescription of certain of these risk
factors, please see “ltem 1A—Risk Factors” of thimual Report.

ITEM 1A — RISK FACTORS

The risks included in the Annual Report are notaextive. New risk factors emerge from time to tene it is not possible for
management to predict all such risk factors orsseas the impact of such risk factors on our basinks a result, no assurance can be given
our future results or achievements. You shouldofexte undue reliance on the forward-looking statéseontained herein, which speak only as
of the date of this Annual Report. We do not intesrdassume any obligation, to update or revisefarward-looking statements contained in
this Annual Report, whether as a result of newrimfation, future events or otherwise.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK
The information required by ITEM 7A is includedlifiEM 7 (page 42) of PART Il of this report.
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MANAGEMENT’'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC IAL REPORTING

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF RYDER SYSTEM, INC.:

Management of Ryder System, Inc., together witlkatssolidated subsidiaries (Ryder), is responddrlestablishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial repor@sgdefined in Rules 13a- 15(f) and 15d-15(f) utderSecurities Exchange Act of 1934. Ryder’
internal control over financial reporting is desgno provide reasonable assurance regarding lthbiligy of financial reporting and the
preparation of the consolidated financial statemémt external purposes in accordance with accogmtiinciples generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Ryder’s internal control over financial reporting inclsdfose policies and procedures that (1) pertathetanaintenance of records that
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleetttiansactions and dispositions of the assets déRY2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepiagation of financial statements in accordanch gaterally accepted accounting principles,
and that our receipts and expenditures are beintg maly in accordance with authorizations of Ryslenanagement and directors; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prewveatitimely detection of unauthorized acquisitioge or disposition of Ryder’s assets that
could have a material effect on the consolidatedritial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detaisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssaibject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of Rydeetsah control over financial reporting as of Detem31, 2012 . In making this
assessment, management used the criteria sebfpttie Committee of Sponsoring Organizations ofTtteadway Commission in “Internal
Control — Integrated Framework.” Based on our agsesit and those criteria, management determinédtftier maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December3112 .

Ryder’s independent registered certified publicoaicting firm has audited the effectiveness of Riglieiternal control over financial
reporting. Their report appears on page 52.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CERTIFIED PUBLIC A CCOUNTING FIRM

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS OF
RYDER SYSTEM, INC.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statemfesisrongs, comprehensive income
(loss), shareholders’ equity and cash flows prefgerty, in all material respects, the financialsgimn of Ryder System, Inc. and its subsidiaries
at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the resulteofoperations and their cash flows for eacthefthree years in the period ended
December 31, 2012 in conformity with accountingpiples generally accepted in the United Statesnoérica. In addition, in our opinion, the
financial statement schedule listed in the accoryipgnindex presents fairly, in all material resgethe information set forth therein when read
in conjunction with the related consolidated finahstatements. Also in our opinion, the Companyta@ned, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of Beter 31, 2012 , based on criteria establisheatérial Control—Integrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s manageimeesponsible for these
financial statements and financial statement sdeeflor maintaining effective internal control ovierancial reporting and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over finahoggporting, included in the accompanying ManagetsdReport on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to exgg®@pinions on these financial statements, onitla@dial statement schedule, and on the
Company’s internal control over financial reportimgsed on our integrated audits. We conductedwitsain accordance with the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (BaiStates). Those standards require that we pthpenform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the finanatehstnts are free of material misstatement andheheffective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe©is: audits of the financial statements includedh@ring, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statgsn assessing the accounting principles usedgignificant estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statementgmetion. Our audit of internal control over finalceporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financigloging, assessing the risk that a material weakagists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal controkblasn the assessed risk. Our audits also includddrming such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. Wevbdh@t our audits provide a reasonable basisuoopinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordanttegeinerally accepted accounting principles.
A company'’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thae(iain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettlansactions and dispositions of the assetseofampany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
transactions are recorded as necessary to perapiagation of financial statements in accordanch génerally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the companpeing made only in accordance with authorizat@imanagement and directors of the
company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurancardagg prevention or timely detection of unauthedacquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or d¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieproicedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

February 14, 2013
Miami, Florida
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

Lease and rental revenues

Services revenue

Fuel services revenue
Total revenues

Cost of lease and rental

Cost of services

Cost of fuel services

Other operating expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses
Gains on vehicle sales, net

Interest expense

Miscellaneous income, net

Restructuring and other charges, net

Earnings from continuing operations before incomes$
Provision for income taxes
Earnings from continuing operations
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, fi¢do
Net earnings

Earnings (loss) per common share — Basic
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net earnings
Earnings (loss) per common share — Diluted
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net earnings

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@stistents.

Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

2,695,37 2,553,87 2,309,811
2,707,01 2,609,17. 2,109,74
854,571 887,48: 716,87:
6,256,96 6,050,53. 5,136,43!
1,890,65' 1,746,05 1,604,25.
2,274,11 2,186,35: 1,763,01
838,67. 873,46t 699,10
135,90« 129,18( 134,22.
766,70« 771,24: 655,37!
(89,10¢) (62,879 (28,72)
140,55 133,16 129,99:
(11,72) (9,099 (7,114
8,07( 3,65¢ —
5,953,85! 5,771,14 4,950,13
303,11 279,38 186,30!
102,21 108,01¢ 61,69"
200,89¢ 171,36¢ 124,60t
9,08( (1,597 (6,43¢)
209,97! 169,77 118,17(
3.9¢ 3.34 2.3¢

0.1¢ (0.09) (0.19)

411 3.31 2.2t

3.91 3.31 2.37

0.1¢ (0.09) (0.12)

4.0¢ 3.2¢ 2.2




RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)

Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

(In thousands)

Net earnings $ 209,97 169,77 118,171

Other comprehensive loss before taxes:
Change in unrealized components of defined beplgits:

Net actuarial loss during the period (109,76Y (282,94)) (35,819
Amortization 28,67« 17,91% 16,86
Settlements — — 1,48
(81,09) (265,02 (17,46

Change in cumulative translation adjustment androth 29,64: (17,76%) 12,99t
Other comprehensive loss before taxes (51,45() (282,799 (4,472)
Benefit for taxes 30,99¢ 92,22¢ 6,792
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of taxes (20,459 (190,56¢) 2,32(
Comprehensive income (loss) $ 189,52 (20,789 120,49(

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@stistents.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2012

2011

Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

(Dollars in thousands, except

per share amount)

Total current assets

Revenue earning equipment, net of accumulated diegicn of $3,514,910 and $3,462,359,
respectively

Operating property and equipment, net of accumdldéepreciation of $966,220 and
$911,717, respectively

Goodwill
Intangible assets
Direct financing leases and other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity:
Current liabilities:
Short-term debt and current portion of long-terrhtde
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Other non-current liabilities
Deferred income taxes

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity:

Preferred stock of no par value per share — awbdyi3,800,917; none outstanding,
December 31, 2012 or 2011

Common stock of $0.50 par value per share — awédri400,000,000; outstanding,
December 31, 2012 — 51,371,696; December 31, 20511;143,946

Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

66,39 104,57.
775,76t 754,64
64,14¢ 65,91
133,93 163,04
1,040,23 1,088,17:
5,754,60: 5,049,67.
624,85: 624,18
384,21 377,30t
80,47 84,82(
434,59( 393,68!
8,318,97! 7,617,83!
367,97 274,36t
398,98 391,82
505,70 507,63
1,272,66! 1,173,82
3,452,82. 3,107,77.
948,93 896,58
1,177,07. 1,121,49:
6,851,49: 6,299,68:
25,68t 25,57
808,23 769,38:
1,221,19 1,090,36:
(587,619 (567,16Y
1,467,48 1,318,15
8,318,97! 7,617,83!

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@stistents.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010

(In thousands)

Net earnings $ 209,97¢ 169,77 118,17(
Less: Earnings (loss) from discontinued operatiaes of tax 9,08( (1,59)) (6,43¢)
Earnings from continuing operations 200,89¢ 171,36¢ 124,60¢
Depreciation expense 939,67 872,26 833,84:
Gains on vehicle sales, net (89,109) (62,879 (28,72))
Share-based compensation expense 18,86¢ 17,42 16,54:
Amortization expense and other non-cash charges, ne 49,20¢ 39,92¢ 40,90(
Deferred income tax expense 87,10: 90,01¢ 41,097

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, natqtiisitions:
Receivables 7,107 (92,020 (18,020
Inventories 72¢ (6,159 (7,50¢)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 10,71t (25,040 (4,896
Accounts payable (22,809 24,657 6,90¢
Accrued expenses and other non-current liabilities (68,26) 12,39t 23,29(
Net cash provided by operating activities of comitig operations 1,134,12. 1,041,95! 1,028,03.

Cash flows from financing activities of continuingerations:

Net change in commercial paper borrowings (64,757) 46,74¢ 174,93¢
Debt proceeds 745,77 966,40: 314,16¢
Debt repaid, including capital lease obligations (283,93) (419,28) (248,669
Dividends on common stock (61,266 (57,509 (54,479
Common stock issued 28,38¢ 33,35¢ 17,02¢
Common stock repurchased (26,87%) (59,689 (123,300
Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation 1,341 1,71C 754
Debt issuance costs (4,867) (7,53¢) (2,287

Net cash provided by financing activities of contirg operations 333,80" 504,20: 78,16¢

Cash flows from investing activities of continuiagerations:

Purchases of property and revenue earning equipment (2,133,23) (1,698,58) (1,070,09)
Sales of revenue earning equipment 405,44( 290,33¢ 220,84
Sale and leaseback of revenue earning equipment 130,18« 37,39¢ —
Sales of operating property and equipment 7,35( 9,90t 13,84«
Acquisitions (5,113 (361,92)) (211,89)
Collections on direct finance leases 71,89" 62,22¢ 61,767
Changes in restricted cash 19,20¢ 3,47¢ (107)
Other, net — — 3,17¢
Net cash used in investing activities of continuapgrations (1,504,27) (1,657,17) (982,46
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 1,34« 3,21¢ 1,72¢
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalentsdontinuing operations (35,000 (107,799 125,45¢
Cash flows from discontinued operations:
Operating cash flows (3,219 (500) (9,276
Financing cash flows — (140 (2,955
Investing cash flows — — 1,67
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 39 (46) (377
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents from discmttioperations (3,180 (68€) (10,93

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash eauiv: 29 19N 1N 2197 114 B9



Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 104,57: 213,05 98,52t

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 $ 66,39: 104,57: 213,05¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financasstents.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred
Stock Common Stock Additional Retained Accgrt‘gtélra ted
Amount Shares Par Paid-In Capital Earnings Comprehensive Los Total
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Balance at January 1, 2010 $ — 53,419,72 $ 26,71( 743,02 1,036,17: (378,919 1,426,99!
Net earnings — — — — 118,17( — 118,17(
Other comprehensive income — — — — — 2,32( 2,32(

Comprehensive income — — — — — — 120,49(

Common stock dividends declared and paid—

$1.04 per share — — — — (54,472 — (54,472

Common stock issued under employee stock

option and stock purchase plahs — 740,24. 37C 16,65¢ — — 17,02¢

Benefit plan stock purchasgs — (3,160) 2 (12¢) — — (130)

Common stock repurchases — (2,982,04) (1,49) (41,590 (80,089 — (123,170

Share-based compensation — _ — 16,541 — _ 16,54°

Tax benefits from share-based compensation — — — 1,031 — — 1,031

Balance at December 31, 2010 — 51,174,75 25,58: 735,54( 1,019,78 (376,599 1,404,31

Net earnings — — — — 169,77 — 169,77
Other comprehensive loss — _ — _ — (190,56¢) (190,56¢)
Comprehensive loss — — — — — — (20,789
Common stock dividends declared and paid—
$1.12 per share — — — — (57,509 — (57,509
Common stock issued under employee stock
option and stock purchase plahs — 1,157,54 57¢ 32,78( — — 33,35¢

Benefit plan stock purchas@s — (12,57¢) (6) (5817) — — (587)

Common stock repurchases — (1,175,78) (589) (16,819 (41,699 — (59,109

Share-based compensation — _ — 17,42: — _ 17,42:

Tax benefits from share-based compensation _ _ _ 1,04¢ _ _ 1,04¢

Balance at December 31, 2011 — 51,143,94 25,57 769,38 1,090,36: (567,169 1,318,15:

Net earnings — — — — 209,97 — 209,97
Other comprehensive loss _ _ _ _ _ (20,459 (20,45¢)
Comprehensive income — _ — _ — _ 189,52!
Common stock dividends declared and paid—
$1.20 per share — — — — (61,26¢) — (61,26¢)
Common stock issued under employee stock
option and stock purchase plahs — 782,78: 391 27,99t — — 28,38¢

Benefit plan stock purchas@s — (11,110 5) (530 — — (535)

Common stock repurchases — (543,92) 272 (8,189 (17,889 — (26,349

Share-based compensation — — — 18,86¢ — — 18,86«

Tax benefits from share-based compensation _ _ _ 703 _ _ 702

Balance at December 31, 2012 $ — 51,371,69 $ 25,68t 808,23( 1,221,191 (587,619 1,467,48

(1) Net of common shares delivered as payment fontbeeise price or to satisfy the holders’ withholglirax liability upon exercise of options.
(2) Represents open-market transactions of commares by the trustee of Ryder’s deferred compenrsaians.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financa#stents.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Consolidation and Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include to@ants of Ryder System, Inc. (Ryder) and all &giin which Ryder has a controlling
voting interest (“subsidiaries”) and variable irggrentities (“VIEs”) where Ryder is determined#the primary beneficiary. Ryder is deemed
to be the primary beneficiary if we have the powedirect the activities that most significantlypact the entitys economic performance and
share in the significant risks and rewards of thigye All significant intercompany accounts andrtsactions between consolidated companies
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Comprehensive income (loss) presents a measutkecbigages in shareholders’ equity except for cleamgsulting from transactions with
shareholders in their capacity as shareholderst@dircomprehensive income (loss) presently ctsmsisnet earnings, currency translation
adjustments associated with foreign operationsuseaitthe local currency as their functional curyeadjustments for derivative instruments
accounted for as cash flow hedges and various geasid other postretirement benefits related items.

Reclassifications

In 2012, we changed our business segments andimarg measure of segment operating performanceopeate in two business
segments: Fleet Management Solutions (FMS) andIg@min Solutions (SCS). Prior to 2012, Dedicafmmhtract Carriage (DCC) was
reported as a separate business segment. In 2082a1®1 DCC were combined as a result of changingnternal reporting to coincide with
how we operate our business. Our primary measurenfisegment operating performance, “Earnings Belaxes” (EBT) from continuing
operations, was also changed in 2012 to excludadheoperating components of pension costs in daderore accurately reflect the operating
performance of the business segments. Prior yeau@ats have been reclassified to conform to theectiperiod presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial stegets requires management to make estimates amuhgtssns that affect the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statementsaaccompanying notes. These estimates are basadrmagement’s best knowledge of
historical trends, actions that we may take infthiere, and other information available when thesmidated financial statements are prepared.
Changes in estimates are recognized in accordaiticehs accounting rules for the estimate, whictyscally in the period when new
information becomes available. Areas where theraaifithe estimate make it reasonably possibleabiaial results could materially differ from
the amounts estimated include: depreciation ariduakvalue guarantees, employee benefit plan atiigs, self-insurance accruals, impairment
assessments on long-lived assets (including gobdmdl indefinite-lived intangible assets), revene@ognition, allowance for accounts
receivable, income tax liabilities and contingeabilities.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents represent cash in excess of tupenating requirements invested in short-terterast-bearing instruments with
maturities of three months or less at the dateuoflpase and are stated at cost.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash primarily consists of cash procéreds the sale of eligible vehicles set aside far &cquisition of replacement vehicles
under our like-kind exchange tax program. See Ndte¢'Income Taxes,” for a complete discussion efwkhicle like-kind exchange tax
program. We classify restricted cash within “Prepaipenses and other current assets” if the réstrits expected to expire in the twelve
months following the balance sheet date or witliréct financing leases and other assets” if tiséricion is expected to expire more than
twelve months after the balance sheet date. Thegelsain restricted cash balances are reflected asesting activity in our Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows as they relate to the salé purchases of revenue earning equipment.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when persuasive evidence afrangement exists, the services have been rehtteceistomers or delivery has
occurred, the pricing is fixed or determinable, antlectibility is reasonably assured. In our ewion of whether revenue is fixed or
determinable, we determine whether the total cohtransideration in the arrangement could changedan one or more factors. These factors,
which vary among each of our segments, are fudiseussed below. Generally, the judgments madthé&se purposes do not materially impact
the revenue recognized in any period. Sales tdgatetl from customers and remitted to the appleédoting authorities is accounted for on a
basis, with no impact on revenue.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Conti nued)

Our judgments on collectibility are initially esteted when a business relationship with a custasiieitiated and is continuously
monitored as services are provided. We have ataadig system based on internally developed statsdand ratings provided by third parties.
Our credit rating system, along with monitoring éi@linquent payments, allows us to make decisisrte avhether collectibility may not be
reasonably assured. Factors considered duringrbéess include historical payment trends, indussis, liquidity of the customer, years in
business, and judgments, liens or bankruptcies.ngbtectibility is not considered reasonably assuftypically when a customer is 120 days
past due ), revenue is not recognized until casbllscted from the customer.

We generate revenue primarily through the leasgarand maintenance of revenue earning equipnmehbwg providing logistics
management and dedicated services. We classifieganues in one of the following categories:

Lease and rentz

Lease and rental includes full service lease antheercial rental revenues from our FMS business sagrfrull service lease is marketed,
priced and managed as a bundled lease arrangeatgct, includes equipment, service and financing ponents. We do not offer a stand-alone
unbundled finance lease of equipment. For thesonsa both the lease and service components déibservice leases are included within le
and rental revenues.

Our full service lease arrangements include leatieadables such as the lease of a vehicle andxbeutory agreement for the
maintenance, insurance, taxes and other servilzedeo the leased equipment during the lease t&rmangement consideration is allocated
between lease deliverables and non-lease delivsrélalsed on management’s best estimate of thivediair value of each deliverable. The
arrangement consideration allocated to lease daliles is accounted for pursuant to accountingagged on leases. Our full service lease
arrangements provide for a fixed charge billing andriable charge billing based on mileage or tis@ge. Fixed charges are typically billed at
the beginning of the month for the services to tmiped that month. Variable charges are typichilied a month in arrears. Costs associated
with the activities performed under our full servieasing arrangements are primarily comprisedladi, parts, outside work, depreciation,
licenses, insurance, operating taxes and vehinte These costs are expensed as incurred excegi¢fioeciation. Refer to “Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies — Revenue Earnimiiment, Operating Property and Equipment, and&sgtion” for information regarding
our depreciation policies. Non-chargeable mainteeaosts have been allocated and reflected witbast of lease and rental” based on the
maintenance-related labor costs relative to aliipeblines.

Revenue from lease and rental agreements is remmhhased on the classification of the arrangenygitally as either an operating or
direct finance lease (DFL).

» The majority of our leases and all of our reatahngements are classified as operating leasktharefore, we recognize lease and
commercial rental revenue on a straight-line basiit becomes receivable over the term of the leasental arrangement. Lease and
rental agreements do not usually provide for scleedent increases or escalations. However, mastlagreements allow for rate
changes based upon changes in the Consumer Fdie (GPI). Lease and rental agreements also préetdeshicle usage charges ba
on a time charge and/or a fixed per-mile charge. fited time charge, the fixed per-mile charge #redchanges in rates attributed to
changes in the CPI are considered contingent seatal are not considered fixed or determinablé th&ieffect of CPI changes is
implemented or the equipment usage occurs.

» The non-lease deliverables of our full servieask arrangements are comprised of access totstgbgéhicles, emergency road service,
and safety services. These services are availaldertcustomers throughout the lease term. Accglglimevenue is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

» Leases not classified as operating leases ar@y considered direct financing leases. Wegaize revenue for direct financing leases
using the effective interest interest method, witinbvides a constant periodic rate of return onoltstanding investment on the lease.
Recognition of income on direct finance leasesigpended when management determines that collesftioture income is not
probable, which is generally at the point at whind customer’s delinquent balance is determindwsbtat risk ( generally over 120 days
past due ). Accrual is resumed, and previouslyesudpd income is recognized, when the receivablenbes contractually current and/or
collection doubts are removed. Cash receipts omirag direct finance lease receivables are figinded against the direct finance lease
receivable and then to any unrecognized incomedrektfinance lease receivable is considered ingpaipased on current information
and events, if it is probable that we will be uretd collect all amounts due according to the emttral terms of the lease.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Conti nued)

Services

Services include contract maintenance, contraatedlmaintenance and other revenues from our FMBd®ss segment and all SCS
revenues.

Under our contract maintenance arrangements, weéderonaintenance and repairs required to keep igleeh good operating condition,
schedule mechanical preventive maintenance ingpecéind access to emergency road service andtatdsgghicles. The vast majority of our
services are routine services performed on a riegubasis throughout the term of the arrangemeninRime to time, we provide non-routine
major repair services in order to place a vehielektin service. Revenue from maintenance servin&acts is recognized on a straight-line basis
as maintenance services are rendered over the ¢éims related arrangements.

Contract maintenance arrangements are generalbeledrle, without penalty, after one year with 69dprior written notice . Our
maintenance service arrangement provides for ahfyofited charge and a monthly variable charge tasemileage or time usage. Fixed
charges are typically billed at the beginning & thonth for the services to be provided that movidhiable charges are typically billed a month
in arrears. Most contract maintenance agreemelots &r rate changes based upon changes in theT®BIfixed per-mile charge and the
changes in rates attributed to changes in the &Rlegognized as earned. Costs associated witictivities performed under our contract
maintenance arrangements are primarily compriséabaofr, parts and outside work. These costs areresqa as incurred. Non-chargeable
maintenance costs have been allocated and refledtieid “Cost of services” based on the relativeimenance-related labor costs relative to all
product lines.

Revenue from SCS service contracts is recognizedrages are rendered in accordance with cortgatts, which typically include
discrete billing rates for the services. In cerfa®S contracts, a portion of the contract constiteranay be contingent upon the satisfaction of
performance criteria, attainment of pain/gain shiaresholds or volume thresholds. The contingentiiggoof the revenue in these arrangements
is not considered fixed or determinable until teef@rmance criteria or thresholds have been metahsportation management arrangements
where we act as principal, revenue is reported gross basis, without deducting third-party pureldasansportation costs. To the extent that we
are acting as an agent in the arrangement, reusemaported on a net basis, after deducting puszhasnsportation costs.

Fuel

Fuel services include fuel services revenue fromFMIS business segment. Revenue from fuel serisaesognized when fuel is
delivered to customers. Fuel is largely a passdindo our customers for which we realize minintereges in profitability during periods of
steady market fuel prices. However, profitabilitayrbe positively or negatively impacted by suddemgases or decreases in market fuel prices
during a short period of time as customer pricimgffiel services is established based on markéthsts.

Accounts Receivable Allowance

We maintain an allowance for uncollectible customeeeivables and an allowance for billing adjustteeelated to certain discounts and
billing corrections. Estimates are updated regylbased on historical experience of bad debts dlgbadjustments processed, current
collection trends and aging analysis. Accountcaerged against the allowance when determined tmbellectible. The allowance is
maintained at a level deemed appropriate basedssreperience and other factors affecting cobidityi. Historical results may not necessarily
be indicative of future results.

Inventories
Inventories, which consist primarily of fuel, tiraad vehicle parts, are valued using the lowereifjinted-average cost or market.

Revenue Earning Equipment, Operating Property and §uipment, and Depreciation

Revenue earning equipment, comprised of vehicldsoaerating property and equipment are initialigoreled at cost inclusive of vendor
rebates. Revenue earning equipment and operatipggy and equipment under capital lease are ligitiecorded at the lower of the present
value of minimum lease payments or fair value. ¥ehiepairs and maintenance that extend the lifeaease the value of a vehicle are
capitalized, whereas ordinary maintenance andnepeé expensed as incurred. The cost of vehiplagement tires and tire repairs are expe
as incurred. Direct costs incurred in connectiothwieveloping or obtaining internal-use software @apitalized. Costs incurred during the
preliminary software development project stagavelt as maintenance and training costs, are expegsécurred.
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Leasehold improvements are depreciated over theestad their estimated useful lives or the ternttef related lease, which may include
one or more option renewal periods where failurexercise such options would result in an econgreialty in such amount that renewal
appears, at the inception of the lease, to be nadypassured. If a substantial additional investnemade in a leased property during the term
of the lease, we re-evaluate the lease term tordigte whether the investment, together with anyafiess related to non-renewal, would
constitute an economic penalty in such amountrévawal appears to be reasonably assured.

Provision for depreciation is computed using thaight-line method on all depreciable assets. Degtien expense has been recorded
within "Cost of lease and rental,” "Cost of sergiteand "Cost of fuel services" and "Other opeptrpenses” depending on the nature of the
related asset.We periodically review and adjusgpgsopriate, the residual values and useful lofegvenue earning equipment. Our review of
the residual values and useful lives of revenueiegrequipment, is established with a long-ternm@nsidering historical market price
changes, current and expected future market pecels, expected life of vehicles and extent ofadtive uses. Factors that could cause actual
results to materially differ from estimates inclualg are not limited to unforeseen changes in teldyy innovations.

We routinely dispose of used revenue earning ecgiipm@s part of our FMS business. Revenue earnimigregnt held for sale is stated at
the lower of carrying amount or fair value lesstsds sell. For revenue earning equipment heldébe, we stratify our fleet by vehicle type
(tractors, trucks, and trailers), weight class, aige other relevant characteristics and creatsetasf similar assets for analysis purposes. Fair
value is determined based upon recent market polataéned from our own sales experience for sdleach class of similar assets and vehicle
condition. Reductions in the carrying values ofiekds held for sale are recorded within “Other @pieg expenses” in the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings. While we believe our esémaf residual values and fair values of reveraraieg equipment are reasonable, chang
our estimates of values may occur due to changesimarket for used vehicles, the condition ofwkicles, and inherent limitations in the
estimation process.

Gains and losses on sales of operating propertgguagment are reflected in “Miscellaneous incoret,”

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets with indeéniseful lives are not amortized, but rather, eseed for impairment at least annually
(April 1 ). In evaluating goodwill for impairment, we havestoption to first assess qualitative factors tieaeine whether further impairment
testing is necessary. Among other relevant everdacumstances that affect the fair value of répg units, we consider individual factors
such as macroeconomic conditions, changes in dustry and the markets in which we operate asagetlur reporting units' historical and
expected future financial performance. If we codelthat it is more likely than not that a reportingt's fair value is less than its carrying value,
recoverability of goodwill is evaluated using a tatep process. The first step involves a compardahe fair value of each of our reporting
units with its carrying amount. If a reporting usicarrying amount exceeds its fair value, the sdaiep is performed. The second step involves
a comparison of the implied fair value and carryiadue of that reporting unit's goodwill. To thetemt that a reporting unit's carrying amount
exceeds the implied fair value of its goodwill,iarpairment loss is recognized.

In making our assessments of fair value, we relpurknowledge and experience about past and dwvemts and assumptions about
conditions we expect to exist in the future. Thessumptions are based on a number of factors ingdidture operating performance, economic
conditions, actions we expect to take, and presgoe techniques. Rates used to discount futute ft@ss are dependent upon interest rates anc
the cost of capital at a point in time. There afeerent uncertainties related to these factorsyaanthgement’s judgment in applying them to the
analysis of goodwill impairment. It is possibletthasumptions underlying the impairment analyslsahiange in such a manner that impairment
in value may occur in the future.

Identifiable intangible assets not subject to aipation are assessed for impairment using a simpitacess to that used to evaluate
goodwill as described above. Intangible assets fivitte lives are amortized over their respectigéreated useful lives. Identifiable intangible
assets that are subject to amortization are eadat impairment using a process similar to ttssdito evaluate long-lived assets described
below.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets Other than Goodwill

Long-lived assets held and used, including revesauging equipment, operating property and equipraedtintangible assets with finite
lives, are tested for recoverability when circumsts indicate that the carrying amount of assejsimotibe recoverable. Recoverability of long-
lived assets is evaluated by comparing the carrgingunt of an asset or asset group to managentessf £stimate of the undiscounted future
operating cash flows (excluding interest charggpgeted to be generated by the asset or asset. dfdlpse comparisons indicate that the asset
or asset group is not recoverable, an impairmesst iwrecognized for the amount by which the cagyialue of the asset or asset group exceeds
fair value. Fair value is determined by a quotedkmigprice, if available, or an estimate of progetfuture operating cash flows, discounted L
a rate that reflects the related operating segmewerage cost of funds. Long-lived assets to §igodied of including
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revenue earning equipment, operating property gogpeent and indefinite-lived intangible assets, r@ported at the lower of carrying amount
or fair value less costs to sell.

Debt Issuance Costs

Costs incurred to issue debt are generally defemeidamortized as a component of interest experesetice estimated term of the related
debt using the effective interest rate method. Deshtance costs associated with our global revgleradit facility are deferred and amortized
a straight-line basis over the term of the facility

Contract Incentives

Payments made to or on behalf of a lessee or cestopon entering into a lease of our revenue egmguipment or contract are deferred
and recognized on a straight-line basis as a redgtucf revenue over the contract term. Amountse@imortized in the next year have been
classified as “Prepaid expenses and other curssets! with the remainder included in “Direct ficarg leases and other assets.”

Self-Insurance Accruals

We retain a portion of the accident risk under gkehiiability, workers’ compensation and other iremce programs. Under our insurance
programs, we retain the risk of loss in various ants up to $3 million on a per occurrence basif:iBgurance accruals are based primarily on
an actuarially estimated, undiscounted cost oftdaiwhich includes claims incurred but not repartath liabilities are based on estimates.
Historical loss development factors are utilizeghtoject the future development of incurred lossesl, these amounts are adjusted based upon
actual claim experience and settlements. While glieve that the amounts are adequate, there can hssurance that changes to our actuarial
estimates may not occur due to limitations inhenetite estimation process. Changes in the actuesienates of these accruals are charged or
credited to earnings in the period determined. Am®estimated to be paid within the next year Hmen classified as “Accrued expenses and
other current liabilities” with the remainder indled in “Other non-current liabilities.”

We also maintain additional insurance at certaiowamts in excess of our respective underlying resanfAmounts recoverable from
insurance companies are not offset against theecelccrual as our insurance policies do not ewtstrgor provide legal release from the
obligation to make payments related to such riskted losses. Amounts expected to be receivedmiitid next year from insurance companies
have been included within “Receivables, net” with temainder included in “Direct financing leased ather assets” and are recognized only
when realization of the claim for recovery is caiesed probable. The accrual for the related clasbeen classified within “Accrued expenses
and other current liabilities” if it is estimatedl be paid within the next year, otherwise it hasrbelassified in “Other non-current liabilities.”

Residual Value Guarantees and Deferred Gains

We periodically enter into agreements for the saleé leaseback of revenue earning equipment. Thases contain purchase and/or
renewal options as well as limited guarantees @fdéhsor’s residual value (“residual value guamsijeWe review the residual values of reve
earning equipment that we lease from third pagies our exposures under residual value guararntbeseview is conducted in a manner
similar to that used to analyze residual valuesfaimmdralues of owned revenue earning equipmentta@eresidual value guarantees are
conditioned on termination of the lease prior sociontractual lease term. For sale and leasebagvehue earning equipment accounted for as
operating leases, the amount of residual valueagiiees expected to be paid is recognized as rpahsg& over the expected remaining term of
the lease. Adjustments in the estimate of residalale guarantees are recognized prospectivelytbheezxpected remaining lease term. While
believe that the amounts are adequate, changes &stimates of residual value guarantees may at@ito changes in the market for used
vehicles, the condition of the vehicles at the efithe lease and inherent limitations in the edtiomeprocess. See Note 19, “Guarantees,” for
additional information.

Gains on the sale and operating leaseback of reveaitning equipment are deferred and amortizedstraght-line basis over the term of
the lease as an adjustment of rent expense (opgiatises) or depreciation expense (capital lease).

Income Taxes

Our provision for income taxes is based on repogtdings before income taxes. Deferred taxeseagnized for the future tax effects
temporary differences between the financial statgroarrying amounts of existing assets and liaédiind their respective tax bases using tax
rates in effect for the years in which the diffexes are expected to reverse.

The effects of changes in tax laws on deferred#dances are recognized in the period the newldigis is enacted. Valuation allowanc
are recognized to reduce deferred tax assets ntlent that is more likely than not to be realizachssessing the likelihood of realization,
management considers estimates of future taxatderia. We calculate our current and deferred taitipodased on estimates and assumptions
that could differ from the actual results reflectedncome tax returns filed in subsequent yeadjugtments based on filed returns are recorded
when identified.

62




RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Conti nued)

We are subject to tax audits in numerous jurisoiigiin the U.S. and around the world. Tax auditthbir very nature are often complex
and can require several years to complete. Indhmal course of business, we are subject to clggkefrom the Internal Revenue Services (I
and other tax authorities regarding amounts ofdaike. These challenges may alter the timing owaitnaf taxable income or deductions, or the
allocation of income among tax jurisdictions. Weedmine whether the benefits of our tax positioresraore likely than not of being sustained
upon audit based on the technical merits of thetesition. For tax positions that are at least nliedy than not of being sustained upon audit,
we recognize the largest amount of the benefitithatore likely than not of being sustained in consolidated financial statements. For all o
tax positions, we do not recognize any portiorhefbenefit in our consolidated financial statemehtsthe extent that our assessment of suc
positions changes, the change in estimate is reddrdthe period in which the determination is made

Interest and penalties related to income tax expgsare recognized as incurred and included inviBian for income taxes” in our
Consolidated Statements of Earnings. Accrualsrfoome tax exposures, including penalties and isteegpected to be settled within the next
year are included i“Accrued expenses and other current liabilitiesttvthe remainder included in “Other non-currenbiliies” in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The federal benefit tate income tax exposures is included in “Detemcome taxes” in our Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

Severance and Contract Termination Costs

We recognize liabilities for severance and contrachination costs based upon the nature of thietadse incurred. For involuntary
separation plans that are completed within theadinds of our written involuntary separation plew, record the liability when it is probable &
reasonably estimable. For otige termination benefits, such as additional savee pay or benefit payouts, and other exit cestsh as contra
termination costs, the liability is measured armbgmized initially at fair value in the period irhigh the liability is incurred, with subsequent
changes to the liability recognized as adjustmientise period of change. Severance related toipngiiminations that are part of a restructu
plan are recorded within “Restructuring and othearges, net” in the Consolidated Statements ofiigsnTo the extent that severance costs are
not part of a restructuring plan, the terminatiosts are recorded as a direct cost of revenuetbimwiSelling, general and administrative
expenses,” in the Consolidated Statements of Eggrdepending upon the nature of the eliminatedipasi

Environmental Expenditures

We record liabilities for environmental assessmeant¥or cleanup when it is probable a loss has meemred and the costs can be
reasonably estimated. Environmental liability esti@s may include costs such as anticipated stiagesonsulting, remediation, disposal, post-
remediation monitoring and legal fees, as approgriehe liability does not reflect possible recéggifrom insurance companies or
reimbursement of remediation costs by state agenioi¢ does include estimates of cost sharing ettier potentially responsible parties.
Estimates are not discounted, as the timing oatiteipated cash payments is not fixed or readtgdninable. Subsequent adjustments to initial
estimates are recorded as necessary based uptinradnformation developed in subsequent peritd$uture periods, new laws or
regulations, advances in remediation technologyaattitional information about the ultimate remeidiatmethodology to be used could
significantly change our estimates. Claims for taimsement of remediation costs are recorded wieaveey is deemed probable.

Asset Retirement Obligations

Asset retirement obligations (AROs) are legal dtligns associated with the retirement of long-limedets. Our AROs are associated with
underground tanks, tires and leasehold improvem&htsse liabilities are initially recorded at faalue and the related asset retirement costs are
capitalized by increasing the carrying amount efrilated assets by the same amount as the {jaBiiset retirement costs are subsequently
depreciated over the useful lives of the relategtas Subsequent to initial recognition, we exp@es®d-to-period changes in the ARO liability
resulting from the passage of time as well asehiesions to either the timing or amount of expeaash flows.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

We use financial instruments, including forwardeege contracts, futures, swaps and cap agreetoannage our exposures to
movements in interest rates and foreign currenchaxge rates. The use of these financial instruismantifies the exposure of these risks with
the intent to reduce the risk or cost to us. Waaloenter into derivative financial instruments i@ding purposes. We limit our risk that
counterparties to the derivative contracts willadéf and not make payments by entering into devigatontracts only with counterparties
comprised of large banks and financial institutigm$marily J.P. Morgan) that meet established itraiteria. We do not expect to incur any
losses as a result of counterparty default.

On the date a derivative contract is entered ineoformally document, among other items, the inéehldedging designation and
relationship, along with the risk management objestand strategies for entering into the derivatigntract. We also formally assess, both at
inception and on an ongoing basis, whether thevaliives we used in hedging transactions are higfigctive in offsetting changes in fair valu
or cash flows of hedged items. Cash flows from\dgives that are
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accounted for as hedges are classified in the didased Statements of Cash Flows in the same categoathe items being hedged. When it is
determined that a derivative is not highly effeetas a hedge or that it has ceased to be a hiffattiee hedge, we discontinue hedge accout
prospectively.

The hedging designation may be classified as otieeofollowing:

No Hedging Designatiohe gain or loss on a derivative instrument notgieged as an accounting hedging instrument isgreized in
earnings.

Fair Value HedgeA hedge of a recognized asset or liability or areangnized firm commitment is considered a faiueatedge. For fair
value hedges, both the effective and ineffectivgigos of the changes in the fair value of the daive, along with the gain or loss on the he
item that is attributable to the hedged risk, aréhlvecorded in earnings.

Cash Flow HedgeA hedge of a forecasted transaction or of the taditia of cash flows to be received or paid related recognized asset
or liability is considered a cash flow hedge. THedaive portion of the change in the fair valueaodlerivative that is declared as a cash flow
hedge is recorded in “Accumulated other comprelverisiss” until earnings are affected by the vatighin cash flows of the designated hedged
item.

Net Investment Hedge hedge of a net investment in a foreign operaisoconsidered a net investment hedge. The efeeptrtion of the
change in the fair value of the derivative used ast investment hedge of a foreign operationdsrded in the currency translation adjustment
account within “Accumulated other comprehensiva lb$he ineffective portion, if any, on the heddgeun that is attributable to the hedged risk
is recorded in earnings and reported in “Misceltarseincome, net” in the Consolidated Statemenaofiings.

Foreign Currency Translation

Our foreign operations generally use the localeney as their functional currency. Assets and litgds of these operations are translated
at the exchange rates in effect on the balance dage If exchangeability between the functionatency and the U.S. dollar is temporarily
lacking at the balance sheet date, the first suleseqate at which exchanges can be made is ugeghslate assets and liabilities. Items in the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings are transédtéae average exchange rates for the year. Thacingp currency fluctuations is recorded in
“Accumulated other comprehensive loss” as a cugréramslation adjustment. Upon sale or upon corapetsubstantially complete liquidation
of an investment in a foreign operation, the cuyetnanslation adjustment attributable to that afien is removed from accumulated other
comprehensive loss and is reported as part ofdhreqy loss on sale or liquidation of the investirfenthe period during which the sale or
liguidation occurs. Gains and losses resulting fforeign currency transactions are recorded in @dllsineous income, net” in the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings.

Share-Based Compensation

The fair value of stock option awards and nonvestedk awards other than restricted stock unitdJ$}Sis expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period of the awards. RS&gx@pensed in the year they are granted. Casls fimm the tax benefits resulting from tax
deductions in excess of the compensation expensgnized for those options (windfall tax benefés} classified as financing cash flows. Tax
benefits resulting from tax deductions in excesshaire-based compensation expense recognizededitedrto additional paid-in capital in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets. Realized tax sherted! first offset against the cumulative balarfogiodfall tax benefits, if any, and then
charged directly to income tax expense.

Defined Benefit Pension and Postretirement Benefitlans

The funded status of our defined benefit pensianghnd postretirement benefit plans are recogiizétet Consolidated Balance Sheets.
The funded status is measured as the differeneeebatthe fair value of plan assets and the beolelfijation at December 31, the measurement
date. The fair value of plan assets representsutirent market value of contributions made to ioeable trust funds, held for the sole benefit of
participants, which are invested by the trust fuids defined benefit pension plans, the benefigabion represents the actuarial present value
of benefits expected to be paid upon retiremergdas estimated future compensation levels. Fdrgtoement benefit plans, the benefit
obligation represents the actuarial present valymstretirement benefits attributed to employe®ises already rendered. Overfunded plans,
with the fair value of plan assets exceeding theefieobligation, are aggregated and recorded@spaid pension asset equal to this

excess. Underfunded plans, with the benefit obhbgatxceeding the fair value of plan assets, ageeg@ted and recorded as a pension and
postretirement benefit liability equal to this esse

The current portion of pension and postretirememiefit liabilities represent the actuarial presaitie of benefits payable within the next
12 months exceeding the fair value of plan as#efisnded), measured on a plan-by-plan basis. Thabd#ities are recorded in “Accrued
expenses and other current liabilities” in the tidated Balance Sheets.
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Pension and postretirement benefit expense inclselegce cost, interest cost, expected return an atsets (if funded), and amortization
of prior service credit and net actuarial lossvi®ercost represents the actuarial present valpanicipant benefits earned in the current year.
Interest cost represents the time value of monsyassociated with the passage of time. The exgheetern on plan assets represents the av
rate of earnings expected on the funds investéd e invested to provide for the benefits includethe obligation. Prior service credit
represents the impact of negative plan amendmigetsactuarial loss arises as a result of differsrietween actual experience and assumptions
or as a result of changes in actuarial assumptiesactuarial loss and prior service credit nobgmized as a component of pension and
postretirement benefit expense as they arise aogmnézed as a component of accumulated other cdrepséve loss, net of tax in the
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equitgs&lpension and postretirement items are subségaemirtized as a component of pension
and postretirement benefit expense over the rentasgrvice period, if the majority of the employeaes active, otherwise over the remaining
life expectancy, provided such amounts exceedtbids which are based upon the benefit obligatiothe value of plan assets.

The measurement of benefit obligations and peraimahpostretirement benefit expense is based anasts and assumptions approved by
management. These valuations reflect the termsegblans and use participant-specific informatiechsas compensation, age and years of
service, as well as certain assumptions, includstgnates of discount rates, expected return angsaets, rate of compensation increases,
interest rates and mortality rates.

Fair Value Measurements

We carry various assets and liabilities at faiueah the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The magfisant assets and liabilities are
vehicles held for sale, which are stated at theetavf carrying amount or fair value less costsel swvestments held in Rabbi Trusts and
derivatives.

Fair value is defined as the exchange price thaldvoe received for an asset or paid to transfebdity (an exit price) in the principal or
most advantageous market for the asset or lialilign orderly transaction between market partitipan the measurement date. Fair value
measurements are classified based on the follofgingalue hierarchy:

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active marketsdentical assets or liabilities that we have thditglio access at the
measurement date. An active market for the asdethlity is a market in which transactions foethsset or liability occur with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricinfprmation on an ongoing basis.

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices suauaged prices for similar assets or liabilitiegpted prices in markets that
not active; or model-derived valuations or otheuits that are observable or can be corroboratexbbgrvable market data for
substantially the full term of the assets or liiiei.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the asset or liabilitye$é inputs reflect our own assumptions about thenagtions a market
participant would use in pricing the asset or ligbi
When available, we use unadjusted quoted marketpto measure fair value and classify such measmnis within Level 1. If quoted
prices are not available, fair value is based upodel-driven valuations that use current markeetdas
independently sourced market parameters suchexrgsttrates and currency rates. ltems valued tisgsg models are classified according to the
lowest level input or value driver that is signéfitt to the valuation.

Revenue earning equipment held for sale is measuredr value on a nonrecurring basis and is dtatehe lower of carrying amount or
fair value less costs to sell. Investments hel@abbi Trusts, derivatives, and contingent constdmrare carried at fair value on a recurring
basis. Investments held in Rabbi Trusts includdargetraded equity securities and mutual funds. Fawesfor these investments are base
guoted prices in active markets. For derivativas,falue is based on model-driven valuations ugileg IBOR rate or observable forward
foreign exchange rates, which are observable atramty quoted intervals for the full term of thedimcial instrument. Fair value of contingent
consideration is based on significant unobserviaiplets based on contractual provisions and ouraatiens of what will be paid.

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share is computed using the two-cteetbod. The two-class method of computing earnggshare is an earnings allocation
formula that determines earnings per share for comstock and any participating securities accordngdividends declared (whether paid or
unpaid) and participation rights in undistributegrengs. Our nonvested stock (time-vested restristeck rights, market-based restricted stock
rights and restricted stock units) issued prid2@&2 are considered participating securities siheeshare-based awards contain a non-forfeitable
right to dividend equivalents irrespective of whestthe awards ultimately vest. Under the two-ctasthod, earnings per common share are
computed by dividing the sum of distributed earsitgcommon shareholders and undistributed earithysated to common shareholders by
the weighted average number of common shares odistafor the period. In applying the two-class neet, undistributed earnings are
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allocated to both common shares and participatiegrities based on the weighted average sharetsoditsg during the period.

Diluted earnings per common share reflect theigdueffect of potential common shares from stockams. The dilutive effect of stock
options is computed using the treasury stock metiwbith assumes any proceeds that could be obtaipenl the exercise of stock options
would be used to purchase common shares at thageverarket price for the period. The assumed pdsceelude the purchase price the
grantee pays, the windfall tax benefit that we rezapon assumed exercise and the unrecognizedesmation expense at the end of each
period.

Share Repurchases

Repurchases of shares of common stock are madmljpally in open-market transactions and are sailtjemarket conditions, legal
requirements and other factors. The cost of slegmerchases is allocated between common stock éaided earnings based on the amount of
additional paid-in capital at the time of the shaeurchase.

2. ACCOUNTING CHANGES
Comprehensive Income

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsr&8¢FASB) issued accounting guidance on the ptaen of comprehensive income.
Under this guidance, entities have the option &s@nt the components of net income and other cdrapsé/e income in either a single
continuous statement of comprehensive income twarseparate but consecutive statements. We adtipteguidance in the first quarter of
2012 and the consolidated financial statementsagoatseparate statement of comprehensive incarsg) (IThis accounting guidance only
impacted presentation and did not have an effeciuortonsolidated financial position, results oéxgiions or cash flows.

Goodwill Impairment Testing

In September 2011, the FASB issued accounting ga&lan goodwill impairment testing which permitsités to first assess qualitative
factors to determine whether it is more likely theot that the fair value of a reporting unit isdelsan its carrying amount. Companies are
required to calculate the fair value of a reportimit if the qualitative evaluation indicates titds more likely than not that the fair value és$
than the carrying amount. This guidance was effedtr us beginning with our annual goodwill impaént test on April 1, 2012. This guidance
had no effect on our consolidated financial positi@sults of operations or cash flows. For ouruahgoodwill impairment test on April 1, 201
we performed a qualitative test for one of our répg units. Due to acquisitions and volatilitytire economic environment, we believed it was
appropriate to have recent fair values for the ieimg two reporting units with goodwiill.

3. ACQUISITIONS
2012 Acquisition

Euroway Ltd., —On August 1, 2012, we acquired all of the commonlsbf Euroway Ltd., a U.K.-based, full servicedewy, rental and
maintenance company for a purchase price of $2omifind assumed capital lease obligations andafek0 million . Approximately$1 million
of the stock purchase price has been paid, anch#jerity of the capital lease obligations have besraid as of December 31, 2012 . The
purchase price includes $0.5 million in contingesrisideration to be paid to the seller providedagerconditions are met. As of December 31,
2012 , the fair value of the contingent consideratias been reflected in "Other non-currrent liadd” in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. See
Note 17, "Fair Value Measurements," for additian&rmation. The acquisition included Euroway'sflef approximatel'560 full service lease
vehicles as well as 800 contract maintenance vehiéls of December 31, 2012 , goodwill and custametionship intangibles related to the
Euroway acquisition were $6 million and $3 milliprespectively. The combined network operates utideRyder name, complementing our
FMS business segment coverage in the U.K. Tramsectists related to the Euroway acquisition weren$llon and were primarily reflected
within "Selling, general and administrative expeisa our Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

2011 Acquisitions

Hill Hire plc —On June 8, 2011, we acquired all of the commorkatb&lill Hire plc (Hill Hire), a U.K. based fullexvice leasing, rental
and maintenance company for a purchase price df #2%ion , net of cash acquired, all of which was
paid in 2011. The acquisition included Hill Hirdlset of approximately 8,000 full service lease &ntD0 rental vehicles, and approximat$dg
contractual customers. The fleet included 9,700etsa The combined network operates under the Ryadme, complementing our business
segment market coverage in the U.K. Transactiotsaetated to the Hill Hire acquisition were $2 lioih during 2011 and were primarily
reflected within “Selling, general and administvatexpenses” in our Consolidated Statements ofiB@s.
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The following table provides the final allocatedt faalues of the assets acquired and the liaksliissumed at the date of the Hill Hire
acquisition:

Assets: (In thousands
Revenue earning equipment $ 202,83
Operating property and equipment 18,78(
Customer relationships and other intangibles 10,13¢
Other assets, primarily accounts receivable 60,17¢

291,92!

Liabilities, primarily accrued liabilities (40,439

Net assets acquired $ 251,49!

During 2012, purchase price adjustments totaleshiifon and related to adjustments to the fair eatd revenue earning equipment and
liabilities assumed.

Other Acquisitions—Buring 2011 , we completed three other acquisitmifsll service leasing and fleet service companae of which
included the assets of the seller's SCS busindsscdmbined networks operate under the Ryder neoneplementing our FMS and SCS
business segment market coverage throughout tedJgtates. The purchase price of these acquisitaialed $114 million , of which $3
million and $107 million was paid during 2012 ar@l2, respectively. Goodwill and customer relatiopshtangibles related to these
acquisitions totaled $28 million and $12 milliorespectively. The following table provides furttieiormation regarding each of these
acquisitions:

Company Acquired Date Acquired Segment Purchase Price Vehicles Contractual Customers
Carmenita Leasing, Inc. January 10, 2011 FMS $9 million 190 60
The Scully Companies January 28, 2011 FMS/SCS $91 million 2,100 200
B.I.T. Leasing April 1, 2011 FMS $14 million 490 130
2010 Acquisition

Total Logistic Control -On December 31, 2010, we acquired all of the comstock of Total Logistic Control (TLC), a leadingopider
of comprehensive supply chain solutions to foodebage, and consumer packaged goods manufactarérs U.S. TLC provides customers a
broad suite of end-to-end services, including iigtron management, contract packaging servicesahuions engineering. This acquisition
enhances our SCS capabilities and growth prospetiie areas of packaging and warehousing, inctugimperature-controlled facilities. The
purchase price was $207 million , of which $3 raitliwas paid in 2011. No further payments are dlagee to this acquisition. During 2011, the
purchase price was reduced by $1 million due tdraotual adjustments in acquired deferred taxesnm#ding capital.

The following table provides the final allocated fealues of the assets acquired and the liakslidssumed at the date of the TLC
acquisition:

Assets: (In thousand:
Current assets $ 24,58¢
Operating property and equipment 73,13t
Goodwill 131,91:
Customer relationships and other intangibles 34,98(
Other assets 81¢

265,43

Liabilities:

Current liabilities (26,875
Deferred income taxes and other liabilities (31,437
(58,307

Net assets acquired $ 207,12

Pro Forma Information- The operating results of each acquisition has bresaded in the consolidated financial statemerdmfthe date
of acquisition. The following table provides theaudited pro forma revenues, net earnings and
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earnings per common share as if the results dfittvélire acquisition had been included in operas@ommencing January 1, 2010 and the
acquisition had been included in operations comimgntanuary 1, 2009. This pro forma informationas necessarily indicative either of the
combined results of operations that actually wdwdde been realized had the acquisition been consteanduring the periods for which the pro
forma information is presented, or of future resuitro forma information for the Euroway acquisitin 2012 and the other acquisitions in 2011
is not disclosed because the pro forma effectegdracquisitions is not significant.

Years ended December 31,

2011 2010

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenue — As reported $ 6,050,53. 5,136,43

Revenue — Pro forma $ 6,118,10. 5,538,82

Net earnings — As reported $ 169,77 118,171

Net earnings — Pro forma $ 184,84¢ 149,50:
Net earnings per common share:

Basic — As reported $ 3.31 2.28

Basic — Pro forma $ 3.6( 2.8t

Diluted — As reported $ 3.2¢ 2.28

Diluted — Pro forma $ 3.5¢ 2.8¢

We paid approximately $1 million in both 2012 argid 2 and $8 million in 2010 related to other acdigias completed in prior years.

All of the acquisitions were accounted for as aguégition of a business. Goodwill on these acdoist represents the excess of the
purchase price over the fair value of the undegyinquired net tangible and intangible assetsoFsathat contributed to the recognition of
goodwill in our acquisitions included (i) expectgwwth rates and profitability of the acquired camies, (ii) securing buyer-specific synergies
that increase revenue and profits and are notwibelavailable to market participants, (iii) sigeéint cost savings opportunities, (iv) the
experienced workforce and (v) our strategies fomgi in sales, income and cash flows.

4. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In December 2008, we announced strategic initiatteemprove our competitive advantage and driwgiterm profitable growth. As part
of these initiatives, we decided to discontinue ®p&rations in South America and Europe. During

the second half of 2009, we ceased SCS servicaties in Brazil, Argentina, Chile and European ke#s. Accordingly, results of these
operations, financial position and cash flows &masately reported as discontinued operationslfpedods presented in the Consolidated
Financial Statements and notes thereto.

Summarized results of discontinued operations asr®llows:

Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Pre-tax loss from discontinued operations $ (2,226 $ (1,189 $ (7,525
Income tax benefit (expense) 11,30¢ (406) 1,08
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, fi¢do $ 9,08 $ (1,59) % (6,43¢)

Results of discontinued operations in 2012 , 2G1d.2010 included $3 million , $2 million and $4 liih , respectively, of pre-tax losses
related to adverse legal developments and profeslsémd administrative fees associated with owadisSnued South American operations.
Results of discontinued operations in 2012 alstuded $1 million of pre-tax income related to thdease of a European SCS facility. During
2010, we recognized pre-tax exit costs of $3 nrilfimm the aforementioned SCS facility relatedharges in sublease income estimates
because of continued weak commercial real estatkateonditions. Results of discontinued operatior011 also included $1 million of pre-
tax income from favorable
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prior year insurance claims development. Earnings fdiscontinued operations in 2012 also refleetxébenefit of $11 million resulting from
the expiration of a statute of limitations.

The following is a summary of assets and liab#itié discontinued operations:

December 31, December 31,
2012 2011
(In thousands)
Total assets, primarily deposits $ 446 % 4,60(
Total liabilities, primarily contingent accruals $ 532¢ % 6,50z

Although we discontinued our South American operetiin 2009, we continue to be party to variougfel] state and local legal proceedings
involving labor matters, tort claims and tax asses#s. We have established loss provisions fomaatyers where we believe a loss is probable
and can be reasonably estimated. Other than vaffect to the matters discussed below, for mattheseva reserve has not been established anc
for which we believe a loss is reasonably possddeyell as for matters where a reserve has beendexd but for which an exposure to loss in
excess of the amount accrued is reasonably posgiblbelieve that such losses will not have a nadteffect on our consolidated financial
statements.

In Brazil, we were assessed $5 million (before after tax) for various federal income taxes andad@ontribution taxes for the 1997 and
1998 tax years. We have successfully overturnesktferleral tax assessments in the lower courtsebvenwthere is a reasonable possibility that
these rulings could be reversed and we would bainedjto pay the assessments. We believe it is fit@lg than not that our position will
ultimately be sustained if appealed and no amdueie been reserved for these matters. We areeetitindemnification for a portion of any
resulting liability on these federal tax claims walhiif honored, would reduce the estimated loss.

In Brazil, we were assessed $6 million (before afitel tax) for certain state operating tax credittized between 2001 and 2003. Although
there is a reasonable possibility that we couldrintbis loss, we believe it is more likely than twdt our position will ultimately be sustained i
no amounts have been reserved for these matters.

Additionally in Brazil, we were assessed $16 milliancluding penalties and interest, related xodize on the sale of our outbound auto
carriage business in 2001. On November 11, 20&0Atministrative Tax Court dismissed the assessriémt tax authority filed a motion to
review the decision before the Administrative Taou@&. On December 6, 2011, the Administrative Taxi€upheld our position. In the first
guarter of 2012, the tax authority decided noileod final special appeal and the case was digthisEhere was no financial statement impact
upon resolution as no amounts were reserved fenthiter.
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5. RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER CHARGES

The components of restructuring and other charggtsn 2012 , 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Years ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

(In thousands)

Restructuring charges, net:

Severance and employee-related costs $ 7,20¢ 3,16% —
Contract termination costs 86t 497 —
8,07( 3,65¢ —

As mentioned in Note 29, “Segment Reporting,” aumary measure of segment financial performancéueles, among other items,
restructuring and other charges, net. Howeveragidicable portion of the restructuring and otheairges, net that related to each segment in
2012, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Fleet Management Solutions $ 6,44¢ 3,531 —
Supply Chain Solutions 1,34¢ 124 —
Central Support Services 27¢€ — —
Total $ 8,07( 3,65¢ —

2012 Activity

In the second quarter of 2012 , we approved atplatiminate approximately 350 employees, primarilyhe U.S, as a result of cost
containment actions. These actions have been ctedpM/orkforce reductions resulted in a a pre-taarge of $7 million . Restructuring
charges, net in 2012 also included severance aptbgee related costs associated with the eliminagfocertain positions assumed in the
Euroway acquisition offset by benefits from refirents in estimates from restructuring charges irptia year. During 2012 , we also recorded
a pre-tax charge of $1 million associated with eseential leased facilities assumed in the Hileticquisition.

2011 Activity

During 2011, we eliminated certain positions amchirated non-essential equipment contracts assumtad Hill Hire and Scully
acquisitions, which resulted in a pre-tax charg&4million .

The following table presents a roll-forward of tietivity and balances of our restructuring reseriresuding discontinued operations for
the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 :

Deductions
Foreign
Beginning Cash Non-Cash Translation Ending
Balance Additions Payments Reduction® Adjustment Balance
(In thousands)
Year ended December 31, 2012:
Employee severance and benefits $ 2,607 8,46( 6,711 1,307 98 3,147
Contract termination costs 2,63¢ 1,084 1,51¢ 57t 99 1,72¢
Total $ 5,24¢ 9,54« 8,23( 1,882 197 4,87t
Year ended December 31, 2011:
Employee severance and benefits $ 234 3,29( 73€ 10t (7€) 2,607
Contract termination costs 3,81z 49: 1,557 141 31 2,63¢
Total $ 4,047 3,78 2,29: 24¢€ (45) 5,24¢

(1) Nor-cash reductions represent adjustments to the reftring reserve as actual costs were less thanimaity estimated

At December 31, 2012 , outstanding restructuringgabons are generally required to be paid overribxt year.
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6. RECEIVABLES

December 31,

2012 2011
(In thousands)

Trade $ 670,71 661,59:
Direct financing leases 76,39¢ 68,89¢
Income tax 6,59¢ 8,961
Insurance? 17,34¢ 7,61¢
Vendor rebates 5,54 8,99¢
Other 14,59« 13,067
791,19: 769,13:
Allowance (15,429 (14,489
Total $ 775,76! 754,64

(1) Includes$7 millionof insurance recoveries from Superstorm Sandy.rRefdote 27, "Other Matters," for additional infmation.

7. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

December 31,

2012 2011
(In thousands)

Current deferred tax asset $ 29,12¢ 31,42¢
Restricted cash 10z 17,99
Prepaid vehicle licenses 46,78¢ 47,04
Prepaid operating taxes 13,32: 12,47
Prepaid real estate rent 4,351 7,03(
Prepaid contract incentives 4,78¢ 5,61Z
Prepaid software maintenance costs 3,92¢ 3,49(
Interest rate swap agreement 1,31 —
Prepaid insurance 8,81( 14,00:
Prepaid sales commissions 7,90¢ 9,38¢
Other 13,49¢ 14,58:
Total $ 133,93: 163,04!

8. REVENUE EARNING EQUIPMENT

Estimated December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Useful Accumulated Net Book Accumulated Net Book
Lives Cost Depreciation Value @ Cost Depreciation Value®
(In years) (In thousands)
Held for use:
Full service lease 3—12 $ 6,728,74 (2,500,78)) 4,227,96! 6,010,33 (2,518,83)) 3,491,50!
Commercial rental 45—12 2,041,69! (660,35¢) 1,381,34: 2,175,00: (708,057) 1,466,95.
Held for sale 499,07 (353,769 145,30t 326,69. (235,47) 91,21¢
Total $ 9,269,51 (3,514,91)  5,754,60: 8,512,03 (3,462,35)  5,049,67.

(1) Revenue earning equipment, net includes vehiclésrwapital leases ($56 million , less accumulated depreciation of iillion , at December 31, 2012 and $61 million ,
less accumulated depreciation of $14 million , acBmber 31, 2011 .

At the end of each fiscal year, we review residadlies and useful lives of revenue earning equipnBased on the results of these
analyses, we adjust the estimated residual vahetsiseful lives of certain classes of revenue agraguipment effective January 1 of the
following year. The change in estimated residualemand useful lives increased pre-tax earninggppyoximately $18 million in 2012
compared with 2011 , and approximately $5 millior2011 compared with 2010 . The adjustment decdgasetax earnings by approximately



$14 million in 2010 compared with 2009 .
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9. OPERATING PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

December 31,

Estimated
Useful Lives 2012 2011

(In years) (In thousands)
Land — $ 190,35 188,61
Buildings and improvements 10 — 40 716,74: 699,80¢
Machinery and equipment 3—10 578,71t 535,18:
Other 3—10 105,25! 112,28t
1,591,07. 1,535,89
Accumulated depreciation (966,22() (911,71)
Total $ 624,85: 624,18(

10. GOODWILL
The carrying amount of goodwill attributable to lkeaeportable business segment with changes theesras follows:

Fleet Supply
Management Chain
Solutions Solutions Total

(In thousands)
Balance at January 1, 2011

Goodwill $ 202,94: 182,12: 385,06:
Accumulated impairment losses (20,329 (18,899 (29,229
192,61 163,22 355,84.
Acquisitions 13,95¢ 14,65¢ 28,61¢
Purchase accounting adjustments (185) (6,619 (6,799
Foreign currency translation adjustment (155) (199 (359
Balance at December 31, 2011
Goodwill 216,55¢ 189,96¢ 406,52’
Accumulated impairment losses (10,32%) (18,899 (29,227
206,23 171,06¢ 377,30t
Acquisition 6,03: — 6,03:
Purchase accounting adjustments 21t 97 312
Foreign currency translation adjustment 322 2432 56&
Balance at December 31, 2012
Goodwill 223,12¢ 190,30¢ 413,43
Accumulated impairment losses (10,329 (18,899 (29,227
$ 212,80° 171,40¢ 384,21t

Purchase accounting adjustments in 2011 relatethpiy to changes in deferred tax liabilities andleations of the physical and market
condition of operating property and equipment. Wbt recast the December 31, 2011 balance skebeadjustments are not material.

On April 1st of this year, we completed our anrg@bdwill impairment test and determined there wagmpairment.
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11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

December 31,

2012 2011
(In thousands)

Indefinite lived intangible assets — Trade name $ 9,08¢ 9,08¢
Finite lived intangible assets:

Customer relationship intangibles 95,68: 92,88¢

Other intangibles, primarily trade name 2,25¢ 2,08:

Accumulated amortization (27,860 (29,79)

70,077 75,17+

Foreign currency translation adjustment 1,31¢ 562

Total $ 80,47¢ 84,82(

The Ryder trade name has been identified as havirgdefinite useful life. Customer relationshigaingibles are being amortized on a
straight-line basis over their estimated usefiddivgenerally 10 - 16 years. We recorded amonizatkpense associated with finite lived
intangible assets of approximately $8 million irttb@012 and 2011 , and $3 million in 201Dhe future amortization expense for each of e
succeeding years related to all intangible ashatsare currently recorded in the Consolidated iBacSheets is estimated to be as follows at
December 31, 2012 :

(In thousands)

2013 $ 7,51C
2014 6,59¢
2015 6,481
2016 6,47¢
2017 6,47:

Total $ 33,531

12. DIRECT FINANCING LEASES AND OTHER ASSETS

December 31,

2012 2011
(In thousands)

Direct financing leases, net $ 315,52¢ 280,98t
Investments held in Rabbi Trusts 22,42¢ 18,69¢
Insurance receivables 21,69t 15,48t¢
Debt issuance costs 16,32: 16,10¢
Prepaid pension asset 6,09( 257
Contract incentives 17,61 17,52«
Interest rate swap agreements 15,41 21,84:
Other 19,50z 22,78:

Total $ 434,59( 393,68!
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13. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Accrued Non-Current Accrued Non-Current
Expenses Liabilities Total Expenses Liabilities Total

(In thousands)

Salaries and wages $ 86,77¢ — 86,77¢ 121,08 — 121,08
Deferred compensation 1,63( 24,91¢ 26,54¢ 1,40¢ 21,28t 22,69(
Pension benefits 3,30¢ 597,27! 600,58 3,12( 546,68: 549,80:
Other postretirement benefits 2,68: 37,91¢ 40,59¢ 2,83¢ 40,15« 42,99:
Insurance obligationd® 133,45! 178,71 312,17: 120,04! 157,39( 277,43
Residual value guarantees 1,50¢ 13C 1,63t 3,09: 1,12¢ 4,21¢
Accrued rent 9,24¢ 9,40t 18,64¢ 4,08¢ 14,68¢ 18,77«
Environmental liabilities 4,201 8,41¢ 12,61¢ 4,36¢ 9,171 13,53¢
Asset retirement obligations 3,64: 17,11¢ 20,75¢ 5,702 12,36¢ 18,06¢
Operating taxes 91,41¢ — 91,41¢ 81,82( — 81,82(
Income taxes 8,28¢ 57,59( 65,87¢ 4,16( 74,14 78,30"
Interest 35,79¢ — 35,79¢ 30,41( — 30,41(
Deposits, mainly from customers 51,67: 6,23¢ 57,90° 50,95 7,544 58,49¢
Deferred revenue 21,55’ — 21,55’ 20,69¢ 47¢ 21,17«
Acquisition holdbacks 1,637 2,67 4,31( 7,42 — 7,42
Other 48,88t 8,54¢ 57,43. 46,42; 11,56« 57,98’

Total $ 505,70 948,93, 1,454,63 507,63l 896,58 1,404,21

(1) Insurance obligations are primarily comprisefiself-insured claim liabilities.

We retain a portion of the accident risk under gkehiiability and workers’ compensation insurancegsams. Self-insurance accruals are
based primarily on actuarially estimated, undistedrtost of claims, and include claims incurredrimitreported. Such liabilities are based on
estimates. Historical loss development factorauéifized to project the future development of imeut losses, and these amounts are adjusted
based upon actual claim experience and settlemafhise we believe the amounts are adequate, tterde no assurance that changes to our
estimates may not occur due to limitations inheietite estimation process. During 2012 , 2011 201D, we recorded a benefit (charge) wit
earnings from continuing operations of $1 millidd4, million , and $(3) million , respectively, frodevelopment in estimated prior years’ self-
insured loss reserves for the reasons noted above.
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14. INCOME TAXES

The components of earnings from continuing opemnatimefore income taxes and the provision for inctares from continuing operations
were as follows:

Years ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

(In thousands)

Earnings from continuing operations before incomes:

United States $ 241,67. 223,20¢ 156,12:
Foreign 61,44! 56,17¢ 30,18:
Total $ 303,11 279,38 186,30!
Current tax expense (benefit) from continuing ofienzs:

Federal® $ (4,157 1,61¢ 4,53¢
State® 11,51 7,78¢ 4,46¢
Foreign 7,75¢ 8,60: 11,59¢
15,11¢ 18,00: 20,60(

Deferred tax expense (benefit) from continuing aepens:
Federal 77,81¢ 67,84¢ 38,17¢
State 3,871 17,247 7,19¢
Foreign 5,412 4,92( (4,280)
87,10: 90,01¢ 41,09°
Provision for income taxes from continuing openasio $ 102,21t 108,01¢ 61,69"

(1) Excludes federal and state tax benefits resultinmfthe exercise of stock options and vesting sificted stock awards, which were credited direttl“Additional paid-in
capital.”

A reconciliation of the federal statutory tax ratigh the effective tax rate from continuing opevas follows:

Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(Percentage of pre-tax earnings)
Federal statutory tax rate 35.C 35.C 35.C
Impact on deferred taxes for changes in tax rates 0.t 2.€ 0.4
State income taxes, net of federal income tax litenef 4.4 3.¢ 4.€
Tax reviews and audits (2.9 (0.9 (7.0
Miscellaneous items, net (3.9 (1.9 0.1
Effective tax rate 33.7 38.7 33.1

Tax Law Changes

The effects of changes in tax laws on deferred#dances are recognized in the period the newlédigis is enacted. The following
provides a summary of the impact of changes idaas on net earnings from continuing operationsaxjurisdiction:



Tax Jurisdiction

Enactment Date

Net Earnings

2012
United Kingdom
Canada

2011
State of Michigan
State of Illinois

2010
United Kingdom

July 17, 2012
June 20, 2012

May 25, 2011
January 13, 2011

July 27, 2010

75

(in thousands)

$(856)
$(671)

$(5,350)
$(1,221)
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Deferred Income Taxes
The components of the net deferred income taxlifabvere as follows:

December 31,
2012 2011

(In thousands)
Deferred income tax assets:

Self-insurance accruals $ 52,17; 37,29¢
Net operating loss carryforwards 258,80t 275,12:
Alternative minimum taxes 9,67¢ 9,67¢
Accrued compensation and benefits 61,09t 67,32:
Federal benefit on state tax positions 17,92t 18,84
Pension benefits 204,06¢ 179,15¢
Miscellaneous other accruals 39,70¢ 38,58¢
643,46 626,01t
Valuation allowance (38,187 (41,329
605,27¢ 584,69.

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Property and equipment bases difference (1,734,50) (1,649,49)
Other items (18,716 (25,26%)
(1,753,22) (1,674,75)
Net deferred income tax liabilit} $ (1,147,94) (1,090,06)

(1) Deferred tax assets $29 million and $31 million have been included Prépaid expenses and other current assets” at Deeer®1, 2012 and 201 lrespectively

We do not provide for U.S. deferred income taxeseomporary differences related to our foreign itwvesnts that are considered perma
in duration. These temporary differences consisaanily of undistributed foreign earnings of $544limn at December 31, 2012 . A full foreign
tax provision has been made on these undistridotetjn earnings. Determination of the amount déded taxes on these temporary
differences is not practicable due to foreign teedits and exclusions.

At December 31, 2012 , we had U.S. federal taxcedfbnet operating loss carryforwards of $178 omilland various U.S. subsidiaries had
state tax effected net operating loss carryforwafd®7 million both expiring through tax year 2028e also had foreign tax effected net
operating losses of $34 million that are availdbleeduce future income tax payments in severatitims, subject to varying expiration rules. A
valuation allowance has been established to redefezred income tax assets, principally foreignltas carryforwards to amounts more likely
than not to be realized. We had unused alternatinanum tax credits, for tax purposes, of $10 roilliat December 31, 20B®ailable to reduc
future income tax liabilities. The alternative nmmim tax credits may be carried forward indefinitely

Uncertain Tax Positions

We are subject to tax audits in numerous jurisdiigiin the U.S. and foreign countries. Tax audjtthleir very nature are often complex
and can require several years to complete. Indhmal course of business, we are subject to clg#kefrom the IRS and other tax authorities
regarding amounts of taxes due. These challenggstex the timing or amount of taxable income edukctions, or the allocation of income
among tax jurisdictions. As part of our calculatafrthe provision for income taxes on earningsreegnize the tax benefit from uncertain tax
positions that are at least more likely than ndteihg sustained upon audit based on the techmiegts of the tax position. The tax benefit to be
recognized is measured as the largest amount efibérat is greater than fifty percent likely adibg realized upon ultimate settlement. Such
calculations require management to make estimatkfuadgments with respect to the ultimate outcoifreetax audit. Actual results could vary
materially from these estimates.

The following is a summary of tax years that ardamger subject to examination:
Federal —audits of our U.S. federal income tax returns éweed through fiscal year 2008.
State — for the majority of states, tax returns are etbthrough fiscal year 2008.

Foreign — we are no longer subject to foreign tax exanmmatby tax authorities for tax years before 2008anada, 2006 in Brazil,
2007 in Mexico and 2010 in the U.K., which are major foreign tax jurisdictions.
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The following table summarizes the activity relatedinrecognized tax benefits (excluding the feldeeaefit received from state
positions):

December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Balance at January 1 $ 62,24 61,23¢ 69,49:
Additions based on tax positions related to theeruryear 3,98( 3,77¢ 4,23:
Settlements — — (8,280
Reductions due to lapse of applicable statutewfditions (13,95¢) (2,765 (4,21
Gross balance at December 31 52,27 62,24" 61,23¢
Interest and penalties 5,31¢ 6,93: 5,85¢
Balance at December 31 $ 57,59( 69,18( 67,09:

Of the total unrecognized tax benefits, $40 mill{oet of the federal benefit on state issues) sgues the amount of unrecognized tax
benefits that, if recognized, would favorably affdwe effective tax rate in future periods. Thakamount includes $4 million and $5 million of
interest and penalties, at December 31, 2012 ahil 2@spectively, net of the federal benefit @iestssues. For the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010, we recognized an incombeagfit related to interest and penalties of $lionil, $1 million , and $2 million ,
respectively, within “Provision for income taxes’our Consolidated Statements of Earnings. Unrdazedrtax benefits related to federal, state
and foreign tax positions may decrease by $2 miltip December 31, 2013, if audits are complete@doyears close during 2013 .

Like-Kind Exchange Program

We have a like-kind exchange program for certaiowfrevenue earning equipment located in the BuBsuant to the program, we
dispose of vehicles and acquire replacement vehicla form whereby tax gains on disposal of elajikehicles are deferred. To qualify for like-
kind exchange treatment, we exchange, through lifigdantermediary, eligible vehicles being dispdsof with vehicles being acquired
allowing us to generally carryover the tax basithefvehicles sold (“like-kind exchanges”). Thegmam results in a material deferral of federal
and state income taxes. As part of the progranptbeceds from the sale of eligible vehicles astricted for the acquisition of replacement
vehicles and other specified applications. Effecthpril 1, 2012, we temporarily suspended the kiked exchange program. Due to the structure
utilized to facilitate the like-kind exchanges, tiigalified intermediary that holds the proceedsiitbe sales of eligible vehicles and the entity
that holds the vehicles to be acquired under tbgram are required to be consolidated in the aceoyipg Consolidated Financial Statements
in accordance with U.S. GAAP. At December 31, 284@ 2011 , these consolidated entities had tos&tgsprimarily revenue earning
equipment, and total liabilities, primarily accosipiayable of $26 million and $142 million , respesly.
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15. LEASES
Leases as Lessor

We lease revenue earning equipment to customepefards ranging from three to seven years fokswand tractors and up to ten years
for trailers. From time to time, we may also letedlities to third parties. The majority of oulakges are classified as operating leases. However
some of our revenue earning equipment leasesassifiéd as direct financing leases and, to allesdent, sales-type leases. The net investmen
in direct financing and sales-type leases consisted

December 31,

2012 2011
(In thousands)

Total minimum lease payments receivable $ 629,91¢ 561,77:
Less: Executory costs (201,77) (181,82()

Minimum lease payments receivable 428,14. 379,95:
Less: Allowance for uncollectibles (703) (903)

Net minimum lease payments receivable 427,43¢ 379,04¢
Unguaranteed residuals 60,76¢ 63,47
Less: Unearned income (96,280) (92,63

Net investment in direct financing and sales-tygasés 391,92: 349,88:
Current portion (76,395 (68,896

Non-current portion $ 315,52 280,98t

Our direct financing lease customers operate ifde wariety of industries, and we have no signiftcaustomer concentrations in any one
industry. We assess credit risk for all of our oustrs including those who lease equipment undectiinancing leases. Credit risk is assessed
using an internally developed model which incorpesaredit scores from third party providers andawn custom risk ratings and is update:

a monthly basis. The external credit scores areldped based on the customer’s historical paymettenms and an overall assessment of the
likelihood of delinquent payments. Our internalirgs are weighted based on the industry that temer operates, company size, years in
business, and other credit-related indicators gr&fitability, cash flow, liquidity, tangible netorth, etc.). Any one of the following factors may
result in a customer being classified as high iijsthe customer has a history of late paymentshé customer has open lawsuits, liens or
judgments; iii) the customer has been in busiless than 3 years ; and iv) the customer operatas industry with low barriers to entry. For
those customers who are designated as high riskypieally require deposits to be paid in advamcerder to mitigate our credit risk.
Additionally, our receivables are collateralizedthg vehicle’s fair value, which further mitigatagr credit risk.

The following table presents the credit risk pefily creditworthiness category of our direct firagdease receivables at December 31,
2012 :

December 31,

2012 2011
(In thousands)
Very low risk to low risk $ 193,12 121,83t
Moderate 177,40( 190,07(
Moderately high to high risk 57,61¢ 68,04¢

$ 428,14: $ 379,95
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The following table is a rollforward of the allowafor credit losses on direct financing leaseivadxes for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2012 :

(In thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 784
Charged to earnings 867
Deductions (74¢)
Balance at December 31, 2011 90:<
Charged to earnings 812
Deductions (1,012
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 708

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011 , the amountrettifinancing lease receivables which were pastvdas not significant and there
were no impaired receivables. Accordingly, thers wa material risk of default with respect to tlirect financing lease receivables as of
December 31, 2012 or 2011 .

Leases as Lessee

We lease vehicles, facilities and office equipmerder operating lease agreements. Rental paymemrtain vehicle lease agreements
vary based on the number of miles run during thiegeGenerally, vehicle lease agreements spele#fy/rental payments be adjusted periodi
based on changes in interest rates and provideafty termination at stipulated values. None ofleasing arrangements contain restrictive
financial covenants.

We periodically enter into sale and leaseback &etitns to lower the total cost of funding our @tiems and to diversify our funding
among different types of funding instruments. Thesle-leaseback transactions are often executédhitt-party financial institutions not
deemed to be VIEs. In general, these sale-leasélmddactions result in a reduction in revenueiagrequipment and debt on the balance sheet,
as proceeds from the sale of revenue earning eguipane used primarily to repay debt. Sale-leadetransactions accounted for as operating
leases will result in reduced depreciation andr@seexpense and increased equipment rental exgeaseg 2012, we completed a sale-
leaseback transaction of revenue earning equipwigimia third party and the leaseback was accouiatedls an operating lease. Proceeds from
the sale-leaseback transaction totaled $130 millBuaring 2011, we completed a sale-leasebackadrtion of revenue earning equipment with a
third party and the leaseback was accounted farcapital lease. Proceeds from the sale-leaselmatdaction totaled $37 million . We did not
enter into any sale-leaseback transactions du@ig 2

Certain leases contain purchase and/or renewaraptas well as limited guarantees for a portiotheflessor’s residual value. Certain
residual value guarantees are conditional on textioin of the lease prior to its contractual le@sent The amount of residual value guarantees
expected to be paid is recognized as rent expamsedle expected remaining term of the lease. Famdscircumstances that impact
managemens estimates of residual value guarantees incluglendrket for used equipment, the condition of dng@ment at the end of the le:
and inherent limitations in the estimation proc&se Note 19, “Guarantees,” for additional inforiorat

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, rent expense (inolpdent of facilities but excluding contingent r&ls) was $ 148 million , $ 154 million ,
and $ 156 million , respectively. During 2012 , 2@inhd 201Q contingent rental expense comprised of residallevguarantees, payments be
on miles run and adjustments to rental paymentsHanges in interest rates on all other leasechestivas $ (1) million , $(2) million , and $(2)
million , respectively.
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Lease Payments
Future minimum payments for leases in effect atdbdmer 31, 2012 were as follows:

As Lessor™™ As Lessee
Direct
Operating Financing Operating
Leases Leases Leases

(In thousands)

2013 $ 823,36 107,89( 106,68t
2014 620,53: 87,45¢ 96,40:
2015 475,22t 73,50° 54,41+
2016 348,89 60,25 34,26:
2017 230,01t 40,10¢ 21,36¢
Thereafter 172,75t 58,92: 58,76:

Total $ 2,670,79 428,14. 371,89!

(1) Amounts do not include contingent rentals, whicly imareceived under certain leases on the basisiles of use or changes in the Consumer Price In@ertingent rental
from operating leases included in revenue du2012 , 2011 and 2010 were $ 319 million , $ 303ionil, and $ 294 million , respectively. Contingesntals from direct
financing leases included in revenue dur2012 , 2011 , and 2010 were $ 11 million , $ 11ioml, and $ 12 million , respectively.

The amounts in the previous table related to thed®f revenue earning equipment are based up@etiegzal assumption that revenue
earning equipment will remain on lease for the targf time specified by the respective lease agesgsn The future minimum payments
presented above related to the lease of revennsgarquipment are not a projection of future le@senue or expense; no effect has been ¢
to renewals, new business, cancellations, contingenals or future rate changes.

80




RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Conti nued)

16. DEBT
Weighted-Average
Interest Rate
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 Maturities 2012 2011

(In thousands)
Short-term debt and current portion of long-terrhtde

Short-term debt 2.21% 1.45% 2013 $ 9,82( 5,091
Current portion of long-term debt, including capleases 358,15! 269,27"
Total short-term debt and current portion of loeg¥t debt 367,97 274,36t
Long-term debt:

U.S. commercial papé? 0.41% 0.4(% 2016 329,92! 415,93t
Canadian commercial pagér 1.14% —% 2016 23,16¢ —
Global revolving credit facility 1.58% 1.52% 2016 8,92¢ 1,00(
Unsecured U.S. notes — Medium-term nétes 4.01% 4.4% 2013-2025 2,971,311 2,484,71.
Unsecured U.S. obligations, principally bank teaans 1.56% 1.7¢% 2013-2017 105,50( 105,00(
Unsecured foreign obligations 1.91% 2.7% 2014-2016 313,40t 300,51t
Capital lease obligations 4.08% 4286 2013-2019 42,01¢ 48,04%
Total before fair market value adjustment 3,794,25 3,355,221
Fair market value adjustment on notes subject diging ® 16,72¢ 21,84:
3,810,97 3,377,05.

Current portion of long-term debt, including capleases (358,15) (269,279
Long-term debt 3,452,82 3,107,77!
Total debt $ 3,820,79 3,382,14!

(1) We had unamortized original issue discounts ofidilBon at December 31, 2012 and 2011
(2) The notional amount of the executed interest rai@ps designated as fair value hedges was $ 55@mak December 31, 2012 and 2011

Maturities of total debt are as follows:

Capital Leases Debt
(In thousands)

2013 % 8,21( 359,82:

2014 7,71C 339,33

2015 6,91( 727,89

2016 5,771 1,117,28

2017 7,14C 704,06

Thereafter 10,94: 513,64!

Total 46,68: 3,762,05:
Imputed interest (4,66%)
Present value of minimum capitalized lease payments 42,01¢
Current portion (6,847)
Long-term capitalized lease obligation $ 35,177

Debt Facilities

We can borrow up to $ 900 million under a globabteing credit facility with a syndicate of twellending institutions led by Bank of
America N.A., Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.N® Paribas, Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd., Royal BahKanada, Royal Bank of Scotland
Plc, U.S. Bank National Association and Wells FaBgmk, N.A. This facility matures in June 2016 éndsed primarily to finance working
capital and provide support for the issuance oéaused commercial paper in the U.S. and Canada.fability can also be used to issue up to $
75 million in letters of credit (there were no &t of credit outstanding against the facility acBmber 31, 201R At our option, the interest ra
on borrowings under the credit facility is based tBOR, prime, federal funds or local equivalertesa The agreement provides for annual
facility fees, which range
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from 10.0 basis points to 32.5 basis points, arthased on Ryder’s long-term credit ratings. Theetit annual facility fee is 15.0 basis points,
which applies to the total facility size of $900llion . The credit facility contains no provisiohisiiting its availability in the event of a materia
adverse change to Rydeibusiness operations; however, the credit faalitys contain standard representations and warsaetrents of defau
cross-default provisions and certain affirmative aegative covenants. In order to maintain avditglwf funding, we must maintain a ratio of
debt to consolidated net worth, of less than oaétju300% . Net worth, as defined in the crediflfizy and amended in April 2012, represents
shareholders' equity excluding any accumulatedraitvaprehensive income or loss associated withpeosion and other postretirement plans.
The ratio at December 31, 2012 was 180 %. At Deeerdb, 2012 , $ 538 million was available underdreglit facility, net of the support for
commercial paper borrowings.

Our global revolving credit facility permits ustefinance short-term commercial paper obligatiom& dong-term basis. Settlement of
short-term commercial paper obligations not expktdaequire the use of working capital are clésgifis long-term as we have both the intent
and ability to refinance on a long-term basis. AcBmber 31, 2012 and 2011 , we classified $353omidind $416 million , respectively, of
short-term commercial paper as long-term debt.

In August 2012, we issued $350 million of unsecurelium term notes maturing in March 2018. In Fabr2012, we issued $350
million of unsecured medium-term notes maturinfylimrch 2017. The proceeds were used to pay down esoiah paper and for general
corporate purposes. If the notes are downgradémiiolg, and as a result of, a change in contr@,rtbte holder can require us to repurchase all
or a portion of the notes at a purchase price eguEd1% of the principle amount plus accrued amghid interest.

We have a trade receivables purchase and saleapnpgursuant to which we sell certain of our domeéside accounts receivable to a
bankruptcy remote, consolidated subsidiary of Rythet in turn sells, on a revolving basis, an owhip interest in certain of these accounts
receivable to a receivables conduit or committedtipasers. The subsidiary is considered a VIE andrisolidated based on our control of the
entity’s activities. We use this program to provatiitional liquidity to fund our operations, pattiarly when it is cost effective to do so. The
costs under the program may vary based on changeterest rates. The available proceeds that reagdeived under the program are limite
$ 175 million . In October 2012, we renewed theéreeceivables purchase and sale program. If nat @eeurs which causes early termination,
the 364 -day program will expire on October 25,200he program contains provisions restrictingaitailability in the event of a material
adverse change to our business operations or Heetdaility of the collateralized receivables. Becember 31, 2012 and 20140 amounts we
outstanding under the program. Sales of receivalbider this program will be accounted for as setbaFrowings based on our continuing
involvement in the transferred assets.

On February 6, 2013, we filed an automatic shejisteation statement on Form S-3 with the Secwritied Exchange Commission. The
registration is for an indeterminate number of siies and is effective for three years. Under tiissersal shelf registration statement, we have
the capacity to offer and sell from time to timeivas types of securities, including common stqurkferred stock and debt securities, subject to
market demand and ratings status.
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17. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
The following tables present our assets and ligdsBlithat are measured at fair value on a recubrégis and the levels of inputs used to
measure fair value:

Fair Value Measurements
At December 31, 2012 Using

Balance Sheet Location Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(In thousands)

Assets:
Interest rate swap Prepaid expenses and other
current assets $ — 1,312 — 1,31¢
Interest rate swaps DFL and other assets — 15,41: — 15,41:
Investments held in Rabbi Trusts:
Cash and cash equivalents 4,05t — — 4,05¢
U.S. equity mutual funds 10,87: — — 10,87:
Foreign equity mutual funds 2,97¢ — — 2,97¢
Fixed income mutual funds 4,52¢ — — 4,52¢
Investments held in Rabbi Trusts DFL and other assets 22,42¢ — — 22,42¢
Total assets at fair value $ 22,42¢ 16,72¢ — 39,15:
Liabilities:
Contingent consideration Other non-current liabilities — — 47¢ 47¢
Total liabilities at fair value $ — — 47¢ 47¢€
Fair Value Measurements
At December 31, 2011 Using
Balance Sheet Location Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(In thousands)
Assets:
Interest rate swaps DFL and other assets $ — 21,84: — 21,84:
Investments held in Rabbi Trusts:
Cash and cash equivalents 3,78 — — 3,78
U.S. equity mutual funds 8,85( — — 8,85(
Foreign equity mutual funds 2,52¢ — — 2,52¢
Fixed income mutual funds 3,531 — — 3,531
Investments held in Rabbi Trusts DFL and other assets 18,69¢ — — 18,69¢
Total assets at fair value $ 18,69¢ 21,84 — 40,53¢
Liabilities:
Contingent consideration Accrued Expenses $ — — 1,00( 1,00(
Total liabilities at fair value $ — — 1,00( 1,00(
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The following table presents our assets that a@sored at fair value on a nonrecurring basis aadetels of inputs used to measure fair
value:

Fair Value Measurements Year ended
At December 31, 2012 Using December 31, 2012
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Losses®
Assets held for sale:
Revenue earning equipmefit:
Trucks $ — — 14,26: $ 12,85:
Tractors — — 11,61¢ 4,05¢
Trailers — — 58t 1,48¢
Total assets at fair value $ — — 26,467 % 18,40(
Fair Value Measurements Year ended
At December 31, 2011 Using December 31, 2011
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Lossed?
Assets held for sale:
Revenue earning equipméht
Trucks $ — — 6,147 $ 5,55¢
Tractors — — 3,04( 1,982
Trailers — — 29¢ 1,35:
Total assets at fair value $ — — 9,48: $ 8,891

(1) Represents the portion of all revenue earning egeipt held for sale that is recorded at fair valless costs to se
(2) Total losses represent fair value adjustments fiovehicles held for sale throughout the period ¥drich fair value less costs to sell was less ttemying value.

Revenue earning equipment held for sale is stat#tedower of carrying amount or fair value lessts to sell. Losses to reflect change
fair value are presented within “Other operatingenses” in the Consolidated Statements of Earnfrmstevenue earning equipment held for
sale, we stratify our fleet by vehicle type (truckactors and trailers), weight class, age andratflevant characteristics and create classes of
similar assets for analysis purposes. Fair valugdesermined based upon recent market prices @otfiiom our own sales experience for sales
of each class of similar assets and vehicle candiff herefore, our revenue earning equipment teglddle was classified within Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy. During the years ended Deaat, 2012 , 2011 , and 2010 , we recorded lasseslect changes in fair value of $18
million , $9 million and $ 23 million , respectivel

Total fair value of debt (excluding capital leasdigations) at December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $13ilBon and $ 3.51 hillion
respectively. For publicly-traded debt, estimatefaw value are based on market prices. Sincepablicly-traded debt is not actively traded, the
fair value measurement was classified within L&vef the fair value hierarchy. For other debt, failue is estimated based on rates currently
available to us for debt with similar terms and aémng maturities. Therefore, the fair value meament of our other debt was classified within
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The carryimgaunts reported in the Consolidated Balance Slieetash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable and accounts payable approximate faievsecause of the immediate or short-term maggrivf these financial instruments.

18. DERIVATIVES

From time to time, we enter into interest rate sama@ cap agreements to manage our fixed and vauiiatielrest rate exposure and to better
match the repricing of debt instruments to thatwf portfolio of assets. We assess the risk thamgés in interest rates will have either on the
fair value of debt obligations or on the amountutfire interest payments by monitoring changestierest rate exposures and by evaluating
hedging opportunities. We regularly monitor intémage risk attributable to both our outstandindasecasted debt obligations as well as our
offsetting hedge positions. This risk managemeotgss involves the use of analytical techniquedyding cash flow sensitivity analysis, to
estimate the expected impact of changes in inteag= on our future cash flows.
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As of December 31, 2012 , we have interest rat@swatstanding which are designated as fair vadalgdés whereby we receive fixed
interest rate payments in exchange for making bbrimterest rate payments. The differential tgphiel or received is accrued and recognized as
interest expense. The following table providestaitief the swaps outstanding and the related hititgens as of December 31, 2012 :

Weighted-average variable
interest rate on hedged debt

Face value of Aggregate notion: as of December 31,

medium- amount of interest
Issuance date Maturity date term notes rate swaps Fixed interest rate 2012 2011

(Dollars in thousands)

May 2011 June 2017 $350,000 $150,000 3.50% 1.62% 1.84%
February 2011 March 2015  $350,000 $150,000 3.15% 1.66% 1.43%
February 2008 March 2013  $250,000 $250,000 6.00% 2.84% 2.61%

Changes in the fair value of our interest rate saap offset by changes in the fair value of tHat destrument. Accordingly, there is no
ineffectiveness related to the interest rate swelps.location and amount of gains (losses) on dévig instruments and related hedged items
reported in the Consolidated Statements of Earniregs as follows:

Location of Gain December 31
(Loss) Recognized in :
Fair Value Hedging Relationship Income 2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Derivative: Interest rate swap Interest expense $ (5,119 6,41 3,32¢
Hedged item: Fixed-rate debt Interest expense 5,11¢ (6,419 (3,329
Total $ — — —

19. GUARANTEES

We have executed various agreements with thirdgsatttat contain standard indemnifications that negyire us to indemnify a third
party against losses arising from a variety of eratsuch as lease obligations, financing agreememigonmental matters, and agreements to
sell business assets. In each of these instarmgsent by Ryder is contingent on the other paritygimg about a claim under the procedures
outlined in the specific agreement. Normally, thesmedures allow us to dispute the other partigsrc Additionally, our obligations under
these agreements may be limited in terms of theuatrend/or timing of any claim. We have entered intlividual indemnification agreements
with each of our independent directors, throughcivivire will indemnify such director acting in goaaith against any and all losses, expenses
and liabilities arising out of such director’s seevas a director of Ryder. The maximum amountotéptial future payments under these
agreements is generally unlimited.

We cannot predict the maximum potential amountitidre payments under certain of these agreemestading the indemnification
agreements, due to the contingent nature of thengiat obligations and the distinctive provisiohattare involved in each individual agreement.
Historically, no such payments made by us haveshadterial adverse effect on our business. Weueettgt if a loss were incurred in any of
these matters, the loss would not have a matehedrae impact on our consolidated results of oeratbr financial position.
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At December 31, 2012 and 2011 , the maximum detexiié exposure of each type of guarantee and thespmnding liability, if any,
recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets wéod@ss:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Maximum Carrying Maximum Carrying
Exposure of Amount of Exposure of Amount of
Guarantee Guarantee Liability Guarantee Liability

(In thousands)
Vehicle residual value guarantees (end of lease)teroperating

leases @ $ 24 54 — — _
Vehicle residual value guarantees — finance leasgrams 14 11 80t 244
Standby letters of credit 6,23¢ 6,23¢ 7,52( 7,52(

Total $ 30,79: 6,24¢ 8,32¢ 7,764

(1) Amounts exclude contingent rentals associated ieitldual value guarantees on certain vehicles lwelder operating leases for which the guaranteescaralitioned upon
disposal of the leased vehicles prior to the entheif lease term. At December 31, 2012 and 2@kt maximum exposure for such guarantees was appedaly $183 million
and $91 million , respectively, with $2 million a$4d million recorded as a liability at December 2012 and 2011 , respectively.

We have provided partial end of lease term residalle guarantees as part of a sale leasebackdttansin 2012. If the sales proceeds
from the final disposition of the specified vehilgre less than the residual value guarantee,eweequired to pay the difference to the lessor.
The leases expire periodically through 2019 . Atéiaber 31, 2012 , our maximum exposure for suchagtees was approximately $25
million . No liability has been recognized as ofdember 31, 2012 because we do not expect to pagluamanteed amounts to the lessor based
on current market conditions. The payments asstiaith the end of lease term residual value gueesrhave been included in our future
minimum lease payments for leases in effect asegieinber 31, 2012 . See Note 15, "Leases," forduittiormation.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011 , we had letterseafitand surety bonds outstanding, which primagilgrantee various insurance
activities as noted in the following table:

December 31,

2012 2011
(In thousands)
Letters of credit $ 198,22 196,67:
Surety bonds 95,85¢ 74,28(

Certain of these letters of credit and surety bapdgantee insurance activities associated witlramee claim liabilities transferred in
conjunction with the sale of our automotive transpaoisiness, reported as discontinued operatiopseivious years. To date, the insurance
claims representing per-claim deductibles payabteuthirdparty insurance policies have been paid and coatiole paid by the company t
assumed such liabilities. However, if all or a portof the estimated outstanding assumed clainagppfoximately $6 million at December 31,
2012 are unable to be paid, the third-party insunesy have recourse against certain of the outsiguetters of credit provided by Ryder in
order to satisfy the unpaid claim deductibles.002, in order to reduce our potential exposur&iése claims, we drew upon an outstanding
letter of credit provided by the purchaser and hedeposit and corresponding liability, both of ehare outstanding at December 31, 2012 .
Periodically, an actuarial valuation is made inesrth better estimate the amount of outstandingrarse claim liabilities.

20. SHARE REPURCHASE PROGRAMS

In December 2011, our Board of Directors authoriaethare repurchase program intended to mitigetdithtive impact of shares issued
under our various employee stock, stock optioneangloyee stock purchase plans. Under the Deceniidr@ogram, management is
authorized to repurchase shares of common stoak amount not to exceed the number of shares isewerdployees under the Company’s
various employee stock, stock option and employeekpurchase plans from December 1, 2011 througgemMber 13, 2013. The December
2011 program limits aggregate share repurchases toore than 2 million shares of Ryder common stStlare repurchases of common stock
are made periodically in open-market transactionsae subject to market conditions, legal requénets and other factors. Management
established prearranged written plans for the Compader Rule 10b5-1 of the Securities ExchangeofA@934 as part of the December 2011
program, which allow for share repurchases duripdeRs quarterly blackout periods as set forthhia trading plan. During
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2012, we repurchased and retired 543,923 shares thid program at an aggregate amount of $26anilliWe did not repurchase any shares
under this program in 2011.

In February 2010, our Board of Directors authoriae®lL00 million discretionary share repurchase ramogover a period not to exceed two
years. In 2010, we completed this program and odyased and retire2,420,390 shares at an aggregate cost of $10@milli

In December 2009, our Board of Directors authoriaédo -year anti-dilutive share repurchase progréime December 2009 program
limited aggregate share repurchases to no more2thaition shares of Ryder common stock. During 2@hd 2010 , we repurchased and retired
1,175,783 shares and 561,656 shares, respectivelgr this program at an aggregate cost of $5%omidind $23 million , respectively.

21. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
The following summary sets forth the componentaafumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax:

Accumulated

Currency Unrealized Other
Translation Net Actuarial Prior Service Transition Gain (Loss) Comprehensive
Adjustments Loss® Credit® Obligation® on Derivatives Loss
(In thousands)
January 1, 2010 $ 32,97¢ (419,44%) 7,48 52 14 (378,919
Amortization — 12,41¢ (1,570 (18) — 10,82¢
Pension curtailment — 1,07¢ — — — 1,07¢
Current period change 13,00¢ (22,577) — — (14) (9,587)
December 31, 2010 45,987 (428,53)) 5,91 34 — (376,599
Amortization — 13,14¢ (1,62 (22 — 11,50¢
Current period change (17,76 (184,307 — — — (202,069
December 31, 2011 28,21¢ (599,68 4,291 12 — (567,16%)
Amortization — 20,31t (1,657 — — 18,65t
Current period change 29,62¢ (68,757 — — 12 (39,119
December 31, 2012 $ 57,84¢ (648,129 2,63¢ 12 12 (587,619

(1) Amounts pertain to our pension and/or postretiretiEmefit plans

The following summary sets forth the taxes relateitems of other comprehensive (loss) income:

2012 2011 2010

(In thousands)

Tax benefit (expense) on change in unrealized compis of defined benefit plans:

Tax benefit on net actuarial loss arising during pleriod $ 41,01: 98,64: 13,24
Tax expense on amortization of actuarial loss sitam obligation and prior service credit (10,016 (6,419 (6,037)
Tax expense on settlements and other — — — (419
Tax benefit on other comprehensive loss $ 30,99¢ 92,22¢ 6,792
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22. EARNINGS PER SHARE INFORMATION
The following table presents the calculation ofibasid diluted earnings per common share from nairtg operations:

Years ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

Earnings per share — Basic:

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Earnings from continuing operations 200,89¢ 171,36¢ 124,60¢
Less: Distributed and undistributed earnings atle¢do nonvested stock (2,566€) (2,757 (1,759
Earnings from continuing operations available tmown shareholders — Basic 198,33! 168,61 122,84¢
Weighted average common shares outstanding— Basic 50,44¢ 50,50( 51,717
Earnings from continuing operations per commoneharBasic 3.9¢ 3.34 2.3¢
Earnings per share — Diluted:

Earnings from continuing operations 200,89¢ 171,36¢ 124,60¢
Less: Distributed and undistributed earnings atiedtdo nonvested stock (2,55€) (2,737%) (1,756
Earnings from continuing operations available tmown shareholders — Diluted 198,34 168,63: 122,85.
Weighted average common shares outstanding— Basic 50,44¢ 50,50( 51,717
Effect of dilutive equity awards 291 37¢ 167
Weighted average common shares outstanding— Diluted 50,74( 50,87¢ 51,88¢
Earnings from continuing operations per commoneharDiluted 3.91 3.31 2.37
Anti-dilutive equity awards and market-based resireé stocks rights not included above 2,27¢ 1,51« 1,65

23. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

The following table provides information on shageséd compensation expense and income tax beresfigrized in 2012 , 2011 and
2010:

Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Stock option and stock purchase plans $ 9,46¢ 9,497 9,06¢
Nonvested stock 9,39¢ 7,92¢ 7,47¢
Share-based compensation expense 18,86« 17,42; 16,54:
Income tax benefit (6,309 (5,799 (5,577)
Share-based compensation expense, net of tax $ 12,55¢ 11,62¢ 10,97

Total unrecognized pre-tax compensation expenagerkto share-based compensation arrangementsatber 31, 2012 wa30 million
and is expected to be recognized over a weightecage period of approximately 1.7 years. The fafaivalue of equity awards vested during
the years ended December 31, 2012 , 2011 , and@&0$12 million , $23 million and $11 millionespectively.

Share-Based Incentive Awards

Share-based incentive awards are provided to eraptoynder the terms of three share-based compempéins (collectively, the
“Plans”). The Plans are administered by the Comgtéms Committee of the Board of Directors. Awardsler the Plans principally include at-
the-money stock options and nonvested stock atleee31, 2012 . There are 3.5 millishares authorized and available to be granted uhe
Plans as of December 31, 2012 . There were 3.4@milnused shares available to be granted unéePlidms as of December 31, 2012 .
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A majority of share-based compensation expenserisrgted from stock options. Stock options are dsvahich allow employees to
purchase shares of our stock at a fixed price.kStption awards are granted at an exercise prigaleq the market price of our stock at the t
of grant. These awards, which generally vest oird-tach year, are fully vested three years froengitant date and generally have contractual
terms of seven years.

Restricted stock awards are nonvested stock rightsare granted to employees and entitle the hoddghares of common stock as the
award vests. For grants prior to 2012, participantsentitled to non-forfeitable dividend equivagean such awarded shares, but the sale or
transfer of these shares is restricted during #sting period. Time-vested restricted stock rigyyécally vest in three years regardless of
company performance. The fair value of the timgegawards is determined and fixed on the gram blased on Ryder’stock price on the de
of grant. Market-based restricted stock awardsithela markebased vesting provision. For the 2012 grant, therdsvwere segmented into th
equal performance periods of one, two and threesyda the end of each performance period, 25%-125%e award may be earned based on
Ryder's total shareholder return (TSR) compardtddarget TSR of the S&P 500 over the applicablégpmance period. Employees will
receive the grant of stock at the end of the thiese period provided they continue to be employéhd Ryder, subject to Compensation
Committee approval. For grants prior to 2012, eiygds only receive the grant of stock if Ryder’s alative average total shareholder return
(TSR) at least meets the S&P 500 cumulative avefr&ge for the applicable three -year period. Thevalue of the market-based awards is
determined on the date of grant and is based olikéHifnood of Ryder achieving the market-basedditton. Expense on the market-based
restricted stock awards is recognized regardlesshether the awards vest.

Certain employees also received market-based eemtia as part of our long-term incentive compensgtrogram. The cash awards have
the same vesting provisions as the market-baséitted stock rights granted in the respective yexcept that, for 2011 and 2010, RydérSF
must at least meet the TSR of the 33rd percentilleeoS&P 500 . The cash awards are accountedsflalzility awards as the awards are based
upon the performance of our common stock and dtledén cash. As a result, the liability is adpgsto reflect fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The fair value of the cash awaves estimated using a lattice-based option pricaigation model that incorporates a Monte-
Carlo simulation. The liability related to the cashards was $4 million and $3 million at Decemhbkr®)12 and December 31, 2011,
respectively.

The following table is a summary of compensatiopemse recognized related to cash awards in additishare-based compensation
expense reported in the previous table.

Years ended December 31
2012 2011 2010

(In thousands)

Cash awards $ 1,09¢ 1,882 2,052

We grant restricted stock units (RSUs) to non-managnt members of the Board of Directors. Once gchrRSUs are eligible for non-
forfeitable dividend equivalents but have no votiigdts. The fair value of the awards is determiaad fixed on the grant date based on Ryder’s
stock price on the date of grant. The board memdamives the RSUs upon their departure from thed3dde initial grant of RSUs will not ve
unless the director has served a minimum ofyaa. When the board member receives the RSUsattleesedeemed for an equivalent numbe
shares of our common stock. Share-based compemsaiji@nse is recognized for RSUs in the year tHgsRfse granted.

Option Awards
The following is a summary of option activity under stock option plans as of and for the year éridlecember 31, 2012 :

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual Aggregate
Shares Price Term Intrinsic Value
(In thousands) (In years) (In thousands)
Options outstanding at January 1 3297 $ 44.2°¢
Granted 45¢€ 53.6:
Exercised (508) 38.6¢
Forfeited or expired (97 48.9:
Options outstanding at December 31 3,14¢ % 46.3¢ 36 % 18,56¢
Vested and expected to vest at December 31 3,077 $ 46.31 31 % 18,31
Exercisable at December 31 2,03: % 45.7¢ 26 % 14,10¢

The aggregate intrinsic values in the table abepeasent the total pre-tax intrinsic value (théedénce between the
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market price of our stock on the last trading dithe year and the exercise price, multiplied &y niimber of in-the-money options) that would
have been received by the option holders had &ibmpolders exercised their options at year-etet &mount changes based on the fair market
value of our stock.

Information about options in various price rangeBecember 31, 2012 follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-
Average
Remaining Weighted- Weighted-
Contractual Average Exercise Average Exercise
Price Ranges Shares Term Price Shares Price
(In thousands) (In years) (In thousands)
Less than $45.00 1,131 34 $ 33.82 881 $ 34.0¢
45.00-50.00 617 51 49.3¢ 204 49.3¢
50.00-55.00 897 3.6 53.0¢ 452 52.4¢
55.00 and over 503 2.2 58.9¢ 495 58.9¢
Total 3,148 3.6 $ 46.3¢ 2,032 $ 45.7¢

Restricted Stock Awards
The following is a summary of the status of Rydesvested restricted stock awards as of and &ydlar ended December 31, 2012 :

Time-Vested Market-Based Vested

Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average

Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

(In thousands) (In thousands)

Nonvested stock outstanding at January 1 373 $ 46.7:2 476 $ 18.6¢
Granted 129 52.3¢ 93 43.3¢
Vested 47) 39.1( — —
Forfeited (15) 49.7¢ (182) 32.2(
Nonvested stock outstanding at December 31 440 $ 49.1¢ 387 $ 25.3¢

Stock Purchase Plan

We maintain an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPR)h enables eligible participants in the U.S1 &anada to purchase full or
fractional shares of Ryder common stock throughgbgleductions of up to 15% of eligible compensatiThe ESPP provides for quarterly
offering periods during which shares may be puretiag 85% of the fair market value on either ths fir the last trading day of the quarter,
whichever is less. Stock purchased under the ESRP generally be held for 90 days. The amount afeshauthorized to be issued under the
existing ESPP was 4.5 million at December 31, 20M2ere were 0.7 million unused shares availableetpurchased under the ESPP at
December 31, 2012 .

The following table summarizes the status of Ry&l&SPP:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual Aggregate
Shares Price Term Intrinsic Value
(In thousands) (In years) (In thousands)
Outstanding at January 1 — —
Granted 26¢ 33.7%
Exercised (26¢) 33.72
Forfeited or expired — —
Outstanding at December 31 — — — 3 —
Exercisable at December 31 — % — — % —

Share-Based Compensation Fair Value Assumptions

The fair value of each option award is estimatethendate of grant using a Black-Scholes-Mertomogpricing valuation model that uses
the weighted-average assumptions noted in the badbdbev. Expected volatility is based on historical
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volatility of our stock and implied volatility frortraded options on our stock. The risk-free ratepfriods within the contractual life of the stock
option award is based on the yield curve of a nengpon U.S. Treasury bond on the date the stodkroptvard is granted with a maturity equal
to the expected term of the stock option award.udgehistorical data to estimate stock option egescand forfeitures within the valuation
model. The expected term of stock option awardstgthis derived from historical exercise experiemeder the share-based employee
compensation arrangements and represents the péitioae that stock option awards granted are ebgobto be outstanding. The fair value of
market-based restricted stock awards is estimatieg) @& lattice-based option-pricing valuation matet incorporates a Montéarlo simulation
Estimates of fair value are not intended to preglittial future events or the value ultimately m=diby employees who receive equity awards,
and subsequent events are not indicative of threonadleness of the original estimates of fair vatagle by Ryder.

The following table presents the weighted-averagaimaptions used for options granted:

Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Option plans:
Expected dividends 2.2% 2.2% 3.0%
Expected volatility 40.7% 38.7% 43.9%
Risk-free rate 0.6% 1.7% 1.7%
Expected term in years 3.7 years 3.6 years 3.4 years
Grant-date fair value $14.07 $12.88 $8.93
Purchase plan:
Expected dividends 2.7% 2.4% 2.5%
Expected volatility 32.7% 32.8% 35.6%
Risk-free rate 0.1% 0.1% 0.2%
Expected term in years 0.25 years 0.25 years 0.25 years
Grant-date fair value $9.53 $10.21 $8.95

Exercise of Employee Stock Options and Purchase Ris:

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrthe years ended December 31, 2012 , 2011 ar@iv2a4 $6 million , $9 million , and
$4 million , respectively. The total cash receifexnin employees as a result of exercises undehaftkesbased employee compensation
arrangements for the years ended December 31,, 2P and 2010 was $28 million , $33 million , &i¥ million , respectively. In
connection with these exercises, the tax benefikzed from share-based employee compensationgamzents were $1 million for each of the
years endeDecember 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 .

24. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Pension Plans

We historically sponsored several defined beneditgion plans covering most employees not coverathimn-administered plans,
including certain employees in foreign countriese3e plans generally provided participants withefienbased on years of service and career-
average compensation levels. The funding policyHese plans is to make contributions based onaseuvice costs plus amortization of
unfunded past service liability, but not greaterttthe maximum allowable contribution deductiblefémeral income tax purposes. We may,
from time to time, make voluntary contributionsotar pension plans, which exceed the amount reqbyestatute. The majority of the plans’
assets are invested in a master trust that, in mvested primarily in commingled funds whosedstments are listed stocks and bonds. As
discussed under the Pension Curtailments and Bettks section, we have frozen all of our majorrdefibenefit pension plans.

We have a non-qualified supplemental pension ptesrering certain U.S. employees, which providesroremental pension payments
from our funds so that total pension payments etpgahmounts that would have been payable fronponcipal pension plans if it were not for
limitations imposed by income tax regulations. Berued pension liability related to this plan 46 million and $42 million at December 31,
2012 and 2011 , respectively.
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Pension Expense
Pension expense from continuing operations wasllsvs:

Years ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010

(In thousands)
Company-administered plans:

Service cost $ 15,47¢ 14,71¢ 15,23¢
Interest cost 94,60¢ 97,52¢ 96,12¢
Expected return on plan assets (96,349 (101,809 (93,139
Settlement loss — — 1,487
Amortization of:
Transition obligation — (31) (25
Net actuarial loss 31,20( 20,22¢ 19,02t
Prior service credit (2,275 (2,27¢) (2,25¢)
42,66° 28,35¢ 36,46(
Union-administered plans 6,74¢ 5,98¢ 5,19¢
Net pension expense $ 49,41: 34,34% 41,65¢

Company-administered plans:

u.s. $ 38,99: 28,97« 33,73¢
Foreign 3,67¢ (615) 2,72
42,66' 28,35¢ 36,46(

Union-administered plans 6,74¢ 5,98¢ 5,19¢
$ 49,41 34,347 41,65¢

The following table sets forth the weighted-averageiarial assumptions used for Ryder’s pensionsgla determining annual pension
expense:

U.S. Plans Foreign Plans
Years ended December 31, Years ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Discount rate 4.9(% 5.7(% 6.2(% 4.7¢% 5.5%% 5.97%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 4.0(% 4.0(% 4.0(% 3.5% 3.55% 3.5%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 7.05% 7.45% 7.65% 6.0(% 6.84% 7.0%%
Transition amortization in years — — — 1 1 2
Gain and loss amortization in years 24 2t 26 27 27 28

The return on plan assets assumption reflects dighted-average of the expected long-term ratestofn for the broad categories of
investments held in the plans. The expected teng-rate of return is adjusted when there aredomhtal changes in expected returns or in
allocation strategies of the plan assets.

Pension Curtailments and Settlements

In recent years, we made amendments to definedibestgement plans which froze the retirement &figs for non-grandfathered and
certain non-union employees in the U.S., Canadatatnited Kingdom (U.K.). As a result of theseesmiments, non-grandfathered plan
participants ceased accruing benefits under thegsaof the respective amendment effective datdeagdn receiving an enhanced benefit under
a defined contribution plan. All retirement benefitarned as of the amendment effective date whyepfeserved and will be paid in accordance
with the plan and legal requirements. There wasaterial impact to our financial condition and agigrg results from the plan amendments.
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During 2010, a number of employees in our Canap@rsion plan elected to receive a lump-sum payuoneaer the plan which resulted in
a partial settlement of our benefit plan obligatidocounting guidance requires that when a pastttlement occurs, the employer should
recognize a pro rata portion of the unamortizedosat as pension expense. Accordingly, we recodrazere-tax settlement loss during 2010 of
$1.5 million , which reflects the partial reductionthe projected benefit obligation due to thetiphsettlement.

Obligations and Funded Status
The following table sets forth the benefit obligais, assets and funded status associated witheogigm plans:

December 31,
2012 2011

(In thousands)

Change in benefit obligations:

Benefit obligations at January 1 1,967,58! 1,744,23.
Service cost 15,47¢ 14,71¢
Interest cost 94,60¢ 97,52¢
Actuarial loss 189,93¢ 187,39(
Benefits paid (76,747) (71,910
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 16,55’ (4,372)

Benefit obligations at December 31 2,207,42. 1,967,58

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at January 1 1,418,04. 1,428,78
Actual return on plan assets 174,65( (1,437
Employer contribution 81,11¢ 65,22«
Participants’ contributions 52 61
Benefits paid (76,747 (71,910
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 15,80¢ (2,68¢6)

Fair value of plan assets at December 31 1,612,92 1,418,04.

Funded status (594,49, (549,549

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance tSteamsisted of:
December 31,
2012 2011
(In thousands)

Noncurrent asset $ 6,09( 257

Current liability (3,309 (3,120

Noncurrent liability (597,274 (546,68
Net amount recognized $ (594,49 (549,54)

Amounts recognized in accumulated other compretierisss (pre-tax) consisted of:
December 31,
2012 2011
(In thousands)

Transition obligation $ (20 (20)

Prior service credit (3,077 (5,359

Net actuarial loss 1,007,311 927,00
Net amount recognized $ 1,004,21 921,63:

In 2013, we expect to recognize approximately $ilam of the prior service credit and $36 milliari the net actuarial loss as a compo
of pension expense.
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The following table sets forth the weighted-averageiarial assumptions used in determining funtiztdis

U.S. Plans Foreign Plans
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Discount rate 4.1(% 4.9(% 4.4%% 4.7¢%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 4.0(% 4.0(% 3.55% 3.5%

At December 31, 2012 and 2011 , our pension oldigat(accumulated benefit obligations (ABO) andgxted benefit obligations (PBO)
greater than the fair value of related plan adsetsur U.S. and foreign plans were as follows:

U.S. Plans Foreign Plans Total

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Accumulated benefit obligations $ 1,747,611 1,551,21 418,24! 378,76t 2,165,85! 1,929,97
Plans with ABO in excess of plan assets:

PBO $ 1,786,02! 1,586,34 83,61¢ 380,33l 1,869,64. 1,966,67

ABO $ 1,747,611 1,551,21 80,46¢ 377,85 1,828,07! 1,929,06!

Fair value of plan assets $ 1,202,56! 1,063,38! 66,49« 353,48 1,269,05! 1,416,87
Plans with PBO in excess of plan assets:

PBO $ 1,786,02! 1,586,34 83,61¢ 380,33l 1,869,64. 1,966,67

ABO $ 1,747,611 1,651,21 80,64¢ 377,85 1,828,25! 1,929,06!

Fair value of plan assets $ 1,202,56! 1,063,38 66,49 353,48 1,269,05! 1,416,87

Plan Assets

Our pension investment strategy is to generatéaairizte of return that is sufficient, coupled wetkisting assets and funding
contributions, to support payment of the ongoiranmbligations with an acceptable, appropriateraadonable level of total asset-liability risk.
The plans utilize several investment strategieduding actively and passively managed equity axetifincome strategies. The investment
policy establishes targeted allocations for easktadass that incorporate measures of assetatilityi risks. Deviations between actual pension
plan asset allocations and targeted asset allosati@y occur as a result of investment performandechanges in the funded status from tirr
time. Rebalancing of our pension plan asset paofa$ evaluated periodically and rebalanced ifialcallocations exceed an acceptable range.
U.S. plans account for approximately 75% of oualtpension plan assets. Equity securities primamnitjude investments in both domestic and
international common collective trusts and publithded equities. Fixed income securities primarigfude domestic collective trusts and
corporate bonds. Other types of investments inchudlate equity fund-of-funds and hedge fund-ofdsnEquity and fixed income securities in
our international plans include actively and paslsivnanaged mutual funds.

In the fourth quarter of 2012 , we modified our UpBnsion investment policy and strategy to redheeeffects of future volatility on the
fair value of our pension assets relative to ourspn liabilities as a result of an asbability study. Under the new strategy, we wilthease ou
allocation to high quality, longer-term fixed incersecurities and reduce our allocation of equitgdtments as the funded status of the plan
improves.
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The following table presents the fair value of eawdjor category of pension plan assets and thé ¢éweputs used to measure fair valui
of December 31, 2012 and 2011 :

Fair Value Measurements at
December 31, 2012

Asset Category Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(In thousands)
Equity securities:

U.S. companies $ 76,66( 76,66( — —

U.S. common collective trusts 471,50« — 471,50« —

Foreign common collective trusts 497,31! — 497,31! —
Fixed income securities:

Corporate bonds 61,57: — 61,57: —

Common collective trusts 434,67( — 434,67 —
Private equity and hedge funds 71,20° — — 71,20°
Total $ 1,612,92 76,66( 1,465,06! 71,20°

Fair Value Measurements at
December 31, 2011

Asset Category Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

(In thousands)
Equity securities:

U.S. companies $ 63,06¢ 63,06¢ — —

U.S. common collective trusts 500,29t — 500,29¢ —

Foreign common collective trusts 337,18! — 337,18! —
Fixed income securities:

Corporate bonds 53,42« — 53,42 —

Common collective trusts 394,71 — 394,71 —

Other (primarily mortgage-backed securities) 80¢ — 80¢ —
Private equity funds 68,54 — — 68,54
Total $ 1,418,04. 63,06¢ 1,286,43 68,54

The following is a description of the valuation imedologies used for our pension assets as wetlealevel of input used to measure fair
value:

Equity securities— These investments include common and preferreétsied index common collective trusts that tracB.ldnd foreigi
indices. Fair values for the common and prefertedks were based on quoted prices in active magketsvere therefore classified within Level
1 of the fair value hierarchy. The common colleetikusts were valued at the unit prices establislyatie fundssponsors based on the fair ve
of the assets underlying the funds. Since the whitise funds are not actively traded, the faiueaineasurements have been classified within
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Fixed income securities- These investments include investment grade bohdsS. issuers from diverse industries, governnissuers,
index common collective trusts that track the BayslAggregate Index and other fixed income investsgrimarily mortgage-backed
securities). Fair values for the corporate bondewalued using third-party pricing services. Theserces determine prices utilizing market
income models which factor in, where applicablansactions of similar assets in active marketastetions of identical assets in infrequent
markets, interest rates, bond or credit defaulpssyaeads and volatility. Since the corporate bamdsiot actively traded, the fair value
measurements have been classified within LeveltBeofair value hierarchy. The common collectivests were valued at the unit prices
established by the funds’ sponsors based on thedhie of the assets underlying the funds. Siheeunits of the funds are not actively traded,
the fair value measurements have been classifidgdnievel 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The otirerestments are not actively traded and fair
values are estimated using bids provided by brokkalers or quoted prices of similar securitiethwimilar characteristics or pricing models.
Therefore, the other investments have been cledsifithin Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Private equity and hedge funds These investments represent limited partnerstigrests in private equity and hedge funds. The
partnership interests are valued by the genertthgrarbased on the underlying assets in each Turlimited partnership interests are valued
using unobservable inputs and have been classifithch Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

The following table presents a summary of changele fair value of the pension plans’ Level 3 &sfar the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011 :

2012 2011
(In thousands)

Beginning balance at January 1 $ 68,54: 17,74¢
Return on plan assets:

Relating to assets still held at the reporting date (557) (2,277

Relating to assets sold during the period 5,99( 3,051

Purchases, sales, settlements and expenses (2,775 50,02«

Ending balance at December 31 $ 71,20" 68,54

The following table details pension benefits expddb be paid in each of the next five fiscal yeard in aggregate for the five fiscal years
thereafter:

(In thousands'

2013 $ 89,65
2014 93,33¢
2015 98,44:
2016 103,94(
2017 108,46:
2018-2022 619,20!

For 2013, required pension contributions to ourgien plans are estimated to be $66 million .

Multi-employer Plans

We also participate in multi-employer plans thatvide defined benefits to certain employees covbsecdbllectivebargaining agreemen
Such plans are usually administered by a boartusfdes comprised of the management of the paatingpcompanies and labor representatives.
The net pension cost of these plans is equal tartheal contribution determined in accordance tighprovisions of negotiated labor contracts.
Assets contributed to such plans are not segregatettherwise restricted to provide benefits oolyptr employees. The risks of participating in
these multi-employer plans are different from sgaginployer plans in the following aspects: 1) assentributed to the multi-employer plan by
one employer may be used to provide benefits td@raps of other participating employers; 2) if atipgpating employer stops contributing to
the plan, the unfunded obligations of the plan tmayorne by the remaining participating employang} 3) if we choose to stop participating in
some of our multi-employer plans, we may be reglicepay those plans an amount based on the umdiedustatus of the plan, which is
referred to as a withdrawal liability.

Our participation in these plans is outlined in thigle below. Unless otherwise noted, the mostteeension Protection Act zone status
available in 2012 and 2011 is for the plan yearedrdecember 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 , tesggcThe zone status is based on
information that we received from the plan. Amortigen factors, plans in the red zone are generadly than sixty-five percent funded, plans in
the yellow zone are less than eighty percent fupdied plans in the green zone are at least eigityept funded.
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Pension Protection Act Zone

Status Ryder Contributions Date of
Employer FIP/RP Status Collective-
Identification Pending/ Surcharge Bargaining
Pension Fund Number 2012 2011 Implemented” 2012 2011 2010 Imposed Agreement
(Dollars in thousands)
Western Conference 6/30/14 to
Teamsters 916145047 Green Green No $  1,94¢ 1,85¢ 1,49¢ No 3/31/16
4/30/13 to
IAM National 51-603129¢ Green Green No 2,03¢ 1,79¢ 1,57 No 3/31/17
Automobile Mechanics 5/31/13 to
Local No. 701 366042061 Red Red FIP Adopted 1,527 1,20¢ 1,07¢ Yes 10/31/14
International
Association of 1/31/14 to
Machinists Motor City 38-623714: Red® Red® RP adopted 437 392 372 No 3/31/16
Central States Southeast
and Southwest Areas 36-604424: Red Red RP adopted 22€ 182 15¢ No 6/1/12 to 5/31/17
Other Funds 57E 562 52¢
Total contributions: $ 6,74¢€ 5,98¢ 5,19¢

(1) The “FIP/RP Status Pending/Implemented” column @adiés plans for which a financial improvement pl&iP) or a rehabilitation plan (RP) is either pemdj or has been
implemented.
(2) Plan years ended June 30, 2012 and 2!

Our contributions to the International AssociatarMachinists Motor City Pension Fund were 17%twf total plan contributions for the
plan year ended June 30, 2012 .

Savings Plans

Employees who do not actively participate in pengitans and are not covered by union-administela@uspare generally eligible to
participate in enhanced savings plans. These planéde for (i) a company contribution even if emydes do not make contributions, (i) a
company match of employee contributions of eligitdg, subject to tax limits and (iii) a discretiopgompany match. Savings plan costs tot
$33 million in 2012, $33 million in 2011 , and $&illion in 2010 .

Deferred Compensation and Long-Term Compensation Bhs

We have deferred compensation plans that perrgibédi U.S. employees, officers and directors teedafportion of their compensation.
The deferred compensation liability, including Rydetching amounts and accumulated earnings, tb%#& million and $23 million at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

We have established grantor trusts (Rabbi Trustpjdvide funding for benefits payable under thepdemental pension plan, deferred
compensation plans and long-term incentive comgiemsplans. The assets held in the trusts at Deee®ib 2012 and 2011 amounted to $26
million and $23 million , respectively. The Rabbiu$ts’ assets consist of short-term cash invessraard a managed portfolio of equity
securities, including our common stock. These assetept for the investment in our common storjrecluded in Direct financing leases ai
other assets” because they are available to o@rgleereditors in the event of insolvency. The Bgsécurities are classified as trading securities
and stated at fair value. Both realized and urzedlgains and losses are included in “Miscellanégmame, net.” The Rabbi Trusts’ investment
of $4 million in our common stock at December 3112 and 2011 is reflected at historical cost awdnaed against shareholders’ equity.

Other Postretirement Benefits

We sponsor plans that provide retired U.S. and @ianeemployees with certain healthcare and liferiasce benefits. Substantially all
U.S. and Canadian employees not covered by uniotiragtered health and welfare plans are eligibtelie healthcare benefits. Healthcare
benefits for our principal plan are generally po®d to qualified retirees under age 65 and eligieleendents. Generally, this plan requires
employee contributions that vary based on yeasgnfice and include provisions that limit our cdnitions.
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Total postretirement benefit expense was as follows

Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)

Service cost $ 1,09t 1,29¢ 1,37¢

Interest cost 1,98( 2,50 2,72
Amortization of:

Net actuarial (gain) loss (20) 231 352

Prior service credit (237) (237) (237)

Postretirement benefit expense $ 2,82¢ 3,79 4,217

u.s. $ 2,14: 3,15¢ 3,13¢

Foreign 682 64z 1,08:

$ 2,82¢ 3,79 4,217

The following table sets forth the weighted-averdigeount rates used in determining annual pogtragnt benefit expense:

U.S. Plan Foreign Plan
Years ended December 31, Years ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
Discount rate 4.9(% 5.7(% 6.2(% 4.5(% 5.25% 6.0(%

Our postretirement benefit plans are not fundea. foHowing table sets forth the benefit obligasamssociated with our postretirement
benefit plans:

December 31,

2012 2011
(In thousands)

Benefit obligations at January 1 $ 42,99 47,16¢
Service cost 1,09t 1,29¢
Interest cost 1,98( 2,50:
Actuarial gain (1,74 (5,759
Benefits paid (3,947 (2,027)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes 22t (197

Benefit obligations at December 31 $ 40,59¢ 42,99:

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance tStemsisted of:

December 31,

2012 2011
(In thousands)
Current liability $ (2,687) (2,83¢)
Noncurrent liability (37,916 (40,159

Amount recognized $ (40,599 (42,99))
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Amounts recognized in accumulated other compretierisss (pre-tax) consisted of:

December 31,

2012 2011

(In thousands)
Prior service credit $ (1,307) (1,53¢)
Net actuarial (gain) loss (859) 867
Net amount recognized $ (2,166€) (671)

In 2013, the amounts of prior service credit aatlattuarial gain to recognize as a componenttaf pmstretirement benefit expense is not
material.

Our annual measurement date is December 31 forla@hand foreign postretirement benefit plans.ufgstions used in determining
accrued postretirement benefit obligations werlpkaws:

U.S. Plan Foreign Plan
December 31, December 31,
2012 2011 2012 2011
Discount rate 4.1% 4.9(% 4.0% 4.5(%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 4.0(% 4.0(% 3.5(% 3.5(%
Healthcare cost trend rate assumed for next year 7.5(% 8.0(% 7.0(% 7.5(%
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed tindgltimate trend rate) 5.0(% 5.0(% 5.0(% 5.0(%
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 202: 201¢ 2017 2017

Changing the assumed healthcare cost trend rat&¥%bg each year would not have a material effadhe accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation at December 31, 2012 or annoatnetirement benefit expense for 2012 .

The following table details other postretirementéfiis expected to be paid in each of the nextfiseal years and in aggregate for the
fiscal years thereafter:

(In thousands,

2013 $ 2,72¢
2014 2,852
2015 3,01¢
2016 3,12(
2017 3,16t
2018-2022 15,94:

25. ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Our operations involve storing and dispensing petro products, primarily diesel fuel, regulated emenvironmental protection laws.
These laws and environmental best practices regasite identify, track, eliminate or mitigate thféeet of such substances on the environment.
In response to these requirements, we continupliyade our operating facilities and implement vasiprograms to detect and minimize
negative environmental impacts. In addition, weehaceived notices from the Environmental Protecfigency (EPA) and others that we have
been identified as a potentially responsible pargter the Comprehensive Environmental Responsep€@asation and Liability Act, the
Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act amdlasi state statutes and may be required to shateeicost of cleanup of 19 identified
disposal sites.

Our environmental expenses, which are primarilyg@nged within “Other operating expenses” and “@b$tiel services” in our
Consolidated Statements of Earnings, consist oédémtion costs as well as normal recurring expessels as licensing, testing and waste
disposal fees. These expenses totaled $7 milli@d12 , 2011 and 2010 . The carrying amount ofeowironmental liabilities was $13 million
and $14 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011peaetdvely. Capital expenditures related to our sswinental programs totaled approximately
$2 million , $3 million , and $2 million , in 201,22011 , and 2010 , respectively. Our asset reérgrobligations related to fuel tanks to be
removed are not included above and are recordddnwifccrued expenses” and “Other non-current liibs” in our Consolidated Balance

Sheets.

The ultimate cost of our environmental liabilitesnnot presently be projected with certainty dunéopresence of several unknown
factors, primarily the level of contamination, tféectiveness of selected remediation methodssttge of investigation at individual sites, the
determination of our liability in proportion to @hresponsible parties and the
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recoverability of such costs from third partiess8a on information presently available, we belithat the ultimate disposition of these matters,
although potentially material to the results of igpi@ns in any one year, will not have a materiblease effect on our financial condition or
liquidity.

26. OTHER ITEMS IMPACTING COMPARABILITY

Our primary measure of segment performance exclcel¢ain items we do not believe are representafitiee ongoing operations of the
segment. Excluding these items from our segmensuaneaf performance allows for better year over geanparison.

Superstorm Sandy

In the fourth quarter of 2012, we incurred a char$8 million for property damage to vehicles odry full service lease customers for
which Ryder has liability under certain agreementss charge was recorded within "Cost of serviéesiur Consolidated Statements of
Earnings. See Note 27, "Other Matters," for furttiscussion on the financial impact from Superst&andy.

Acquisition-related Transaction Costs

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, we incurred acquisitelated transaction costs totaling $0.4 milli&2 million and $4 million ,
respectively. These charges, which were primaeifiected within “Selling, general and administratexpenses” in our Consolidated Statements
of Earnings, related to the acquisitions of Eurowa2012, Hill Hire in 2011 and TLC in 2010.

Sale of International Facility

During 2010, we completed the sale of a facilitysingapore and recognized a pre-tax gain of $iamill The gain was included within
“Miscellaneous income, net” in our Consolidatedt&teents of Earnings.

27. OTHER MATTERS

On October 28, 2012, Superstorm Sandy caused wikabproperty damage and flooding to large are#iseoEast Coast and the northeas
United States. As a result of the storm, we inauigdiability of $8 million ( $5 million after-taxjor property damage to vehicles owned by full
service lease customers for which Ryder has lighilnder certain agreements. We are currently ngsecovery of these losses under
applicable property and casualty insurance progréfagever, because recovery of these losses igtanteno offsetting benefits were
recognized in 2012. Insurance recoveries will megaized if and when they are probable of recéipDecember 2012, we enhanced our
insurance coverage to mitigate this type of risthimfuture. Additionally, company-owned units wétltarrying value of $15.7 million were
damaged or completely destroyed as a direct re@ltiperstorm Sandy. We expect to recover at thastost of repairs or carrying value of
these assets from insurance proceeds and custdfimgsb Insurance recoveries have been recordéiminsurance receivables and customer
recoveries have been included within trade recé®gin our Consolidated Financial Statements.

We are a party to various claims, complaints amdgedings arising in the ordinary course of outicoimg business operations including
not limited to those relating to commercial and @pment claims, environmental matters, risk manag@matters (e.g. vehicle liability,
workers’ compensation, etc.) and administrativesssents primarily associated with operating talWashave established loss provisions for
matters in which losses are probable and can lsemealy estimated. For matters from continuing afi@ns where a reserve has not been
established and for which we believe a loss isarasly possible, as well as for matters where aerveshas been recorded but for which an
exposure to loss in excess of the amount accrusdsonably possible, we believe that such los#esat have a material effect on our
consolidated financial statements.

Our estimates regarding potential losses and aditgrare based on our judgment and assessmehné afdims utilizing currently available
information. Although we will continue to reassess reserves and estimates based on future devetdpnour objective assessment of the |
merits of such claims may not always be prediotivhe outcome and actual results may vary fromcourent estimates.

Refer to Note 4, "Discontinued Operations," foritiddal matters.
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28. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Supplemental cash flow information was as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Interest paid $ 126,76- 126,91¢ 120,18«
Income taxes paid 11,61 21,54: 4,90¢
Changes in accounts payable related to purchaseseafiue earning equipment 27,52¢ 61,29( 17,55¢
Operating and revenue earning equipment acquirddruapital leasel 20,67( 39,27¢ 137
Fair value of debt assumed on acquisition 37¢ — —

(1) Includes 19.9 million of capital leases assunmetthe Euroway acquisition.

29. SEGMENT REPORTING

We operate in two business segments: Fleet Managedodutions (FMS), which provides full servicedesy, contract maintenance,
contract-related maintenance and commercial reftalicks, tractors and trailers to customers ppiaity in the U.S., Canada and the U.K.; and
Supply Chain Solutions (SCS), which provides compnsive supply chain consulting including distribntand transportation services in North
America and Asia. The SCS segment also providesaked contract carriage (DCC) services, whichudek vehicles and drivers as part of a
dedicated transportation solution in the U.S. Pioad2012, DCC was reported as a separate busiege®est. In 2012, SCS and DCC were
combined as a result of aligning our internal réipgrwith how we operate our business. While thiarge did not impact our consolidated
results, segment data for prior periods have beeast to be consistent with the current year ptaten.

Our primary measurement of segment financial peréorce, defined as “Earnings Before Tax” (EBT) froomtinuing operations, includes
an allocation of CSS and excludes non-operatingiparcosts, restructuring and other charges, regtrited in Note 5, “Restructuring and Other
Charges” and excludes the items discussed in Ngt&R2her Iltems Impacting Comparability.” CSS reg@ets those costs incurred to support all
business segments, including human resources cinaorporate services, public affairs, informatiechnology, health and safety, legal and
corporate communications. Beginning in 2012, weistéld our segment financial performance measuretmexclude the non-operating
components of pension costs in order to more atslyreeflect the operating performance of the besinsegments. Prior year segment EBT has
been recast to conform to the current year preientd he objective of the EBT measurement is twjofe clarity on the profitability of each
business segment and, ultimately, to hold leadersheéach business segment and each operating segfitiein each business segment
accountable for their allocated share of CSS c@sgain costs are considered to be overhead mittuidble to any segment and remain
unallocated in CSS. Included among the unallocatedhead remaining within CSS are the costs fagstor relations, public affairs and certain
executive compensation. CSS costs attributableeidtisiness segments are predominantly allocateM®and SCS as follows:

* Finance, corporate services, and health and safetgllocated based upon estimated and planned @satilization;

* Human resources- individual costs within this category are allagin several ways, including allocation based on
estimated utilization and number of personnel suepo

« Information technology— principally allocated based upon utilization-tethmetrics such as number of users or
minutes of CPU time. Customer-related project castbexpenses are allocated to the business segespotsible
for the project; and

»  Other— represents legal and other centralized costeapenses including certain share-based incentive
compensation costs. Expenses, where allocatetasesl primarily on the number of personnel supgdorte

Our FMS segment leases revenue earning equipmeigramides fuel, maintenance and other ancillaryises to the SCS segment. Inter-
segment revenue and EBT are accounted for atsemdar to those executed with third parties. EBTated to inter-segment equipment and
services billed to customers (equipment contriltie included in both FMS and SCS and then eliteitdpresented as “Eliminations”).

Segment results are not necessarily indicativeefésults of operations that would have occuregtidach segment been an independent,
stand-alone entity during the periods presentedn Basiness segment follows the same accounting
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policies as described in Note 1, “Summary of Sigatit Accounting Policies.” Business segment reeesmud EBT from continuing operations is
as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Revenue:
Fleet Management Solutions:
Full service lease $ 1,956,81. 1,862,30 1,804,422
Commercial rental 738,56« 691,57: 505,39t
Full service lease and commercial rental 2,695,37 2,553,87 2,309,81i
Contract maintenance 169,76 169,67¢ 168,29:
Contract-related maintenance 184,70: 164,33: 139,17:
Other 71,95¢ 69,12« 67,44¢
Fuel services revenue 854,57¢ 887,48 716,87:
Total Fleet Management Solutions from external @ustrs 3,976,38 3,844,49 3,401,60
Inter-segment revenue 428,94 373,83 310,55:
Fleet Management Solutions 4,405,322 4,218,33 3,712,15:
Supply Chain Solutions from external customers 2,280,58 2,206,03! 1,734,83
Eliminations (428,949 (373,839 (310,55)
Total revenue $ 6,256,96 6,050,53 5,136,43
EBT:
Fleet Management Solutions $ 307,62t 265,69: 194,90¢
Supply Chain Solutions 115,19 104,89¢ 81,68:
Eliminations (29,2649 (24,219 (29,279
$ 393,55t 346,37 257,31
Unallocated Central Support Services (42,349 (42,549 (41,310
Non-operating pension costs (31,429 (18,657) (26,557
Restructuring and other charges, net and othessifém (16,66%) (5,789 (3,15
Earnings before income taxes from continuing opeanat $ 303,11 279,38 186,30!

(1) See Note 26, “Other Items Impacting Comparabilitipf a discussion of items, in addition to resturaig and other charges, net that are excluded fmmprimary measure
of segment performance.
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The following table sets forth share-based comp@rsalepreciation expense, (gains) losses on lebales, net, other non-cash charges
(credits), net, interest expense (income), capitpenditures and total assets for the years endedrBber 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 as provided
to the chief operating decision-maker for each yddR’s reportable business segments:

FMS SCS CSs Eliminations Total
(In thousands)

2012
Share-based compensation expense $ 5,35¢ 4,43 9,07z — 18,86«
Depreciation expensé” $ 910,35: 28,27¢ 1,05( — 939,67
Gains on vehicles sales, net $ (89,07Y) (33 — — (89,109
Other non-cash charges (credits), né? $ 15,567 2,76¢ 30,87« — 49,20¢
Interest expense (incomey $ 140,74 11 (201) — 140,55°
Capital expenditures paid® $ 2,090,44. 19,27¢ 23,51« — 2,133,23!
Total assets $ 7,556,50! 807,93! 144,35! (189,82() 8,318,97!

2011
Share-based compensation expense $ 5,38¢ 4,312 7,72 — 17,42
Depreciation expengg $ 842,09: 29,11¢ 1,05( — 872,26
Gains on vehicles sales, net $ (62,490 (383 — — (62,879
Other non-cash charges (credits), fet $ 16,27: 3,214 20,44 — 39,92¢
Interest expense (incom@) $ 133,24! (74) (7 — 133,16:
Capital expenditures paftl $  1,653,42 30,20¢ 14,95¢ — 1,698,58!
Total assets $ 6,815,40. 827,16¢ 198,47¢ (223,219 7,617,83!

2010
Share-based compensation expense $ 5,011 3,43( 8,102 — 16,54
Depreciation expengg $ 812,58t 20,28¢ 96¢ — 833,84
Gains on vehicle sales, net $ (28,76%) 38 — — (28,72
Other non-cash charges, et $ 19,35 1,021 20,52¢ — 40,90(
Interest expense (incom@) $ 130,74: (759) 11 — 129,99
Capital expenditures paftl $ 1,043,28! 16,34¢ 10,467 — 1,070,09:
Total assets $ 5,944,97. 791,79: 106,90¢ (191,29 6,652,37.

(1) Depreciation expense associated with CSS assetallsaated to business segments based upon estiraateplanned asset utilization. Depreciation exgeetotaling$12

million , $9 million , and $9 million during 2012011 , and 2010 , respectively, associated witB @sets was allocated to other business segments.

(2) Includes amortization expen:

(3) Interest expense was primarily allocated to the F8ment since such borrowings were used pringipalfund the purchase of revenue earning equipmesed in FMS
however, interest expense (income) was also reflaotSCS based on targeted segment leverage ratios
(4) Excludes acquisition payments$5 million , $362 million , and $212 million in 2012011 , and 2010 , respectively, comprised priinaf long-lived assets. See Note 3,

“Acquisitions,” for additional information.
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Geographic Information

Years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Revenue:
United States $ 5,231,89 5,075,43. 4,313,48
Foreign:
Canada 477,49! 481,59: 466,40!
Europe 384,10! 324,21 219,50¢
Mexico 143,28. 147,46: 122,31.
Asia 20,18t 21,83: 14,72:
1,025,06: 975,10: 822,95:
Total $ 6,256,96' 6,050,53. 5,136,43!
Long-lived assets:
United States $ 5,261,62. 4,708,08! 4,098,73!
Foreign:
Canada 557,35:. 481,13¢ 468,06.
Europe 534,72 463,84 219,17¢
Mexico 24,97 19,93 21,19
Asia 787 847 892
1,117,83 965,76! 709,32¢
Total $ 6,379,46 5,673,85. 4,808,06.

Certain Concentrations

We have a diversified portfolio of customers acr$sll array of transportation and logistics smos and across many indu stries. We
believe this will help to mitigate the impact ofvatlse downturns in specific sectors of the econdbuy.portfolio of full service lease and
commercial rental customers is not concentratethinone particular industry or geographic regioe. &férive a significant portion of our SCS
revenue from the automotive industry, mostly fromnufacturers and suppliers of original equipmentsp®uring 2012, 2011 and 2010, the
automotive industry accounted for approximately 3@®8% and 31% , respectively, of SCS total revenue
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30. QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Earnings from

Continuing _
ek Py
Continuing
Revenue Operations Net Earnings Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

2012
First quarter $ 1,536,27 34,87¢ 34,32: 0.6¢ 0.6¢ 0.67 0.67
Second quarter 1,563,86! 46,76" 46,72: 0.92 0.91 0.92 0.91
Third quarter 1,573,29! 64,31: 75,09 1.2¢ 1.2¢ 1.47 1.47
Fourth quarter 1,583,53 54,94! 53,84« 1.07 1.07 1.0t 1.0t
Full year $ 6,256,96 200,89¢ 209,97¢ 3.9¢ 3.91 411 4.0¢

2011
First quarter $ 1,425,37 25,85' 25,12t 0.5C 0.5C 0.4¢ 0.4¢
Second quarter 1,513,34. 40,91 40,03: 0.8C 0.7¢ 0.7¢ 0.77
Third quarter 1,570,72 56,93 56,52« 1.11 1.1C 1.1C 1.1C
Fourth quarter 1,541,09. 47,66« 48,09¢ 0.9¢ 0.92 0.9 0.9¢
Full year $ 6,050,53 171,36! 169,77 3.34 3.31 3.31 3.2¢

Quarterly and year-to-date computations of peresharounts are made independently; therefore, theo$per-share amounts for the
quarters may not equal per-share amounts for the ye

See Note 4, “Discontinued Operations,” Note 5, tReguring and Other Charges,” and Note 26, “Ottens Impacting Comparability,”
for items included in earnings during 2012 and 2011

Earnings in the first quarter of 2012 included @eoime tax benefit of $5 million , or $0.10 per thld common share, related a favorable
resolution of a tax item from prior periods. Eagsrin the third quarter of 2012 included an incdemecharge of $1 million , or $0.G#r diluted
common share, relating to a tax law change in tke U

Earnings in the second quarter of 2011 includethemme tax charge of $5 million , or $0.4ér diluted common share, related to a tax
change in Michigan. Earnings in the third quarte2@l 1 included an income tax benefit of $1 millicor $0.01 per diluted common share,
associated with the deduction of acquisition-reldtansaction costs incurred in a prior year.
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Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additions
Balance at Transferred Balance
Beginning Charged to from (to) Other at End
Description of Period Earnings Accounts? Deductions® of Period
(In thousands)
2012
Accounts receivable allowance $ 14,48¢ 10,47¢ — 9,53¢ 15,42¢
Direct finance lease allowance $ 90:< 812 — 1,01% 703
Self-insurance accruaf® $ 253,42: 272,35 57,28¢ 303,90¢ 279,15
Reserve for residual value guarantees $ 4,21¢ 17¢ — 2,762 1,63¢
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets $ 41,32¢ 1,061 — 4,20: 38,18:
2011
Accounts receivable allowance $ 13,86 7,46¢€ — 6,84« 14,48¢
Direct finance lease allowance $ 784 867 — 74¢ 90:<
Self-insurance accruaf® $ 243,24¢ 217,98( 54,83: 262,63 253,42
Reserve for residual value guarantees $ 4,49 347 — 62€ 4,21¢
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets $ 39,21¢ 672 — (1,436 41,32«
2010
Accounts receivable allowance $ 13,80¢ 4,757 — 4,69¢ 13,867
Direct finance lease allowance $ 812 39¢ — 42¢ 784
Self-insurance accruafd $ 242,90! 201,23t 45,47( 246,36. 243,24¢
Reserve for residual value guarantees $ 4,04¢ 1,64 — 1,19t 4,49
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets $ 36,57 97¢ — (1,66%) 39,21¢

(1) Transferred from (to) other accounts includes emp@docontributions made to the medical and dent&lissurance plans

(2) Deductions represent receivables wri-off, lease termination payments, insurance claiynpents during the period and net foreign curremepslation adjustment:

(3) Self-insurance accruals include vehicle liabilityorkers’ compensation, property damage, cargo ardioal and dental, which comprise our self-insupcograms.
Amount charged to earnings include developmentior pear selected loss development factors whiehdfited earnings t$1 million in 2012 , benefited earnings by $4

million in 2011 and reduced earnings by $3 millior2010 .
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this repset,carried out an evaluation, under the supenviaitd with the participation of
management, including Ryder’s Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer, of the effectivesed the design and operation of Ryder’s
disclosure controls and procedures (as definedila R3a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange AtB8#). Based upon that evaluation, the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officencluded that at December 31, 2012 , Rygdisclosure controls and procedures (as de
in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities ExchangeoAt034) were effective.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Management’'s Report on Internal Control over FifglriReporting and the Report of Independent Regidt€ertified Public Accounting
Firm thereon are set out in Item 8 of Part Il a§ thorm 10-K Annual Report.

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporthg

During the three months ended December 31, 20i&e wwere no changes in Ryder’s internal contret éwnancial reporting that has
materially affected or is reasonably likely to nighy affect such internal control over financiaporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information required by Item 10 with respecéxecutive officers is included within Item 1 inrPlaunder the caption “Executive
Officers of the Registrant” of this Form 10-K AnrrReport.

The information required by Item 10 with respectli@ctors, audit committee, audit committee firiahexperts and Section 16(a)
beneficial ownership reporting compliance is inglddinder the captions “Election of Directors,” “Au@ommittee” and “Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in oefiditive proxy statement, which will be filed withe Commission within 120 days after
the close of the fiscal year, and is incorporatein by reference.

Ryder has adopted a code of ethics applicables ©hief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Offic&opntroller and Senior Financial
Management. The Code of Ethics forms part of Ryderinciples of Business Conduct which are postethe Corporate Governance page of
Ryder’s website at www.ryder.com.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Item 11 is included enthe captions “Compensation Discussion and Amaly$xecutive Compensation,”
“Compensation Committee,” “Compensation Committepétt on Executive Compensation” and “Director Cengation” in our definitive
proxy statement, which will be filed with the Conssiion within 120 days after the close of the fisear, and is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS
AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 12 with respecséaurity ownership of certain beneficial ownerd amanagement is included under the
captions “Security Ownership of Officers and Digest and “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficiakners” in our definitive proxy
statement, which will be filed with the Commissieithin 120 days after the close of the fiscal yead is incorporated herein by reference.
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The information required by Item 12 with respectatated stockholder matters is included withimitg in Part Il under the caption
“Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equityrensation Plans” of this Form 10-K Annual Report.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS,
AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Item 13 is included enthe captions “Board of Directors” and “Relategtgdn Transactions” in our
definitive proxy statement, which will be filed Withe Commission within 120 days after the clostheffiscal year, and is incorporated herein
by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Item 14 is included enthe caption “Ratification of Independent Auditor our definitive proxy statement,
which will be filed with the Commission within 12fays after the close of the fiscal year, and isriparated herein by reference.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Items A through H and Schedule Il are preskatethe following pages of this Form KOAnnual Repor

Page No.
1. Financial Statements for Ryder System, Inc.@orsolidated Subsidiaries:
A) Management’s Report on Internal Control overdricial Reporting 51
B) Report of Independent Registered Certified RuAticounting Firm 52
C) Consolidated Statements of Earnings 53
D) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Inqoss) 54
E) Consolidated Balance Sheets 55
F) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 56
G) Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity 57
H) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 58
2. Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule ®iY#ars Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
Schedule I Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 106

All other schedules are omitted because they arapulicable or the required information is showrthie consolidated financial stateme
or notes thereto.

Supplementary Financial Information consistingelésted quarterly financial data is included inrt8 of this report.
3. Exhibits:

The following exhibits are filed with this repont,avhere indicated, incorporated by reference (Fot®K, 10-Q and 8-K referenced
herein have been filed under the Commission’sNite 1-4364). Ryder will provide a copy of the extsHiled with this report at a nominal
charge to those parties requesting them.
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Exhibit
Number

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

3.1(a)

3.1(b)

3.2

4.1

4.2(a)

4.2(b)

4.3

4.4

10.1(a)

10.1(b)

10.1(c)

10.1(d)

10.4(a)
10.4(b)

10.4(c)

10.4(d)

10.4(e)

The Ryder System, Inc. Restated Articles of Incoaion, dated November 8, 1985, as amended thrilayhl8, 1990,
previously filed with the Commission as an exhtbiRyder's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
December 31, 1990, are incorporated by referertoetiis report.

Articles of Amendment to Ryder System, Inc. Restatdicles of Incorporation, dated November 8, 1985 amended,
previously filed with the Commission on April 3,9®as an exhibit to Ryder's Form 8-A are incorpatdty reference into
this report.

The Ryder System, Inc. By-Laws, as amended thr@etember 15, 2009, previously filed with the Consiua as an
exhibit to Ryder's Current Report on Form 8-K fileidh the Commission on December 21, 2009, arerpmated by
reference into this report.

Ryder hereby agrees, pursuant to paragraph (bj4)(item 601 of Regulation S-K, to furnish th@@mission with a
copy of any instrument defining the rights of haoklef long-term debt of Ryder, where such instruntes not been filed
as an exhibit hereto and the total amount of sgesrauthorized there under does not exceed 10%edbtal assets of
Ryder and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis.

The Form of Indenture between Ryder System, Ind.Tdre Chase Manhattan Bank (National Associatiatgdias of
June 1, 1984, filed with the Commission on Novermiri985 as an exhibit to Ryder's Registratione®&tant on Form S-
3 (No. 33-1632), is incorporated by reference thte report.

The First Supplemental Indenture between RydereBysinc. and The Chase Manhattan Bank (Nationabéiaton) dated
October 1, 1987, previously filed with the Commaissas an exhibit to Ryder's Annual Report on FoaKfor the year
ended December 31, 1994, is incorporated by referémo this report.

The Form of Indenture between Ryder System, Ind.Tdre Chase Manhattan Bank (National Associatiet¢d as of
May 1, 1987, and supplemented as of November 19) 48d June 24, 1992, filed with the Commissioduly 30, 1992 a
an exhibit to Ryder's Registration Statement omT8¢3 (No. 33-50232), is incorporated by referente this report.

The Form of Indenture between Ryder System, Ind.JaR. Morgan Trust Company (National Associatibeted as of
October 3, 2003 filed with the Commission on Aug2&t 2003 as an exhibit to Ryder's Registratiotne®tant on Form S-3
(No. 333-108391), is incorporated by reference this report.

Consulting Agreement, dated as of December 13, 2fdiveen Ryder System, Inc. and Gregory T. Swigrgeeviously
filed with the Commission as an exhibit to Rydé&grent Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commigsitmn December
17, 2012, is incorporated by reference into thiore

The Form of Amended and Restated Severance Agradarebhief Executive Officer and Executive Chaimareviously
filed with the Commission as an exhibit to Ryd€tsrent Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commissin February 14,
2013, is incorporated by reference into this report

The Form of Amended and Restated Severance Agredaresther executive officers, previously filedttvithe
Commission as an exhibit to Ryder's Current RepofEorm 8-K filed with the Commission on Februady 2013, is
incorporated by reference into this report.

The Ryder System, Inc. Executive Severance Pléegtafe as of January 1, 2013, previously filednwthie Commission as
an exhibit to Ryder's Current Report on Form 8{&dfiwith the Commission on February 14, 2013, ¢®iporated by
reference into this report.

The Ryder System, Inc. 2005 Equity Compensation,Rieeviously filed with the Commission on March 2005 as
Appendix A to Ryder's Definitive Proxy Statement®chedule 14A, is incorporated by reference ini® riéport.

The Ryder System, Inc. 2005 Equity Compensation,Rieeviously filed with the Commission on March 2008, as
Appendix A to Ryder's Definitive Proxy Statement®chedule 14A, is incorporated by reference ini® réport.

The Ryder System, Inc. Stock Purchase Plan for Byegls, previously filed with the Commission on Me29, 2010, as
Appendix B to Ryder System, Inc.'s Definitive Prd3tatement on Schedule 14A, is incorporated byeafe into this
report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to non-qualifiemtktoptions granted under the Ryder System, In@5 Zquity

Compensation Plan, previously filed with the Consiua as an exhibit to Ryder's Current Report omF8+K filed with
the Commission on February 14, 2007, are incorpdrhy reference into this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to restricted stights granted under the Ryder System, Inc. 205t Compensation
Plan, previously filed with the Commission as ahibit to Ryder's Current Report on Form 8-K filedtwthe Commission
on February 8, 2008, are incorporated by refer@moethis report.
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.4(f)

10.4(g)

10.4(h)

10.4())

10.4()

10.4(k)

10.4())

10.4(m)

10.4(n)

10.4(0)

10.4(p)

10.4(q)

10.4(r)

10.4(s)

10.4(t)

10.4(u)

10.4(v)

Terms and Conditions applicable to restricted statks granted under the Ryder System, Inc. 2005t ompensation Plan,
previously filed with the Commission as an exhtbiRyder's Current Report on Form 8-K filed witle tBommission on
May 11, 2005, are incorporated by reference iniriport.

Terms and Conditions applicable to annual incertagh awards granted under the Ryder System, 00& Equity
Compensation Plan, previously filed with the Consiua as an exhibit to Ryder's Current Report omF8+K filed with the
Commission on February 11, 2011, are incorporageference into this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to performance-dhasstricted stock rights granted in 2009 undeRizder System, Inc. 2005
Equity Compensation Plan, previously filed with themmission as an exhibit to Ryder's Current Repoform 8-K filed with
the Commission on February 11, 2009, are incorpdrhy reference into this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to performance-dbassh awards granted in 2009 under the Ryder Byste. 2005 Equity
Compensation Plan, previously filed with the Consita as an exhibit to Ryder's Current Report omF8+K filed with the
Commission on February 11, 2009, are incorporageference into this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to the 2012 Non#fe@ Stock Options granted under the Ryder Systeim 2005 Equity
Compensation Plan, previously filed with the Consiua as an exhibit to Ryder's report on Form 1®QHe quarter ended
March 31, 2012, are incorporated by referencetimtoreport.

Terms and Conditions applicable to the 2012 Non#fe@ Stock Options granted to the Company's Chieécutive Officer
under the Ryder System, Inc. 2005 Equity Compemsdian, previously filed with the Commission asahibit to Ryder's
report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March2B12, are incorporated by reference into this mepo

Terms and Conditions applicable to the 2012 Perdoice-Based Restricted Stock Rights granted undeRyider System, Inc.
2005 Equity Compensation Plan, previously filedhitie Commission as an exhibit to Ryder's repoff@am 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2012, are incorporateefgrence into this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to the 2012 Perfmee-Based Restricted Stock Rights granted to tmp@ny's Chief
Executive Officer under the Ryder System, Inc. 2BQbity Compensation Plan, previously filed witle Bommission as an
exhibit to Ryder's report on Form 10-Q for the ¢emended March 31, 2012, are incorporated by eefs into this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to the 2012 Perdmice-Based Cash Awards granted under the Rydegr8ykic. 2005
Equity Compensation Plan, previously filed with themmission as an exhibit to Ryder's report on Fbor® for the quarter
ended March 31, 2012, are incorporated by refererioehis report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to the 2012 Perdmece-Based Cash Awards granted to the Companyes Executive
Officer under the Ryder System, Inc. 2005 Equityrpensation Plan, previously filed with the Comnusasas an exhibit to
Ryder's report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endexdci 31, 2012, are incorporated by reference hitoreport.

Terms and Conditions applicable to the 2012 RdsttiStock Rights granted under the Ryder System 2005 Equity
Compensation Plan, previously filed with the Consiua as an exhibit to Ryder's report on Form 1®QHe quarter ended
March 31, 2012, are incorporated by referencetimtoreport.

Ryder System, Inc. 2012 Equity and Incentive Comsp&ian Plan, previously filed with the Commissianaam exhibit to Ryder's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commissmn May 10, 2012, is incorporated by reference this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to non-qualifiextktoptions granted under the Ryder System, Int2 Equity and Incentive
Compensation Plan, previously filed with the Consita as an exhibit to Ryder's Current Report omF8+K filed with the
Commission on May 10, 2012, are incorporated bgregfce into this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to performance-dbasstricted stock rights granted under the Rygste®n, Inc. 2012 Equity
and Incentive Compensation Plan, previously filéthwhe Commission as an exhibit to Ryder's CurReport on Form 8-K
filed with the Commission on May 10, 2012, are ipmyated by reference into this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to performance-dbaash awards granted under the Ryder System20i2 Equity and
Incentive Compensation Plan, previously filed vitte Commission as an exhibit to Ryder's CurrentoRegn Form 8-K filed
with the Commission on May 10, 2012, are incorpetdty reference into this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to restricted stigtkts granted under the Ryder System, Inc. 204uitl and Incentive
Compensation Plan, previously filed with the Consitia as an exhibit to Ryder's Current Report omF8+K filed with the
Commission on May 10, 2012, are incorporated bgregfce into this report.

Terms and Conditions applicable to restricted statiks granted under the Ryder System, Inc. 201#tFqnd Incentive
Compensation Plan, previously filed with the Consiua as an exhibit to Ryder's Current Report omF8+K filed with the
Commission on May 10, 2012, are incorporated bgresfce into this report.
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.4(w) Terms and Conditions applicable to 2013 performdrased cash awards granted to named executiverffimder the Ryder
System, Inc. 2012 Equity and Incentive Compensd®ian, previously filed with the Commission as ahikit to Ryder's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commissmn February 14, 2013, are incorporated by referémto this report.

10.4(x) Terms and Conditions applicable to 2013 performdrased restricted stock rights granted to namedutixecofficers under th
Ryder System, Inc. 2012 Equity and Incentive Corspéan Plan, previously filed with the Commissianeaa exhibit to Ryder's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commiss@n February 14, 2013, are incorporated by referémto this report.

10.5(a) The Ryder System, Inc. Directors Stock Award Pénamended and restated at February 10, 2005ppsdyifiled with the
Commission as an exhibit to Ryder's Annual Reporform 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2G0#corporated by
reference into this report.

10.5(b) The Ryder System, Inc. Directors Stock Plan, asal®e and restated at May 7, 2004, previously fi@t the Commission as
an exhibit to Ryder's Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfee year ended December 31, 2004, is incorpotatadference into this
report.

10.6 The Ryder System Benefit Restoration Plan, as aetbadd restated, previously filed with the Comnaissis an exhibit to
Ryder's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with then@mission on February 11, 2009, is incorporatedefigrence into this
report.

10.7 Form of Indemnification Agreement for independein¢ctors, effective as of October 6, 2006, previptited with the
Commission as an exhibit to Ryder's Current Repoform 8-K filed with the Commission on October 2006, is
incorporated by reference into this report.

10.10 The Ryder System, Inc. Deferred Compensation Rifective as of January 1, 2009, previously fileithvthe Commission as
an exhibit to Ryder's Current Report on Form 8{Ediwith the Commission on February 11, 2009, é®@iporated by reference
to this report.

10.14(a) Global Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of Bn2011, by and among, Ryder System, Inc., cesialisidiaries of Ryder
System, Inc., and the lenders and agents namegirthpreviously filed with the Commission as anibkho Ryder's Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission ond 2011, is incorporated by reference into taport.

10.14(b) Amendment No. 1 dated as of April 20, 2012 to Gldbevolving Credit Agreement, by and among Rydest&m, Inc., certain
Ryder System, Inc. subsidiaries, and the lendetsagents named therein, previously filed with thenthission as an exhibit to
Ryder's report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endedcdk 31, 2012, is incorporated by reference ini®rigport.

21.1 List of subsidiaries of the registrant, with thatetor other jurisdiction of incorporation or orgaation of each, and the name
under which each subsidiary does business.

231 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP consent to incorpordtyoreference in certain Registration StatementSams S-3 and S-8 of
their report on Consolidated Financial Statemeintacial statement schedule and effectivenesstefrial controls over
financial reporting of Ryder System, Inc.

241 Manually executed powers of attorneyefach of:

James S. Beard John M. Berra
Robert J. Eck L. Patrick Hassey
Michael F. Hilton Tamara L. Lundgren
Luis P. Nieto, Jr. Eugene A. Renna
Abbie J. Smith E. Follin Smith
Gregory T. Swienton Hansel E. Tookes, Il

311 Certification of Robert E. Sanchez punsta Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).

31.2 Certification of Art A. Garcia pursuantRule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a).

32 Certification of Robert E. Sanchez and Art A. Garpursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) Ehd.S.C. Section

1350.
101.INS XBRL Instance Document.
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Documen
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculatiomkbase Document.
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition kivase Document.
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkba3ecument.
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentatimklhase Document.

112




(b) Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangem

Please refer to the description of Exhibits 10rbuigh 10.10 set forth under Item 15(a)3 of thiorefor a listing of all management
contracts and compensation plans and arrangeniletsvith this report pursuant to Iltem 601(b)(10Regulation S-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1d&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

Date: February 14, 2013 RYDER SYSTEM, INC.

By: /s/ Robert E. Sanchez
Robert E. Sanchez
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bblpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ttes indicated.

Date: February 14, 2013 By: /s ROBERT E. SANCHEZ
Robert E. Sanchez
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 14, 2013 By: /s/ ART A. GARCIA
Art A. Garcia
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: February 14, 2013 By: /s/ CRISTINA A. GALLO-AQUINO
Cristina A. Gallo-Aquino
Vice President and Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Date: February 14, 2013 By: /s GREGORY T. SWIENTON
Gregory T. Swienton
Executive Chairman

Date: February 14, 2013 By: JAMES S. BEARD *
James S. Beard
Director

Date: February 14, 2013 By: JOHN M. BERRA *
John M. Berra
Director

Date: February 14, 2013 By: ROBERT J. ECK *
Robert J. Eck
Director
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Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

Date:

February 14, 2013

February 14, 2013

February 14, 2013

February 14, 2013

February 14, 2013

February 14, 2013

February 14, 2013

February 14, 2013

February 14, 2013
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By: L. PATRICK HASSEY*

L. Patrick Hassey
Director

By: MICHAEL F. HILTON*

Michael F. Hilton
Director

By: TAMARA L. LUNDGREN*

Tamara L. Lundgren
Director

By: LUIS P. NIETO, JR. *

Luis P. Nieto, Jr.
Director

By: EUGENE A. RENNA *

Eugene A. Renna
Director

By: ABBIE J. SMITH *

Abbie J. Smith
Director

By: E. FOLLIN SMITH *

E. Follin Smith
Director

By: HANSEL E. TOOKES, Il *

Hansel E. Tookes, Il
Director

By: FLORA R. PEREZ

Flora R. Perez
Attorney-in-Fact



EXHIBIT 21.1

The following list sets forth (i) all subsidiarie$ Ryder System, Inc. at December 31, 2012, (&) ttate or country of incorporation

organization of each subsidiary, and (iii) the nameder which certain subsidiaries do business.

Name of Subsidiary

3241290 Nova Scotia Company
Associated Ryder Capital Services, Inc.
CRTS Logistica Automotiva S.A.
Euroway Vehicle Rental Limited
Euroway Group Holdings Limited
Euroway Group Limited

Euroway Vehicle Management Limited
Euroway Vehicle Engineering Limited
Euroway Vehicle Contracts Limited
Far East Freight, Inc.

Globe Master Insurance Company
Hill Hire Limited

Network Vehicle Central, Inc.
Network Vehicle Central, LLC

Road Master, Limited

RSI Holding B.V.

RSI Purchase Corp.

RTI Argentina S.A.

RTRC Finance LP

RTR Holdings (B.V.l.) Limited

RTR Leasing I, Inc.

RTR Leasing I, Inc.

Ryder Argentina S.A.

Ryder Ascent Logistics Pte Ltd.
Ryder Asia Pacific Holdings B.V.
Ryder Asia Pacific Pte Ltd.

Ryder Australia Pty Ltd.

Ryder Canadian Financing US LLC
Ryder Capital Ireland Holdings | LLC
Ryder Capital Ireland Holdings Il LLC

Ryder Capital Luxembourg Limited, S.A.R.L.

Ryder Capital Luxembourg Limited, Corp.
Ryder Capital S. de R.L. de C.V.

Ryder Capital Services Corporation
Ryder Capital UK Holdings LLP

Ryder Container Terminals

Ryder CRSA Logistic

Ryder CRSA Logistics (HK) Limited
Ryder de Mexico S. de R.L. de C.V.
Ryder Dedicated Logistics, Inc.

State or Country of
Incorporation or Organization

Nova Scotia
Florida
Brazil
England
England
England
England
England
England
Florida
Vermont
England
Florida
Florida
Bermuda
Netherlands
Delaware
Argentina
Canada
British Virgin Islands
Delaware
Delaware
Argentina
Singapore
Netherlands
Singapore
Australia
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
England
Florida
Mexico
Delaware
England
Canada
Canada
Hong Kong
Mexico
Delaware




Name of Subsidiary

Ryder Deutschland GmbH

Ryder Distribution Services Limited
Ryder do Brasil Ltda.

Ryder Energy Distribution Corporation
Ryder European B.V.

Ryder Europe Operations B.V.

Ryder Fleet Products, Inc.

Ryder Fuel Services, LLC

Ryder Funding LP

Ryder Funding Il LP

Ryder Hungary Logistics LLC

Ryder Integrated Logistics, Iné

Ryder Integrated Logistics of California ContrastdrtLC
Ryder Integrated Logistics of Texas, LLC
Ryder International Acquisition Corp.
Ryder International, Inc.

Ryder Limited

Ryder Logistica Ltda.

Ryder Logistics (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Ryder Mauritius Holdings, Ltd.

Ryder Mexican Holding B.V.

Ryder Mexican Investments | LP

Ryder Mexican Investments Il LP

Ryder Mexicana, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Ryder Offshore Holdings | LLC

Ryder Offshore Holdings Il LLC

Ryder Offshore Holdings Il LLC

Ryder Offshore Holdings LP

Ryder Pension Fund Limited

Ryder Puerto Rico, Inc.

Ryder Purchasing LLC

Ryder Receivable Funding Ill, L.L.C.
Ryder Services Corporatiéh

Ryder Servicios do Brasil Ltda.

Ryder Servicios S. de R.L. de C.V.
Ryder (Shanghai) Logistics Co., Ltd.
Ryder Singapore Pte Ltd.

Ryder Chile Sistemas Intergrados de Logistica ladaf?
Ryder Supply Chain Solutions Asia Limited
Ryder System B.V.

Ryder System Holdings (UK) Limited
Ryder System (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Ryder Thailand I, LLC

Ryder Thailand II, LLC

Ryder Truck Rental Holdings Canada Ltd.

State or Country of Incorporation or
Organization

Germany
England
Brazil
Florida
Netherlands
Netherlands
Tennessee
Florida
Delaware
Delaware
Hungary
Delaware
Delaware
Texas
Florida
Florida
England
Brazil
China
Mauritius
Netherlands
Delaware
Delaware
Mexico
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
England
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Florida
Brazil
Mexico
China
Singapore
Chile

Hong Kong
Netherlands
England
Thailand
Florida
Florida
Canada




Name of Subsidiary

State or Country of Incorporation or
Organization

Ryder Truck Rental, In€® Florida
Ryder Truck Rental | LLC Delaware
Ryder Truck Rental Il LLC Delaware
Ryder Truck Rental Ill LLC Delaware
Ryder Truck Rental IV LLC Delaware
Ryder Truck Rental | LP Delaware
Ryder Truck Rental Il LP Delaware
Ryder Truck Rental Canada L{d Canada
Ryder Truck Rental LT Delaware
Ryder Vehicle Sales, LLC Florida
Sistemas Logisticos Sigma S.A. Argentina
Spring Hill Integrated Logistics Management, Inc. Delaware
Tandem Transport, L.P. Georgia
Translados Americano S. de R.L. de C.V. Mexico
Truck Transerv, Inc. Delaware

(1) British Columbia, Ontario, Quebec: d/b/a CRSA Ltigs

2) Florida: d/b/a UniRyder

(3) Ohio and Texas: d/b/a Ryder Claims Services Cortama

4) Chile: d/b/a Ryder Chile Limitada

(5) Alabama, Alaska, Arizona, Arkansas, California, @atlo, Connecticut, Delaware, District of Columbidorida, Georgia, Hawaii, Idaho, lllinois, Indian:

lowa, Kansas, Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine, MarylaMdssachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippssburi, Montana, Nebraska, Nevada, N
Hampshire, New Jersey, New Mexico, New York, Noatiolina, North Dakota, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, Reylvania, Rhode Island, South Carolina, Sc
Dakota, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, Vermont, Virgit@shington, West Virginia, Wisconsin and WyomiriigiadRyder Transportation Servic

Maryland and Virginia: d/b/a Ryder/Jacobs
Michigan: d/b/a Atlas Trucking, Inc.
Michigan: d/b/a Ryder Atlas of Western Michigan
(6)  French Name: Location de Camions Ryder du Canade.Lt
Canadian Provinces: d/b/a Ryder Integrated Logsstic
Ryder Dedicated Logistics,

Ryder Canada,
Ryder Carrier Management Services



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referéméiee Registration Statements on Form S-3 (N8-B3486) and Form S-8
(No. 33-62013, No. 333-19515, No. 333-26653, N@-33595, No. 333-69626, No. 333-69628, No. 333-8d38lo. 333-124828, No. 333-
134113, No. 333-153123, and No. 333-181396) of R$ystem, Inc. of our report dated February 14 32@lating to the financial statements,
financial statement schedule and the effectiveaksgernal control over financial reporting, whiappears in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Miami, Florida
February 14, 2013



EXHIBIT 24.1

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each of thedensigned, being directors of Ryder System, InElpada corporation,
hereby constitutes and appoints Robert D. Fat®lara R. Perez and Julie Azuaje, and each of thésyor her true and lawful attorney-in-fact
and agent, with full power of substitution and testitution, for the undersigned and in his or heeme, place and stead, in any and all capacities,
to sign the Ryder System, Inc. Form 10-K (Annugb®&tépursuant to the Securities Exchange Act o#) 93 the fiscal year ended December
31, 2012 (the “Form 10-K™and any and all amendments thereto, and to filsahee, with all exhibits thereto and other docuséntonnectio
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Comignisand with the New York Stock Exchange and afgostock exchange on which the
Company's common stock is listed, granting untdeadd attorney-in-fact and agent full power antharity to perform every act requisite and
necessary to be done in connection with the exaeatind filing of the Form 10-K and any and all adments thereto, as fully for all intents and
purposes as he or she might or could do in petemepy ratifying all that each said attorney-intfaicd agent, or his or her substitute or

substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be dongitiye thereof.

This Power of Attorney may be signed in any nundferounterparts, each of which shall constitut@@aginal and all of which, taken

together, shall constitute one Power of Attorney.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned hasurep set his or her hand effective the 14th ddyetfruary, 2013.

/s/ James S. Beard

/s/ John M. Berra

James S. Beard

/s/ Robert J. Eck

John M. Berra

/sl L. Patrick Hassey

Robert J. Eck

/s/ Michael F. Hilton

Michael F. Hilton

/s/ Luis P. Nieto, Jr.

L. Patrick Hassey

/sl Tamara L. Lundgren

Tamara L. Lundgren

/sl Eugene A. Renna

Luis P. Nieto, Jr.

/s/ Abbie J. Smith

Eugene A. Renna

/sl E. Follin Smith

Abbie J. Smith

s/ Gregory T. Swienton

E. Follin Smith

/s/ Hansel E. Tookes, Il

Gregory T. Swienton

Hansel E. Tookes, Il



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Robert E. Sanchez, certify that:

1.

2.

Date:

I have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F Ryder System, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatoany untrue statement of a material fact ot énstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nigiaglisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angtti@ periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(d internal control over financial reportiag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedortee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingared;

b) designed such internal control over finanaglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataree with generally accepted accounting princjples

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrafisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period covmréklis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finaieceporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer anbave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuetimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitac@mmmittee of the registrant’s board of directspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weases in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the ttegig’s ability to record, process, summarize abrt financial information;
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslvnanagement or other employees who have a sa@niifiole in the registrant’s

internal control over financial reporting.

February 14, 2013 /sl Robert E. Sanchez

Robert E. Sanchez
President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION

[, Art A. Garcia, certify that:

1.

2.

Date:

I have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F Ryder System, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatoany untrue statement of a material fact ot énstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts under which such statements were made, nigiaglisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angtti@ periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(d internal control over financial reportiag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andénav

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedortee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingared;

b) designed such internal control over finanaglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataree with generally accepted accounting princjples

C) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrafisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period covmréklis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finaieceporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer anbave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuetimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitac@mmmittee of the registrant’s board of directspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weases in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the ttegig’s ability to record, process, summarize abrt financial information;
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that ineslvnanagement or other employees who have a sa@niifiole in the registrant’s

internal control over financial reporting.

February 14, 2013 /sl Art A. Garcia

Art A. Garcia
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office




EXHIBIT 32
CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report of Ryder Systénc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded December 31, 2012 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission ordéte hereof (the “Report”), Robert E. Sanchez,iéees and Chief Executive Officer of the

Company, and Art A. Garcia, Chief Financial Officdithe Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.ti8acl350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefttion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA1934; an
2. The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@abition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ Robert E. Sanchez

Robert E. Sanchez
President and Chief Executive Officer

February 14, 2013

/sl Art A. Garcia

Art A. Garcia
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office

February 14, 2013



